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China Unicom Limited {the “Company”) was incorporated
in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong")
in February 2000.

The Company was listed on the New York Stock Exchange
and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong on 21 June 2000
and 22 June 2000 respectively. On 1 June 2001, the
Company was included as a constituent stock of the Hang
Seng Index.

China United Telecommunications Corporation (“Unicom
Group™) is the major shareholder of the Company. As of 31
December 2006, Unicom Group indirectly and effectively
holds 52.60% of shares in the Company through China
Unicom (BVI} Limited and China Unitad
Telecommunications Corporation Limited. The public
investors of the A Share market in Shanghai indirectly and
efiectively hold 24.09% of shares in the Company. The
remaining 23.31% of shares in the Company are held by
public investors in Hong Kong and New York.

At present, the Company is engaged in the cellular
business {both GSM and CDMA) in 30 provinces,
municipalities and autenomous regions in China through
China Unicorn Cerporation Limited, the provision of
nationwide international and domestic long distance calls,
data and Internet services, and other related
telecommunication value-added businesses.

As to its cellular business, the Company is one c¢f the two
mobile telecommunications operators in the PRC. As of 31
December 2008, the Company had a total number of
142.366 million subscribers for its GSM and CDMA cellular
businesses and was the third largest mobile
telecommunication operator in the world in terms of
subscribers. As for the number of CDMA subscrioers, the
Company reached 36.423 milion and was ranked as the
second largest CDMA celiular operator in the world.

The Company has constructed the second largest
broadband optical fiber transmission network in the PRC
as a shared platform that supports the operations of
cellular business, international and domestic long distance
calls, data and Internat. This network has provided a good
support for network resources to facilitate the rapid
development of the Company's various businesses.

The Company operates telecommunications businesses in
Hong Kong and USA through its wholly-owned subsidiary
China Unicom International Limited. On 14 August 2008,
China Unicom (Macau) Limited (*Unicom Macau”) won the
CDMA license in Macau Special Administrative Region. On
18 October the same year, Unicom Macau officially
launched CDMA service in Macau. On 24 October 2008,
Unicom Macau won a licence to provide 3G (CDMAZ2000
1X EV-DO) mobile service in Macau.
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Financial Highlights

2006 2005
RMB in million RMB in million
Revenue 94,294 87,049
Excluding the unrealised loss on changes in fair value of
derivative component of Convertible Bonds:
Profit for the year™ (Note 1) 6,129 4,931
Adjusted basic earnings per share” RMB48.6 cents*  RMB39.2 cents
Adjusted diluted earnings per share” RMB48.4 cents ” RMB39.1 cents
Adjusted EBITDA* (Note 2) 31,689 28,438
Including the unrealised loss on changes in fair value of
derivative component of Convertible Bonds:
| Profit for the year 3,732 4,931
Basic earnings per share RMB23.6 cents RMB39.2 cents
| Diluted earnings per share RMB29.5 cents RMB39.1 cents
EBITDA (Note 2) 29,292 28,438

* To enable an investor to better understand the Group's results, the unrealised loss of RMB2.4 billion on changes in fair value of
derivative component of Convertible Bonds that is not considered to be an indicator of the Group’s operating performance in 2006 is
excluded.

Note 1: Profit for the year excluding the effect of unrealised loss on changes in {air value of derivative component of Convertible Bonds
represents profit for the year before accounting for unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative component of
Convartible Bonds. Please also refer to Note 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for quantitative reconciliation and
Section I15.9 of “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” for detaited
discussions of the unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative component of Convertible Bonds resulted from increase
in fair valua of the derivative component in respect of the Convertible Bonds.

Note 2: EBITDA represents profit for the year before interest income, finance costs, other gains-net, income tax and depreciation and
amortisation. As the tetecommunications business is a capital intensive industry, capiial expenditures and finance costs may
have a significant impact on the net profit of the companies with simitar operating results. Therefore, we believe EBITDA may be
helpful in analyzing the operating results of a telecommunications service operator like our company.

Adjusted EBITDA represents profit for the year before unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative component of
Convertible Bonds, interest income, finance costs, other gains-net, income tax and depreciation and amortisation. We believe
that the adjusted EBITDA may provide not only more meaningful supplemental information to but also facilitates the management
and investors to assess our performance and liquidity by excluding unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative
component of Convertible Bonds that is not considered as an indicator of our operating performance from a ¢ash flow
perspective.

Although EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA have been widely applied in the global telecommunications industry as indicators to
reflect the operating performance, financial capability and liquidity, they should be considered in addition to, and is not a
substitute for or superior to, the maasure of financial performance prepared under generally accepted accounting principles
{"GAAP™ as they do not have any standardised meaning under GAAP and are net regarded as measures of operating
performance and liquidity under GAAP. In addition, they may not be comparable to similar indicators provided by other
companies.




Major Events for 2006

1st Quarter
March On 28 March, the Company successfully
launched its new corporate logo with a

distinctive China red.

June On 20 June, the Company signed a
cooperation agreement with Warner Music

to jointly develop wireless music.

2nd Quarter

July In July, the Company successfully issued an
aggregate principal amount of US$1 billion
convertible bond to SK Telecomn Co. Ltd. of
Korea and both parties entered into a
strategic alliance framework agreement to
cooperate in the mobile communications

business areas.

3rd Quarter

August  On 14 August, the Gompany won the CDMA
license in Macau Special Administrative
Region and on 18 October, the Company
officially launched CDMA service in Macau.
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4th Quarter
October

On 24 October, the Company won a licence
to provide 3G (CDMA2000 1X EV-DO)
mobile service in Macau.

November In November, the Company signed CDMA
Business Cooperation MOUL and Services
Cooperation Agreement with Hanci Telecom
and Vietnam Telecom International

respectively.

December On 11 December, the Company signed a
strategic cooperation agreement with CCTV

to jointly launch mobile TV services.

In December, the Company's “COMA/GSM
dual-mode, dual-standby handsets”
technology was ranked first among all First
Prize winners from the National

Communication Academy.
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| am pleased to report the Company’s operating and financial results for the year of 20086. In
2006, the Company focused on the quality of its business development, furthered tha
transformation of its business model, continued to implement the brand-centric marketing
strategy, optimized its organizational structure and strengthened its internal control system,
as well as actively pursued business cooperative opportunities. As a result, the Company
maintained healthy developments in all aspects of its businesses and further improved its

operational effectiveness.

We achieved solid growth of our business revenue.

Our total revenue reached RMBBS4.29 hillion, an increase of
8.3% from 2005. In particular, our service revenue reached
RMBS0.03 billien, an increase of 6.8% from 2005.

Service revenue from our cellular business totaled
RMBB6.58 billion, an increase of 8.6% from 2005. Of this,
revenue from our GSM business was RMB59.29 billion,
while revenue from our COMA business was

RMB27.29 billion. In addition, revenue from our
value-added cellular business accounted for 19.5%

of total service revenue generated by our cellular business.
The long-distance, data and Internet businesses revenues
amounted to RMB3.44 billion.

We continued to improve our operating profitability.
Our profit for the year was RMB3.73 billion. Excluding the

unrealised loss on convertible bonds at fair value of

RMB2.40 billion, our profit before income tax would be
RMBB8.89 billion, an increase of 25.2% from 2005 and
profit for the year would be RMBB.13 billion, an increase of
24.3% from 2005, while adjusted basic earnings per share
would reach RMBO0.486, and adjusted EBITDA would be
RMB31.69 biliion.

Our financial position has become more stable. Cur debt-
to-capitalisation ratio declined from 31.2% as at the end of
2005 to 24.4% as at the end of 2006. Free cash flow
increased to RMB13.90 billion.

The Board of Directors is pleased to announce that it has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.18 per share for 2006. If the proposed dividend is
approved at the Company’s Annual General Meeting,

the Company will pay the dividend around 8 June 2007.




Chairman’s Statement

Review of 2006

Furthering the transformation of our business
model to sustain healthy development of our
businesses

We have maintained an equal focus on expansion of our
customer hase and retention of our existing subscribers.
In particular, we have concentrated on optimizing the
correlation between marketing costs and revenues.
Revenue from our GSM business grew in proportion to the
increase in the number of subscribers. Our COMA
business achieved notable improvements in profitability.
As at 31 December 2006, the total number of cellular
subscribers reached 142,366 million, representing a net
addition of 14.572 million subscribers in 2006. Profit
before income tax generated by our COMA business
reached RMB1.06 billion. The Company’s value-added
cellular business also demonstrated continued rapid
growth. SMS volume reached 75.68 billion messages,
while the number of subscribers for our CDMA 1X wireless
data service grew to 20.04 million subscribers. Our long-
distance, data and [nternet business recorded remarkable

growth in both EBITDA and profit before income tax.

Successful establishment of our brand-centric
marketing system to enhance marketing
capabilities and service standards

In 2008, we successfully introduced our new corporate
logo with a distinctive China red, implemented our brand-
centric marketing strategy and established a
comprehensive branding structure. We targeted middle-
and high-end subscribers by emphasizing the
technological advantage of “dual-mode, dual-standby” 1o
facilitate the development of “Worldwind” CDMA and GSM
dual mode services. We actively developed the youth and
campus markets to increase the market share of our
“U-Power” services. We also spent significant efforts in
mass and rural markets to maintain the steady
development of our “Ruyi Tong” services and expanded
the corporate and industry applications of our services to
fully launch our “Unicom Horizon" services to institutional
and industrial customers in markets such as agriculture,

commerce and maritime industries.




We targeted specific market segments with service brands
and consolidated our product, customer, tariff and channel
resources. We promoted portfolio marketing, rationatized
our tariff packages, strengthened the establishment of self-
owned distribution channels and increased our efforts in
the management of handset purchases. As a result, our
comprehensive marketing capabilities have been
significantly enhanced. Meanwhile, we have further
enhanced the quality of our customer service through
standardizing customer services, improving after-sales
customer service and the customer maintenance and
retention service, as well as strengthening the

management of content and service providers.

Optimizing and expanding our network
infrastructure to provide a strong basis for
market development

In response {o the nged for market development, we have
optimized the existing networks and increased our
investments, as appropriate, in expanding tha network
capacity in regions with insufficient resources but profitable
prospects. The capacity of the switches for our GSM
network also increased by 16 million in 2006 and we also
upgraded our GSM networks in 112 major cities to GPRS

networks, which further improved our network quality.

By establishing a market-oriented centralized operations
and management system, strengthening the construction
of supporting systems such as business operations and
network management systems, and enhancing the
emergency communication capability to ensure our
networks' security and quality, a solid foundation has been

laid for our further market development.

Focusing on internal control development to
enhance management effectiveness

We have striven to establish a comprehensive internal
control system, with the aim of enhancing risk
management and control through streamlining our
business operation processes, identifying risks,
impfementing control measures and defining risk
management responsibilities. As a result, the Company
has established a relatively comprehensive internal control
system to reduce operating risks and increase our

profitability.

To tie in with the development of internal control system,
we also introduced and implemented a series of
management measures in project construction, business
operations, financial management and evaluation and
incentive systems, resulting in a notable improvement in

control standards,

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006




Chairman’s Statement

Significant progress in technical innovation and
international cooperation

We have been actively promoting proprietary technological
innovations and estabiished a China Unicom Patent
Library. During the year, the Company was granted ten
patents in China and was awarded six scientific and
technological progress awards from the MNational
Communications Academy. In particular, the “*COMA/GSM
dual-mode, dual-standby handsets” technology was
ranked first among all First Prize winners. The Company
also received an official mandate from the CDMA
Development Group {“CDG"} to develop the global mobile
communications standard for “dual-mode, dual-standby

handsets”.

In July 2008, the Company successfully issued an
aggregate principal amount of US$1 billion convertible
bond to SK Telecom Co. Ltd. of Korea and both parties
entered into a strategic alliance framework agreement to
cooperate in the mobile communications business areas.
In August 2006, the Company successfully obtained the
permit ta provide local mobile communications services in
Macau, and in October 2006, the Company won the bid
for Macau's 3G licence.

Qutlook for 2007

In 2007, we will strive to capture the development
apportunities in the PRC telecommunications market and
adapt to changes in the competitive market and regulatory
policy of the PRC telecommunications industry.

The Company will continue to consolidate and expand its
achievements from the transformation of its business
model, and drive revenue growth to realize rapid

development in all business areas.

To facilitate effective development of our cellular business,
the Company will start to implement a segregated and
market-oriented management for the CDMA and GSM
networks respectively. Leveraging the respective
characteristics of the two networks, the Company is in the
process of establishing segregated operating divisions and
will introduce refined marketing measures. While ensuring
a reasonable matching of customer in-network revenue
contribution and sales and marketing costs, the Company
will further strengthen its GSM customer retention and
optimize subscriber composition to ensure effective
development of its GSM business and will further improve
the handset supply and reasonably leverage on costs to
drive the growth of the number of subscribers and revenue
of its CDMA business. As for the wireless value-added
services, the Company will continue to promote the mature
services, actively develop new businesses in response 1o
market demand and enhance its cooperation with content
and service providers, as well as increase the share of
revenue generated by the wireless valug-added services.
For the long-distance, data and Internat business, the
Company will continue to focus on developing profitable
business in regions with market potential and develop

value-added fixed-line business.




In 2007, the Company will make greater efforts to
implement its brand-centric marketing strategy, enhance
its tariff management capability, accelerate the
establishment of self-owned distribution channels and
further enhance customer service quality. Further upgrades
to the network and support system, stronger investment
management and an enhanced investment structure,
better IT support and faster construction of the technology
innovation system are also among the key priorities. In
addition, by establishing and improving its internal control
system, the Company will strive to strengthen its
management, reduce its operational risks and enhance its
operating efficiency, with an ultimate goal of actively

creating value for shareholders.

In ¢losing, on behalf of all members of the Board of
Directors, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my heartfelt gratitude to all our shareholders for their
strong support to the Company and to all our staff for their
hard work and contribution to the development of the

Company during the past year.

-3

Chang Xiaobing
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong,
29 March 2007
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. Li Gang
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. Zhang Junan

Executive Director and Vice President




Chang Xiaobing
{Chairman and
Chief Executive Ofiicer)

'!m

Y e Aged 49, was appointed in

hal December 2004 as an Executive
/ . Director, Chairman of the Board of
N Direciors and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. Mr. Chang,
a professor level senicr engineer,
graduated in 1982 from the Nanijing Institute of Posts and
Telecommunications with a bachelor's degree in
telecommunications engineering and received a master's
degree in business administration from Tsinghua University
in 2001. He received a doctor’s degree in business
administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
2005. Prior to joining the Unicom Group, Mr. Chang served
as a Deputy Director of the Nanjing Municipal Posts and
Telecommunications Bureau of Jiangsu PT and a Deputy
Director General of the Directorate General of
Telecommunications of the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications and a Deputy Director Generatl and
Director General of the Department of Telecommunications
Administration of the M, as well as Vice President of China
Telecom Group. Mr. Chang was appointed the Chairman of
Unicoem Group in November 2004, He also serves as the
Chairman of the China United Telecommunications
Corporation Limited {*A Share Company”} and China United
Corporation Limited (*CUCL"), respectively. Mr, Chang has
over 25 years of operational and managerial experience in
the telecommumications industry in China.

Shang Bing
(Executive Director and President)

Aged 51, was appointed in
Novermber 2004 as an

Executive Director and President of
the Company. Mr. Shang, a senior
economist, graduated in 1982 from
Shenyang Chemical industry
Institution with degree in chemical
industry and received a master’s degree in business
administration from New York State University. He received
a doctor's degree in business administration fram the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. From 1986 to
1998, Mr, Shang served as a Director of Industrial

Technology Development Centre in Liaoning FProvince,
Deputy General Manager and General Manager of
Economic and Technological Development Company in
Liaoning Province. Mr. Shang joined Unicom Group in
August 1998. From 1998 to 2001, Mr. Shang served as a
Deputy General Manager and General Manager of Unicom
Group Liaoning Branch. Mr. Shang was appointed a Vice
President of Unicom Group in March 2001 and also
became a Director of Unicom Group in September 2003,
Mr. S8hang was appointed the President of Unicom Group
in November 2004. At present, Mr. Shang is also a Director
and President of the A Share Company and GUCL.

Mr. Shang has extensive management experience end
knowledge in telecommunications operations.

Tong Jilu
{Executive Director and
Chief Financial QOfficer)

Aged 48, was appointed in February
2004 as an Executive Director and

b / Chief Finaricial Officer of the
Company. He assists the President
x\ in handling issues relating to finance.

Mr. Tong graduated in 1987 from the
Department of Economic Managerment at the Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications. He received a
master’s degree in business administration from National
University of Australia in 2002; and is an Executive Director
of the Association of Chief Accountants and Vice Chairman
of Internal Audit Association of China. From August 1989 to
October 1999, he served first as a Deputy Director, Director
and later as a Deputy Director General of the Finance
Bureau of the Posts and Telecomrmunications Administration
of Liaoning Province. From November 1999 to June 2000,
Mr. Tong served as Deputy Director General the Posts Office
of Liaoning Province, Mr. Tong joined Unicom Group in July
2000 and served as Chief Accountant of Unicom Group
from July 2000 to February 2001. Since March 2001,
Mr. Tong has served as a Vice President of Unicom Group.
Mr. Tong has served as a Director in the Unicom Group
since September 2003 and the Chief Accountant of the
Unicom Group since December 2004, Mr. Tong is alsc a
Director in the A Share Company and a Director and Vice
Prestdant in CUCL. Mr. Tong has extensive experience in
management of telecommunications companies and finance
management of listed companies.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Li Jianguo

(Executive Director)

Aged 53, was appointed in April
2006 as an Executive Director of

the Company. She graduated from
the Xiangtan University with a

bachelor’s degree in Chemical
Engineering in 1982 and received a
master's degree in business administration from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. Ms. Li is a senior
economist and held leading positions in various
enterprises, local governments and state ministries and
committees for a significant period of time. She joined the
Unicom Group in June 2000 and has been the
Chairperson of the labour union of the Unicom Group since
December 2001 and a Director of the Unicom Group since
September 2003. Ms, Li is also a Director of CUCL and
the Chairperson of the board of supervisors of the A Share
Company. Ms. Li has extensive experience in working for
the government and enterprises and in management.

Yang Xiaowei
(Executive Director and
Vice President)

A e
{‘ i
<~ 2006 as an Executive Director and

Vice President of the Company.
fﬁ‘ He received a bachelor's degree

from the Computer Application

Aged 43, was appointed in April

Department of Chongging University in 1998 and a
master's degree in engineering from the Management
Engineering Department of Chongaing University in 2001.
Mr. Yang is a senior engineer. From December 1992 to
January 2002, Mr. Yang held the positions of Assistant to
Director and Deputy Director of Chongaing
Telecommunications Bureau; Deputy Director of the
Chongqing Telecommunications Administration Bureau,
and Director of Chongging Municipal Communication

Administration Bureau. Mr. Yang joined the Unicom Group
in January 2002 and served as General Manager of the
Chongging branch and the Guangdong branch of the
Unicom Group. Mr. Yang has been Vice President of the
Unicom Group since December 2003 and Director of the
Unicom Group since December 2004. Mr. Yang is also a
Director and Vice President of CUCL and the Chairman of
LUnicom Huasheng Telecommunications Technology Co.
Ltd. Mr, Yang has extensive experience in management
and the telecommunications industry.

Li Zhengmao
{Executive Director and
Vice President)

Aged 44, was appointed in April
2006 as an Executive Director and

Vice President of the Company.

He received a doctor's degree in
communications and electronic
engineering from the Southeast University in 1988.

From 1992 to 1994, he was a Professor of the University
of Electronic Science and Technelogy of China.

Mr. Li joined the Unicom Group in August 1994 and held
various positions in the Unicom Group, including Deputy
Head of the Network Technotogy Department, Head of the
Wireless Communication Department, Head of the
Technology Department and Deputy Chief Engineer. From
April 2000 to May 2002, he was Executive Director and
Vice President of the Company. From May 2002 to
December 2003, he was General Manager of the

Yunnan branch of the Unicom Group. Mr. Li has been
Vice President of the Unicom Group since December 2003
and has been a Director of the Unicom Group since
December 2004. Mr. Li serves as a Director and

Vice President of CUCIL., as well as the Chairman of
Unisk (Beijing) Information Technology Co. Lid. and
Unicom-BREW Telecommunication Technologies Lid.

Mr. Li has extensive experience in engineering technology
and business operations.




Li Gang
{Executive Director and
Vice President)

Aged 49, was appointed in April
2006 as an Executive Director and
Vice President of the Company.
He graduated from Beijing
University of Posts and

Telecommunications in 1985 and received a master's
degree in business administration from the Department of
Advanced Business Administration of Jinan University in
2004. Mr. Li is a senior engineer and previously served as
a Deputy Director of the Telecommunications Division, a
Deputy Director of the Telecommunications Department, a
Deputy Director of the Rural Telephone Bureau, a Deputy
Director and Director of the Telecommunications Operation
and Maintenance Depariment of the Posts and
Telecommunications Administration Bureau in Guangdong
Province and as a Director of the Mobile Communication
Bureau. From 1999 10 2005, he served as ihe Vice
Chairman, General Manager and Chairman of Guangdong
Mobile Communication Co., Lid. and as the Chairman and
General Manager of Beijing Mobile Communication Co.,
Ltd. From 2000 to 2005, he also served as an Executive
Director of China Mobile (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Li joined
the Unicom Group in December 2005 and is currently a
Vice President of the Unicom Group. Mr. Liis also a
Director and Vice President of CUCL and Unicom Xin Guo
Xin Communications Ltd. Mr. Li has worked in the
telecommunications industry for a long period of time and
has extensive management experience.

Zhang Junan
(Executive Director and
| Vice President)

. Aged 50, was appointed in April

->-— 2006 as an Executive Director and
Vice President of the Company.
‘gx He graduated from the Nanjing
/)

University of Posts and
Telecommunications majoring in carrier communication in
1982. He received a master’s degree in business
administration from the National Australian University in
2002. Mr. Zhang is a senior engineer. He previously served
as a Director of the Bengbu Municipal Posts and
Telecommunications Bureau in Anhui Province and
a Deputy Director of the Anhui Provincial Posts and
Telecommunications Bureau. From 2000 to 2005,
he served as a Deputy General Manager and General
Manager of the Anhui Provincial Telecommunications
Company and the Chairman and General Manager of the
Anhui Provincial Telecommunications Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang
joined the Unicom Group as a Vice President in December
2005. Mr. Zhang also serves as a Director and
Vice President of CUCL. Mr. Zhang has worked in the
telecommunication industry for a long period of time and
has extensive management experience.
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Lu Jianguo
{Non-Executive Director)

Aged 61, was appeinted in April 2006 as a
Non-Executive Director of the Company.
He is an engineer. He graduated from the
PLA Air Force Academy of Engineering in
1968 majoring in radio. From 1988 to
1994, he served as a Director of Beijing
Long Distance Cal Bureau, a Deputy
Director-General of the Communication Depariment of tha Posts and
Telecommunications Minisiry, a Deputy Director of Office of State
Radio Regulatory Commission. Mr. Lu served as a Vice President of
the Unicom Group from October 1994 to December 2005 and a
Director of the Unicom Group from February 2000 to December
2005 and is currentty also a Director of the A Share Cormpany. Mr. Lu
is experienced in telecommunications operations and has extensive
management experence.

o~ Wu Jinglian
S
/ .«\ \ (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Y
P L Aged 77, was appointed in April 2000
R “F | as an Independent Non-Executive

PR Director of the Company. Mr. Wuis a
(- senior researcher at the Development
- Research Center of the State Council, or
DRC, and a professor at the Graduate
A School of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences and China Europe
International Business School. Mr. Wu graduated from Fudan
University and received honorary doctoral degrees in Social Science
from the Hong Kong Baptist University and the University of Hong
Kang in 2000 and 2005, respectively. Mr. Wu was previously an
Executive Director of the DRC and Deputy Director of the
Programming Office for Economic Refarm of the State Council. Mr.
Wu has been a visiting schofar at Yale University, a visiting professor
at the Asia-Pacific Research Center of Stanford University and a
visiting researcher at the Massachusetis Institute of Technology.

Shan Weijian

{independent Non-Executive Director)

Aged 53, was appointed in May 2003 as
an Independent Non-Executive Director.
Mr. Shan is a Partner of TPG Capital
Limited, Mr. Shan serves on the boards
of, BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited,
Lenovo Group Limited and TCC
International Holdings Limited, among
others. Before joining TPG, Mr. Shan was a Managing Director of

J.P. Morgan. Prior to that, he taught at the Wharton Schoal of
Business at University of Pennsylvania. His earlier employers
include the World Bank, Graham and James, a law firm based in
San Francisco, and Beijing University of International Business
and Economics. Mr. Shan received a Ph.D. degree from the
University of California, Berkeley.

Cheung Wing Lam, Linus

{Independent Non-Executive Directc)

Aged 58, was appointed in May 2004 as
an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. Before this, Mr. Cheung

was Deputy Chairman of PCCW Limited.
Prior to the merger of Pacific Century
Cyberworks Limited and Cable &

Wireless HKT Limited, or Hongkong
Telecom. Mr. Cheung was the Chief Executive of Hongkong
Telecom and an Executive Director of Cable & Wireless plc in the
United Kingdom. Mr Cheung also worked at Cathay Pacific
Airways for 23 years before departing as Deputy Managing
Director, He was appoeinted an Official Justice of the Peace in
1990 and a Non-official Justice of the Peace in 1992, Mr. Cheung
is currently a member of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference for the Tianjin Municipal Government.
Mr Cheung received a bachelor's degree in social science and a
diploma in management studies from the University of Hong Kong.
He is also an Honorary Fellow of the University of Hong Kong and
of The Chartered Institute of Marketing in the United Kingdom.

Wong Wai Ming

(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Aged 49, was appointed in January
2006 as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Wong is an
Executive Directer and Chief Executive
Officer of Roly International Holdings
Ltd. and an Executive Director of
Linmark Group. Mr. Wong is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Lenove Group Limited and
|7 Limited. Prior to his current executive position, he was an
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Sing Tao
News Corporation Limited. He was previously an investment
banker with more than 15 years of experience in investment
banking business in Greater China and was a member of Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Wong is a chartered accountant and holds a bachelor’s degree
{with Honours) in managernent science from the Victoria University
of Manchester in the United Kingdom,
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Corporate Governance
Practices

The Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rutes”) provide for code
provisions {the “Code Provisions”) and
recommended best practices with respect
to: (1} composition and procedures of the
Board; (2) remuneration structure of
directors and senior management; (3)
accountability and audit; (4) delegation by
the Board and {5) communication with
shareholders for corporate governance
practices by listed companies. Other than
the disclosures made in the section headed
*(1) Board of Directars” below, the Company
confirms that for the year ended 31
December 2006, it has complied with all the
Code Provisions.

(1) Board of Directors

To serve the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders, the
Board of Directors is responsible for
reviewing and approving major
corporate matters including business
strategies and budgets, major
investments, capital market operations,
mergers and acquisitions, as well as
senior officers’ appointments. The
Board is also responsible for reviewing
and approving the announcements
pericdically published by the Company
regarding its business results and
operating activities.

The Board membership maintains wide
representation. Members of the Board
consist of outstanding persons from
different professions in mainland China,
Hong Kong and overseas. The Beard
comprises eight executive directors,
four independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive
director. Mr. Chang Xiaobing has been
the Chairman and CEQ of the Company
since December 2004. Mr. Shang Bing
has been the Company’s President since
November 2004. Mr. Chang Xiaobing is
responsible for chairing the Board of
Directors and for all material affairs,
including development, business
strategy, operation and management of
the Company. Mr. Shang Bing is
responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Company.

Under the Code Provisions, the roles
and responsibilities of chairman and
chief executive officer should be
separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board of
Directors understands that the principle
of the Code Provision is to clearly
separate the management of the Board
from the daily management of the
Company so as to ensure balance of
power and authority. The Board of
Directors believes that at the present
stage, Mr. Chang Xiaching and Mr.
Shang Bing have achieved the aforesaid
purpase of separating responsibilities.
These arrangements also facilitate the
formulation and implementation of the
Company's strategies in a more effective
manner so as to improve the Company's
effectiveness in business development,
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All independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors
of the Company are influential
members of the society and possess
good knowledge and experience in
different aspects. They have been
making active contributions to the
development of the Company.

They have kept close contact with the
management and often actively
express different opinions on matters
relating to the shareholders and the
capital market at the board meetings.
These views and opinions facilitate the
Board in their consideration of the
shareholders’ best interests. All
independent non-executive directors,
except for the equity interests and
directors’ remuneration disclosed in
this annual report, do not have any
business or financial interests with the
Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries, and have confirmed their
independence to the Company.
Personal particulars are set out in
pages 12 to 16 of this annual report.
The functions of non-executive
directors include, but are not limited to,
attending the board meetings,

making independent judgments at
meetings, playing leading role in
resolving any potential interest
conflicts, serving on committees by
invitation and carefully examining
whether the performance of the
Company has reached the plannad
corporate targets and objectives, and
monitoring and reporting an matters
related to the performance of the
Company.

In considering the nomination and
appointment of new directors and senior
management, the Board identify
candidates within the Company and in the
human resources market widely after
considering the Company’s needs for new
directors and senior management. After
obtaining consent from the candidate for
the nomination and based on the
Company's actual needs, the Company
convenes a board mesting comprising of
independent non-executive directors and
the non-executive director to consider the
gualifications of the candidates for
preliminary selection. The number of
board meetings held during the year and
the attendance of directors are detailed in
page 20 of this annual report. Under the
Code Provisions, non-executive directors
shall be appointed for specific terms and
offer themselves for re-election, and all
newly appointed directors shall be elected
by shareholders at the first general
meeting following their appointment
pursuant to the Company’s articles of
associaticn. The Company’s non-
executive directors are not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to
retirement by rotation at the general
meeting pursuant to the Company’s
articles of association and are subject to
re-election by shareholders pursuant to
the relevant requirerments. All directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
Mr. Shang Bing, Ms. L Jianguo, Mr. Yang
Xiaowei, Mr. Wu Jinglian and Mr. Shan
Weijjian, will be due for re-election by
shareholders at the annual general
meeting to be held in May 2007.

Personal particulars of the proposed




directors and their proposed remuneration
are set out in pages 12 1o 16 and pages
58 to 61 of this annual report.

Following their appointment, all newly
appointed directors are provided with
comprehensive orientation information
to ensure that they have proper
understanding of the Company’s
operation and businesses,

full understanding of their
responsibilities under the Listing Rules,
applicable regulatory requirements, and
the Company's business and
governance policies.

The Board convenes meetings regularly
and ensures that all directors have
opportunities to include issues for
discussion in the agenda. Notices of the
board meetings are delivered to the
directors at least 14 days before holding
of the meeting. The Company delivers all
documents for the meetings to the
directors at least one week on a best
endeavour basis (and ensures no less
than three days) before holding of the
meetings. The company secretary keeps
close contact with all directors and
ensures operation of the Board and all
committees is in line with the procedures.
Additionally, the company secretary is
responsible for compiling and regulary
submitting the minutes of board meetings
and committee meetings to all directors
for their review. Except for the period
from 17 January 2006 to 21 February
2006 when the former company
secretary resigned and the current
company secretary was yet to be
appointed, all directors have access to
the advice and services of the company

secretary with a view of ensuring that
board procedures, and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. The
resignation of the former company
secretary and appointment of the current
company secretary were announced by
the Company on 17 January 2006 and
22 February 2006, respectively.

Directors may obtain independent
professional advice, upon request, at the
expense of the Company. In addition,

if substantial shareholders or directors
have significant conflicts of interest in a
matter to be resolved, the Board will
convene a board meeting in respect of
the matter and those directors who have
conflicts of interest must abstain from
voting and are not counted in the
quorum of the meeting. Furthermore,
the Chairman has a clear responsibility
for ensuring that all directors have
appropriate knowledge of the current
items at the meetings and that all
directors are provided with sufficient,
complete and reliable information.

All directors are required to devote
sufficient time to handling affairs of the
Company. The management will hold
formal and informal megtings with all
directors from time to time to provide
sufficient timely information so that
directors can make informed decisions.
Alt board members have the right to
inspect the documents and relevant
information of the Board. Directors,
including independent non-executive
directors, visit various branches
frequently and understand the
Company's operations, The Company
has arranged relevant training for the
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directors to be conducted by

professional advisers, such as lawyers

and accountants, from time to time.

In 2006, the Board held five full hoard

meetings for discussion and approval of

Beard meetings

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

important matters such as the 2005

annual results, the 2006 interim results,

and the first and third quarter results for

2006. Set forth below is an overview of

the attendance during the year by the

board members at various meetings:

independent Board

meetings meetings Committee meetings
No. of No. of No. of Mo, of
megtings megtings meetngs MeEEgs
during his during his guring his during s
Position Attendance tem  Percentage  Allendance lem  Pecentage  Aftendance lem  Pecentage  Attendance tem  Percentage
Existing Directors’
Chang Xiaobhg ~ Chairman 5 5 100% NiA NiA N/A N/A NA A Nid Ni& NiA
Shang Bing Executive drector 4 5 0% NiA WA NiA NA A NiA NfA N/A NA
Teng Jhy Exexutive director 5 § 100% N/A NA NiA A Nid NiA WA NiA NiA
Li Jianguo Execuiive drectoe 3 4 5% WA N4 N/A N NiA WA A NA NAA
Yeng Xiaowek Executive director 2 4 50% NiA NiA WA WA NiA NfA N/A N/A NA
L Zhengman Executive cirector 4 4 100% Ni& WA /A NiA WA WA NA WA /A
LiGang Executive drectos 3 4 5% NiA WA RA WA NA NiA NiA NA NA
Thang Jungn Executive drector 3 4 5% Ni& NiA NA& NiA NIA Ni& N/A NA NiA
i Lu Jiangue Non-execulive director 4 4 10% NA NA NiA NiA NA WA WA Nid NiA
i Wi Jnglan Independent 5 5 100% 4 4 100% i 1 100% 1 i 100%
non-execuive director
Shan Wefian Independe 3 ] B0% 3 4 5% NA NiA /A i 1 100%
non-executve drector
Cheung Wing Lam,  Indpendent 5 5 100% ! 4 100% ! 1 0% 1 ! 100%
Linus non-executive dractor
WongWaiMing  Independent § 5 100% 4 4 100% NiA WA NA 1 1 100%
non-executive director
Past Directors?
Li Quuhong Executive ¢ rector 1 1 100% A WA NA NA WA NiA NiA NiA NA
Lo Wing Yan, Bxecutive drecior i 1 100% NA NiA Ni& N/A N N/A NA A NA
Wilkam
Ye Fengping Executive drecor 1 1 100% A NiA NiA NA WA NiA NiA NiA WA
Liv Yirge Nor-exec:ive director i 1 100% A NA NiA | i 100% Ni& N/A WA
Notes:

1. Mr. Wong Wai Ming was appointed as independent non-executive director on 19 January 2008. Ms. Li
Jianguo, Mr. Yang Xiaowei, Mr. Li Zhengrmao, Mr. LI Gang and Mr. Zhang Junan were appointed as
executive directors on 1 April 2006. Mr. Lu Jianguo was appointed as non-execuiive director on 1 Aprl 2006.

2. Mr Li Qiuhong, Mr. Lo Wing Yan, William and Mr. Ye Fengping resigned as executive directors on
1 April 2008, Mr. Liu Yunijie resigned as non-executive director on 1 April 2006.




The Board of Directors has provided clear
guidelines for delegation of powers and
responsibilities to the management. Some
important matters have to be decided by the
Board of Directors, including, but are not
limited to, long-term objectives and
strategies, expanding new businesses,
annual budget, initial announcements on
quarterly, interim and final results, dividends,
major banking facilities, major acquisitions
and sales, major connected transactions
and annual internal control evaluation.

(2) Committees under the Board
of Directors

The Company has established two
committees under the Board of
Directors, namely the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

All committees have written charters
and are provided with sufficient
resources to perform their duties,

The committees will report their
decisions or recommendations to the
Board of Directors after meetings.

(a) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises
four independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Wong Wai
Ming, Mr. Wu Jinglian, Mr. Shan
Weijian and Mr. Cheung Wing
Lam, Linus. Mr. Wong Wai Ming
currently serves as the Chairman
of the committee. All members of
the committee have complied with
the “independence” requirements
in respect of members of the audit
committee according to applicable

regulatory requirements. Two of
the members of the committee
were investment bankers with
expertise and experience in
financial management. The
Chairman of the committee is a
chartered accountant with
expertise and experience in
accounting and financial
management.

The major responsibilities of the
Audit Committee include:
considering and approving the
appointment, resignation and
removal of external auditors and
their fees; reviewing the quarterly,
interim and annuat financial
statements; coordinating and
discussing with external auditors
any problems and comments
raised during the statutory audits;
reviewing any correspondence
from the external auditors to the
management and responses of the
management; and reviewing the
relevant reports concerning the
internal control procedures of the
Company. The committee meets
at least four times each vyear, and
assists the Board of Directors in its
review of the financial statements
in order to ensure effective internal
controls and efficient auditing.

The Audit Committee is also
responsible for supervising the
external auditors who would report
directly to the committee, pre-
approved the audit and non-audit
services to be provided by the
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independent auditors, and
determined the possible impact of
non-audit services on auditors’
independence,
PricewaterhouseCoopers is the
independent auditors of the
Company overseas and in the
PRC and has acted as the

auditors for the Company for five
consecutive years {from 2002 to
2006). Apart from auditing
services, it also provides audit-
related services, tax and other
services. The remuneration paid/
payable to the independent
auditors for provision of services in
the year is as follows:

2006
Items Note RMB in thousands
Audit services {a) 120,323
Audit-related services (b} 11,272
Taxation services 87
Others 40
Total 131,722

(@)  Audit services in 2006 include reporting on the Company's internal contro! over financial
reporting pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of the United States of

America (“SOX 4047).

(o) Audit-related services in 2006 include advisory services in respect of the Company's

internal control.

The Audit Committee also
discussed with the management
the timing and procedures for the
rotation of principal partners of the
audit firm responsible {or the audit
of the Company and reviewing the
documents related thersto.

The committee also reviewed the
progress reports from the internal
audit departments. The committee
has carried out its duties
effectively, and enabled the Board
of Directors to better monitor the
financial condition of the
Comparny, supervise the internal
control over financial reporting of
the Company, ensure the integrity
and reliability of the financial
statements of the Company and
prevent significant errors in the
financial statements as well as to

{b)

ensure compliance with, the
relevant requirements of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
{the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange"), the U.S. Federal
securities laws and the New York
Stock Exchange with respect to
the Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Gommittee
consists of two independent non-
executive directors, Mr. Wu
Jinglian and Mr. Cheung Wing
Lam, Linus, and one non-
executive director, Mr. Lu Jianguo.
The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is

Mr. Wu Jinglian.




The major functions of the
Remuneration Committee include:
considering and approving the
remuneration ptans proposed by
the management, remuneration
scheme of executive directors and
the Company’s share option
scheme. The Remuneration
Committee conducts performance
appraisals for the Chief Executive
Officer and determines his year-
end bonus pursuant to the
performance target contract
entered into between the Board of
Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer. The Chief Executive Officer
is respansible for the performance
appraisal and determination of
performance-based year-end
bonuses for the other members of
the Company’s management.

The results are subject to the
review Of the committee. The
committee meets at least once
ayear.

(3) Preparation of Financial

Statements and Financial
Reporting

Cirectors understand that the
Companies Ordinance has provided
that directors shall prepare financial
statements for each year to give a true
and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at the balance sheet
date of the year and profits or losses
and cash flows of the Company for the

year ended the balance shest date.
In preparing financial statements,
directors shall:

(a) Select and consistently apply
appropriate accounting policies
and to make fair and reasonable
judgments and estimates in
applying the selected accounting
principles;

{b) State reasons for any serious
deviations from the accounting
principles; and

(c) Prepare financial statements on a
going concern basis, unless it is
inadvisable to assume that the
Company and the Group will
continue to operate in the
foreseeable future.

Directors are also responsible for
keeping appropriate accounting
records to protect the assets of the
Company and taking appropriate
procedures to prevent and investigate
whether there are any fraud and cther
irregularities.

For financial reporting, the management
shall provide explanations and
information to the Board of Directors s0
that the Board of Directors can evaluate
the merit of the financial and other
information that need to be approved.
The Board of Directors has also made a
balanced, clear and explicit evaluation
of the position and performance of the
Company in the communication with
shareholders.
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(4) Internal Control

Internal control systems have been
designed to monitor and facilitate the
accomplishment of the Company's
business objectives, safeguard its
assets against loss and
misappropriation, ensure maintenance
of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial
information, ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations,
and to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against fraud and

errors.

The Board has overall responsibility for
maintaining sound and effective internal
control systems. For the year endead 31
December 2006, the Board, pursuant
to the Code Provision, conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of
the internal control systems of the
Company and its subsidiaries based on
thorough discussions with and review
of evaluation report prepared by the
Company's Internal Control Office, as
well as frequent meetings with the
Company's management. The review
covered all material aspects of our
control functions, including financial,
operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions.

In order to strengthen its internal
control systems, the Company has
undertaken the following measures,
which include:

() establishing internal control
framework, identifying key controls
in business operations;

(b} improving information
management system to enhance
the internal control and reinforcing
control over the financial reporting
process;

{c) establishing financial management
responsibility systems and
implementing more
comprehensive responsibility
systems, 80 as to ensure the
accuracy in the reporting of
financial data;

{d) strengthening the internal audit
and monitoring controls over our
branches;

{e) establishing an enterprise risk
management system and risk
evaluation procedures;

(i strengthening the period-end
financial reporting process,
including enhancing the training of
our finance and accounting
personnel with respect to US
Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards;
and

{g) further formalizing anti-fraud and
whistleblower policies and
procedures.

The Company has achieved significant
progress in 20086, including:

(@) reinforcing internal control
framework; improving business
process and key controls to better
moniter and mitigate risk, as well
as formulating long-term
implementation plan on internal
control;




(B)

{c)

(d)

(e)

M

continuing to engage external
consultants to advise on overall IT
general controls and application
controls of the Company's
information technology systern
while upgrading the accounting
systems, developing and applying
the consolidated financial
reporting system;

implementing and refining the
procedures to monitor the financial
reporting and book closing
procedures at branch level and
upgrading business performance
review system;

forrnulating internal audit policies
and procedures to further clarify
the requirements and procedures
of internal audit department;

continuing to improve the
effectiveness of the Company's
internal control over financial
reportihg based upon the
framework established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework
issued by Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COSQ");
establishing the Risk Control
Office, identifying control
responsibility; formulating risk
management assessment
methodology and organizing risk
assessment at branch level;

hiring additional accredited
accounting professionals with
experience in financial reporting

(5)

and familiarity with the Hong Kong
and international accounting
practices; and

{g) promoting code of ethics for
employees; establishing and
implementing company-wide anti-
fraud policies; establishing
enhanced anti-fraud and
whistieblowing mechanisms.

The Company has an internal audit
department of over 150 staff, with
officers stationed at various provincial
branches. The internal audit
department reports directly to the Audit
Committee and is independent of the
Company's daily operation and
accounting functions. Internal audit
focuses on efficiency, accountability
and internal controls. It contributes to
the strengthening of operation and
management of the Company,
improvement in internal control
systems, mitigation of operational risks
and increases in economic efficiency.
Internal audit also enhances the
monitoring of the operation and
financial management of the Company,
so that the internal audit system can
further satisfy the requirements of
internal controls.

Code of Ethics for Directors
and Employees and
Procedures for Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has set out relatively
comprehensive standards governing
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the acts of officers and general staff,
including the Code of Ethics for
Management and Senior Officers and
Code of Ethics for Employees which
are available at the Company's website
{www.chinaunicom.com.hk). The
Company has also prepared the
Procedures for Dealing of Securities by
Directors in accordance with Modeal
Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
The Company had made specific
enquiries and all directors confirmed
that they had complied with the
relevant code for securities transactions
during the year ended 31 December
20086.

Information Disclosure Controls
and Procedural Standards

In order to further enhance the Company’s
system of information disclosure, and to
ensure the truth, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of our public disctosures, the
Company has adopted and implemented
Information Disclosure Controls and
Procedural Standards, pursuant to which: an
Information Disclosure Review Committee,
led by the management, was established by
the Company; procedures were established
to compile and report the Company’s
financial and cperational statistics and other
information and to review the periodic
reports. Detailed implementation rules were
also established for the verifications on the

contents and requirements of financial data,
especially the upward declarations from the
individual responsible officers at the
subsidiary, branch and major department
levels of the Company, which in turn
standardized the fundamental principles of
information disclosures that need to be
complied with.

Requirements under Section 404
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
(hereinafter referred to as the
“Sarbanes-Oxley Act”)

It has been strongly empbasized by the
Company on the compliance with the
requirements under Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The relevant section of
the Act requires the management of the
non-US issuers with equity securities listing
in the US securities market to issue reports
and representations as to the internal control
over financial reporting. Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act is effective from the first
financial reporting year ending on 15 July
2006 or after for large non-US issuers like
the Company.

The relevant internal control report needs to
stress the management'’s responsibility for
establishing and maintaining an adequate
and effective internal control over financial
reporting. The management are required to
assess, as of the year end the efiectiveness
of the company’s internal control over
financial reporting. The Company's external
auditors are required to attest to, and report
on, management's evaluation of the




Company's internal control over financial
reporting.

In order to enhance its corporate
governance standards in accordance with
the requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, many initiatives have been undertaken
since 2004 to enhance the Company's
internal control system. A steering
committee led by the Company’s
Management was established in 2005, and
the committee formulated the proposals for
the establishment of the internal control
system. Efforts made in 2006 include
implementing the modifications to the
internal control system and organizing
Company-wide staff training. Through our
continuing efforts, including enhancing the
interna! control procedures over the
business processes, identifying key risk
controls, finalizing on the accountability
system for risk management and
establishing a detailed documentation
system, the Company aims to establish and
maintain a comprehensive internal control
system to better manage the risks arising
from the commercial activities of the
Company and the financial reporting system
and thereby ensure the effectiveness of
internal contrel over financial reporting.

Under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, the Company’s management is required
to conduct an assessment of the
eftectiveness of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of 31
December 2006. The management is

currently in the process of finalizing the
management's report on internal control
over financial reporting, which is being
audited by the Company's independent
registered public accounting firm,
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Management’s
assessment report and
PricewaterhouseCoopers' audit report will
be included in the Company's annual report
on Form 20-F to be filed with the United
States Securities Exchange Commission by
30 June 2007.

Summary of Significant
Differences between the
Corporate Governance
Practices of the Company and
the Corporate Governance
Practices Required to be
Followed by U.S. Companies
under the New York Stock
Exchange’s Listing Standards

As a company listed on both the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and the New York Stock
Exchange, the Company is subject to
applicable Hong Kong laws and regulations,
including the Listing Rules and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, as well as
applicabte \).S. federal securities laws,
including the U.S. Securities Exchange Act
of 1834, as amended, and the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. The Company is also
subject to the listing standards of the New
York Stock Exchange to the extent they
apply to non U.S. issuers. However, as a
nen-U.S. company, the Company is not
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required to comply with all of the corporate
governance listing standards of the New
York Stock Exchange.

In accordance with the requirements of
Section 303A.11 of the New York Stock
Exchange Listed Company Manual, the
Company has posted on its Internet website
{www.chinaunicom.com.hk) a summary of
the significant differences between the
Company's corporate governance practices
and those required to be followed by U.S.
companies under the New York Stock
Exchange’s listing standards.

Corporate Transparency

Apart from continuing to publish reports to
shareholders and investors semi-annually
and annually in accordance with HKFRS
and/or US GAAP on the Company's
business and financial condition, the
Company discloses major unaudited
operational statistics and financial data
guarterly, and announces operational
statistics monthly in order to further enhance
the transparency of the Company and the
understanding by investors of the business
operations of the Company. In addition, the
Company submits annual reports and
regular reports to the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to the requirements of the US
federal securities laws.

Upon announcement of interim and annual
results or major transactions, the Company
immediately holds analyst and press

conferences. During such conferences, the
management of the Company interacts
directly with fund managers, investors and
journalists to provide them with relevant
information and data. The management of
the Company replies accurately and
thoroughly to questions raised by analysts
and journalists. Real-time web-castings and
video-recordings are also arranged for the
said conferences in arder to have wide
dissemination of information and messages.
Through announcements and press
releases, the Company disseminates the
latest information on the significant business
development and the management of the
Company to media in a timely and accurate
manner. Through the holding of road shows
in different countries all over the world, the
management of the Company meets and
communicates with key persons from
investment funds and institutional investors
to let them have an accurate understanding
of the performance achieved by the
Company in different aspects like business
operation and management etc.

The website of the Company is also updated
constantly to provide investors and the
public with information and news relating to
the Company in all respects.

Since 2004, the Company has also
disclosed the annual total remuneration for
each of the directors in the annual report for
the year.




Investor Relations

The investor relations department of the
Company is responsible for the provision of
information and services required by
investors, the provision of responses to their
inquiries, and the maintenance of timely
communications with investors and fund
managers. The Company also arranges from
time to time “reversed road shows” for
analysts and investors. These activities altow
them to have good opportunities to
communicate with and understand the
management, general staff and subscribers
of the Company and its operating
subsidiaries, visit different places of business
or show rooms of provincial branches, and
thus enable analysts and investors to
understand timely and thoroughly the status
of different aspects of the Company’s
business development.

Shareholders’ Interests

The Company has attached much
importance to the annual general meeting.
Executive directors and representatives of
the audit committee and the remuneraticn
committee attend the meetings and treasure
the opportunities provided by the meetings
to communicate with shareholders. At the

general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting proposes individual resolutions in
respect of each separate matter. All matters
at the annual general meeting are resolved
by polls and the relevant procedures are
explained at the meeting. The Company also
appoints external scrutineers to ensure that
all votes are counted and recorded as
appropriate, and publishes the poll results in
a Chinese and an English newspaper in
Hong Kong.

The Company also held an extraordinary
general meeting in December 2006, which
approved matters relating to the Company’s
continued connected transactions. In order
to protect the interests of independent
shareholders, the Board of Diractors
specially established an Independent Board
Committee which made recommendations
to independent shareholders after consulting
with an independent financial adviser. All
resolutions at the extraordinary general
meeting were resolved by polls. The
management of the Company announced
immediately the verified poll results during
the meeting and disclosed the same to the
public in a Chinese newspaper and an
English newspaper in Hong Kong on the
following day.
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The Company has put great emphasis on staff training. During the year,
the Company adopted various training approaches focusing on the
transformation of our business model to actively offer training for staff
S0 as to increase the overall quality of our staff team. In 2006, the
Company organized a total of 160 practical training sessions of all sorts
for more than 30,000 management officers, technical staff and
marketing and customer service officers of all levels.

Training for management staff

To enhance the management standard and
marketing capabilities of all management staff,
the Company has organized tailored training
courses in marketing for general managers
from local and municipal branches and
branches at the county level, Li Gang, our Vice
President, gave lessons in person. A total of
200 general managers or deputy general
managers in ¢charge of marketing from various
places, as well as more than 170 rmanagers
from county-level branches, attended these
training programmes. The Company also
organized seminars on financial management
for aimost 100 general managers from the
headquarters and branchas and subsidiaries
at the provincial level during the year to
enhance the financial-related knowledge of
senior managernent officers. Meanwhile, to
further develop the internal control
framework, the Cormpany actively organized
training related to internal control processes
and procedures during the year. A total of 450
general managers from local and municipal
branches and heads of major business
divisions from provincial branches attended
these training programmes.

Training for technical
professionals

The Company has also spared no efforts to
conduct training for technical professionals,
In 2008, the Company crganized various
specialized training sessions on GSM
network, GPRS sub-networking technology
and CDMA network planning for 450 leading
network operation and maintenance staff
from provincial branches with a view to
increasing the technical standard for the
Company's network planning and
optimization. To facilitate the development
and application of the 3G new technology

and new business, the Company joined
hands with Huawei, Ericsson and
QUALCOMM to organize ten 3G technical
training sessions. A total of 420 technical
professionals from the headquarters and
provincial branches attended these training
programmes. Other technical training
programmes included value-added business
system management and maintenance,
network information security techniques.

Other professional training

In 2006, the Company offered training
focusing on leading market operation and
service strategies targeting more than 1,500
front desk marketing and customer service
officers to actively develop the market and
increase the service standard of the Company.

In 2008, the Company centinued to proceed
with the establishment of online teaching
resources and developed and launched 75
onfine courses {up 79% from last year); and
successfully completed all online
examinations in respect of these corporate
training courses. A total of 4,033 customer
service officers sat for the elementary
occupational qualification cerlification
examination. A total of more than 2,000 staff
from the headquarters sat for examinations
such as core business flows and
telecommunication business knowledge. To
ensure occupational gualification certification
for our staff, the Company established the
Teaching Material Evaluation Committee
dedicated to this purpose, comprising three
specialized categories namely marketing and
customer service, technical operations and
integrated management, to evaluate the
relevant teaching materials for professional
training and ensure the authority and
applicability of the teaching materials
developed.
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Shang B:ing President

In 2006, the Company committed to strengthen its capability for

sustainable development and to carry out rational, practical and

proactive growth strategy. By deepening the transformation of its

: development model, enhancing market expansion effort, implementing

I brand-centric marketing strategy, establishing brand-oriented customer
service systerm and fostering innovation and cooperation, the Company
further enhanced its overall competitivenass.




. SUMMARY

In 2006, the Company committed to
strengthen its capability for sustainable
development and to carry out rational,
practical and proactive growth strategy. By
deepening the transformation of its
development model, enhancing market
expanston effort, implementing brand-centric
marketing strategy, establishing brand-
oriented customer service system and
fostering innovation and cooperation, the
Company further enhanced its overall

competitiveness.

The subscriber base of cellular businesses
continued to grow. As of 31 December
2008, the Company had a total number of
142.366 million cellular subscribers,
representing an increase of 11.4% from
2005, and the Company’s total market share
in its service areas was 31.3%. Specifically,
the number of GSM subscribers amounted
to 105.873 million, representing an increase
of 11.4% from 2005, while the number of
CDMA subscribers amounted to 36.493
million, representing an increase of 11.5%
from 2005.

Mobile value-added services {"VAS")
continued to grow rapidly. In 2006, SMS
volume reached 75.68 billion messages,
representing an annual growth rate of
38.8%. Over the year, total number of “Cool
Ringtone™ subscribers reached 35.881
million, representing 25.2% of total cellular
subscribers. In 2006, the revenue of mobile
VAS reached RMB16.86 billion, an increase
of 39.5% from 2005, and its share in total
cellular service revenue increased from
15.2% in 2005 to 19.5% in 2006.

Long distance, data and Internet businesses
were stable. In 2006, the total minutes of
outgoing international and domestic long
distance calls reached 24.36 billion minutes,
representing a decline of 3.4% from 2005.

Cellular subscribers
and market share

34.5%
31.3%
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Steady Growth of GSM Business

Product and subscriber compaosition

The Company provides highly qualified
GSM cellular services in mainland
China and offers GSM international
roaming services through 260 b)
operators in 170 countries and regions.

As of 31 December 2006, the total

number of the Company’s GSM

subscribers was 105.873 million,

representing a net increase of 10.801

million from 95.072 million subscribers

at the end of 2005. Of this total, post- o

~—

paid subscribers reached 54.267
million, representing a net addition of
6.101 million from 48.166 millicn
subscribers at the end of 2005; the
number of pre-paid subscribers

increased to 51.606 million,

l GSM ARPU
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representing a net addition of 4.700
million from 46.906 million subscribers
at the end of 2005. For the year ended
31 December 2006, the average
menthly churn rate for the Company's
GSM business was 2.44%, similar to
that of 2005.

Minutes of usage

In 2008, the total minutes of usage for
the Company’s GSM subscribers were
286.05 billion minutes, representing an
increase of 31.8% from 217.44 billion

minutes in 2005,

Monthly average minutes of usage
{MOU) and average revenue per user
{ARPU)

MQOU per subscriber per month for
GSM services increased moderately in
2006, The average MOU per subscriber
per month for GSM services were
237.2 minutes in 2006, representing an
increase of 35.0 minutes from the
202.2 minutes in 2005. ARPU for GSM
services in 2006 increased to RMB48.2
from RMB48.5 in 2006.




I CDMA subscribers
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a)

Continuous Growth of CDMA
Business

Product and subscriber composition

The Company is currently the only

provider of highly qualified CDMA b)
cellular services in mainland China and

ofters CDMA international roaming

services through 22 operators in 16

countries and regions.

As of 31 December 20086, the total
number of the Company’s CDMA

million from 2.712 million in 2005,

In 2006, the average monthly chum rate for
CDMA service was 1.57%, slightly higher
than the churn rate of 1.49% in 2005.

Minutes of usage

In 2008, the total minutes of usage for
CDMA subscribers were 113.85 billion
minutes, representing an increase of
11.8% from 101.75 billion minutes in
2005,

bscrib 36.493 mil ¢) Monthly average minutes of usage
SUDSCrDers was Jb. milion, and average revenue per user
representing a net increase of 3.771
th
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Business Overview

Continued Rapid Growth of
Mobile Value-added Services

In 2006, the Company achieved steady
increase of penetration rate of SMS and
“Cool Ringtone™ services, proactively
strengthened cooperation with other
partners to establish a value chain
featuring “openness, innovation,
cooperation and win-win". The
Company also accelerated promotion
of services that utilize COMA 1X

technological advantages.

The Company's SMS service continued
to grow. In 2006, SMS volume reached
75.68 billion messages, representing an
increase of 38.8% from 54.53 billion
messages in 2005. Of this total, GSM
SMS volume was 58.89 billion
messages, representing an increase of
49,1% from 39.51 billion messages in
2005; and CDMA SMS volume was
16.78 billion messages, representing an
increase of 11.7% from 15.02 billion

messages in 2005.

“Cool Ringtone”, U-Net and U-Info
services grew rapidly. In 2006, the net
addition of “Cool Ringtone” subscribers
was 13.931 million, and as of 31
December 2006 the total number of
subscribers reached 35.881 million. Of

this total, the net addition GSM “Cool
Ringtone™ subscribers reached 11.954
million and the net addition of CDMA
“Cool Ringtone” subscribers was 1.977
million. As of 31 December 2006, the
numbers of GSM and CDMA “Cool
Ringtone” subscribers were 28.414
million and 7.467 million, respectively.
in 2006, the net addition of “uni”
subscribers was 4.991 million. Of this
total, the net addition of U-Info
subscribers reached 4.297 million,
while the net addition of U-Net

subscribers was 0.694 million.

Stable Development of Long
Distance, Data and internet
Businesses

By focusing on profitability, the
Company strengthened cost
management and committed to
develop profitable business in markets
with potential. The Company increased
effort in restructuring and optimizing
product structure, reduced the scale of
unprofitable services so as to further
stabilize the revenue stream and
improve profitability, thus accomplished
the initial purposes of the business
transformation of the long-distance,

data and Internet businesses.




a)

International and domestic long
distance business

in 2006, the total minutes of the
Company's cutgeing international and
domestic long distance calls were
24.36 hillion minutes, slightly lower than
the 25.21 billion minutes in 2005. The
total minutes of incoming calls from
internationat destinations, together with
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan, were
2.61 billion minutes.

*  PSTN long distance business

In 20086, the total minutes of PSTN
outgoing long distance calls

increased to 11.23 billion minutes o)
from 10.48 billion minutes in 2005,
of which, domestic long distance
calls totaled 11.07 billion minutes
and total long distance calls to
international destinations, together
with Hong Keng, Macau and
Taiwan, were Q.16 billicn minutes.
Total minutes of incoming calls
from international destinations,
together with Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan, were 2.39 billion
minutes. o

+ |Plong distance business

As of 31 December 20086,
international roaming of the
Company's IP telephony service
was available in 34 countries and
regicns. In 2008, the total minutes

of IP outgoing long distance calls

International &
domestic

long distance

outgoing calls

reached 13.13 billion minutes,
representing a decrease of 10.9%
from 14.73 billion minutes in 2005.
Domestic leng distance calls
totaled 13.02 billion minutes and
long distance calls to international
destinations, together with Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan, totaled
0.11 billion minutes. The total

14.73

minutes of incoming calls from

13.13

international destinations, together
with Hong Keng, Macau and
Taiwan, amounted to 0,22 billion

minutes.

05 06
Network lease and video telephony

i W PSTN long distance
business

{minutas in billions)
IP long distance
{minutes in billions)

—a
The Company offers a variety of line

leasing, Asynchronous Transfer Mode
("ATM™) and Frame Relay ("FR")
services to meet customers’ different
bandwidth requirements. As of 31
December 2008, the total leased
bandwidth was 58,000 x 2Mbps, and
the total subscribers of *Uni-Video”
broadband video-telephony service
reached 465,000.

Internet business

As of 31 December 2006, the number
of subscribers of the Company’s
broadband Internet access was 1.254
million. The number of subscribers of
“Ruyi” Mailbox reached 12.217 million
at the end of 20086, representing a
substantial increase of 44.3% from the
end of 2005.
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INFRASTRUCTURE

In 2006, the Company further improved
network capacity and quality through
network upgrade, expansion and
optimization so as to meet market demand.
16 million new switch capacities were added
to the GSM networks, and the GSM
networks in 112 key cities were upgraded to
GPRS. The CDMA network services
underwent further optimization and
improvement. After obtaining a wireless
business license to operate local services
and subsequently commencing local
operations in Macau, the Company
successiully won the bid for a 3G license in
Macau, facilitating the Company’s further

expansion in the region.

By the end of 2006, the Company's wireless
connection rate of GSM network increased
to 98.41% and call-drop rate was lower than
0.84%; wirgless connection rate of CDMA
network which was leased from the holding
company increased to 99.75% and call-drop

rate was lower than 0.37%.

In response to demand for market-oriented
operation and management, the Company
speeded up the deployment and
implementation of its informationlization
strategy, further optimized construction and
application of supporting systems, such as
those for commission management,

handsets and telephone cards, and

successfully achieved IT support for
processes at the national level. As a result,
the Company continued to improve the level
of informaitionlization of its operation and

management systems.

IV. SALES AND MARKETING

1. Branding Strategies

The Company implemented a
comprehensive brand marketing
strateqgy, successfully introduced a new
company logo based on red,
established a brand-centric marketing
system and enhanced brand loyalty
and attractiveness. By leveraging the
application advantages of “dual-mode,
dual-standby” technology, the
Company improved the high-end
positioning of the “Worldwind” brand in
the cellular market. By actively
expanding into youth and campus
markets, the Company increased the
market share of “U-Power” brand. By
proactively exploring mass market, the
Company maintained the stable
development of “Ruyi Tong" brand. By
launching services for different
industries such as agriculture,
commerce, tax bureaus and maritime,
the Company further enriched “Unicom
Horizon™ brand with its focus on the
appfication for instituticnal users and

industrial users.




Distribution Channels

in 2008, in order to enhance its core
competitiveness, the Company
eliminated unnecessary distribution
layers and strengthened control toward
distribution channels. Through rational
investment and acceleration of the
construction of self-owned distribution
channels, the Company improved its
self-owned channels’ capability to
generate sales. The Company afso
actively cooperated with third-party
distribution channels to optimize
distribution structure and geographical
planning, strengthened assessment of
customer quality and revenue
contribution from such third-party
channels and consequently enhanced
effectiveness of commission

expenditure.

Customer Service

In 2006, the Company focused on
brand-centric marketing and
standardization of quality and process
of its customer service, and
strengthened “Unicom 10010", a
brand-oriented, tiered customer service
system. To enhance customer
satisfaction, the Company launched a
series of customer service campaigns
such as "Reliable Network with Sincere
Services” to improve customer service,
The Company also implemented a
customer service responsibility system
that is based at the provincial level and
coordinated through the Company's

nationwide customer service network.
By requiring the first contacted
customer service representative to be
responsible for solving the customer’s
problem within a mandatory peried of
time, such a system has ensured the
appropriate and proper handling of
customer comptaints and enhanced the
Company's customer complaint
response capability. As a result, the rate
of customer complaints fefl substantially
and the customer service quality was

further improved.

Tariff Strategies

In 2006, along with the implementation
of the brand-centric marketing strategy,
the Company further rationalized tariff
design, mix of service packages and
product differentiation and established
a brand-based tariff system. By
strengthening the management of tariff

packages and simplifying package
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structure, the Company endeavored to
help customers understand the service
package. In addition, the Company alsc
complied with the MIl reguirement of
SP tariff regulation and number
portability between internal packages
to further strengthen its control over
tariff,

V. BUSINESS STRATEGIES
FOR 2007

In 2007, the Company will continue to
implement the rational, practical and
proactive business strategies. With an
ultimate goal of achieving sustainable and
profitable growth with enlarged revenue
stream, the Gompany will strive to
consoalidate and leverage the achievements
from the transformation of its business
model, accelerate its market expansion,
strengthen its business and technological

innovations and further expand cooperation.

For its GSM business, the Company aims to.
further clarify target markets and adopt
differentiated strategies for customer
retention and follow-on sales and marketing
to increase market share. The Company will
emphasize quality of subscriber acquisition
and increase the share of net addition
market. In addition, in order to further
improve the profitability of its GSM business,
the Company will further strengthen its
control of the sales and marketing costs by
reasonably matching the increase of such

costs with the increase of subscriber

revenue. Furthermore, the Company plans
to capitalize on the value-added services
and the release of new network number
resources to develop high-end GSM
services, enhance the quality of new
subscribers, and improve the subscriber
composition and the image of GSM

business.

For its COMA business, the Company will
continue to apply the principle of matching
cost and revenue and insist on maintaining a
reasonable correlation between handset
subsidy and customer revenue contribution
s0 as to reasonably increase revenue. The
Company will also expand the industrial
application of COMA technological
advantages. In addition to offering wireless
data services with market advantages, the
Company will conduct cross line marketing,
combining wireless data services with voice
gervices and enhance the overall
competitiveness of the Company's service
and product offerings. Furthermore, the
Company will strengthen the construction of
sales and marketing channels to create
incentives for third-party distribution channels
to carry COMA products and services. To
capitalize on the opportunities offered by the
initialization of the segregated operations for
GSM and CDMA networks, the Company will
increase its efforts in managing products and
tariff packages and differentiating custormers,
so as to effectively address the parallel goals
of customer retention and acquisition and to
increase the scale of revenue and subscriber
base for COMA business.



For its mobile VAS business, the Company will
seek to develop 3G-oriented VAS business
and accelerate the development of the scale
of its VAS business. The Company will also
enhance the penetration rate of SMS, “Cool
Ringtone” and wireless data business to
achieve higher ARPU for VAS business. In
addition, the Company will actively expand into
new markets by promoting services such as
mobile music, instant message and stock
information, continue business madel
innovation and improve the development of

value chain for VAS business.

The Company will maintain the profitability-
oriented development of its long distance,
data and Internet businesses. While
maintaining the revenue scale of the
traditional voice business, the Company will
actively develop and expand revenue
sources by offering fundamental data
services such as line leasing and dedicated
Internet access, promoting fixed-line and
wireless integrated services, and focusing on
the development of VAS business over data
networks and Internet to promote new

revenue stream.

To fully unitize the Company’s advantages as
an integrated service operator, the Company
will leverage industry application to improve
the product development for institutional
customers. With a goal to enhancing value
for institutional customer and increasing
customer loyalty, the Company will continue

the equal focus on customer retention and

acquisition and further expand into markets
with institutional customers and industrial
customers so as to effectively increase

revenue.

The Company will continue to develop its
brand-centric sales and marketing system,
enrich brand contents and enhance brand
image. It will also improve the distribution
systemn to enhance its core competitiveness.
In addition, the Company will further
implement the tiered customer service
system to establish its advantages in
customer service area and to promote its
business image, therefore to further enhance

the Company’s overall competitiveness.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Service revenue

I84.29
; ] 90.03

I. Overview

In 2006, we continued to grow our business effectively. Cur total revenue maintained steady
growth and reached RMB94.29 hillion by the end of 2006, up by 8.3% from 2005, Qur profit
for the year amounted to RMB3.73 billion. Excluding the effect of the RMB2.40 billion
unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative component of Convertible Bonds at fair
value, the profit for the year would increase by 24.3% from RMB4.93 hillion in 2005 to
RMBB6.13 billion in 2006. Basic earnings per share in 2006 were RMB0.296. Excluding the
effect of the RMB2.40 billion unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative component
of Convertible Bonds, adjusted basic earnings per share in 2006 would be RMB0.486, up by
24.0% from 2005. Adjusted EBITDA was RMB31.89 billion in 2006.

We have maintained a sound balance sheet structure during the year as the liabilities-to-assets
ratio (Note 3} decreased from 46.5% as at 31 December 2005 to 45.8% as at 31 December
2006. The capital expenditures for 2008 were RMB21.55 billior. Cash flow continued to
improve. Free cash flow (i.e. net cash inflow from operating activities minus capital
expenditures) increased from RMB13.19 billion in 2005 to RMB13.90 hillion in 2006. Our net
cash inflow from operating activities amounted toc RMB35.45 billion, increased by 15.1% from
2005.

Note 3: Liabilities-io-assets ratio reprasents total liabilities over total assets.

Il. Revenue

Qur revenue continued to grow steadily in 2006. The total revenue was RMB94.29 billion, up
by 8.3% from 2005. Of the total revenue in 2006, our total service revenue was RMB30.03
billion, up by 6.8% from 2005, and revenue from the sales of telecommunications products
was RMB4.27 billion, up by 54.5% from 2005.




The table below sets forth the changes in service revenue composition and the percentage of

total service revenue for each of our business segment for the years of 2005 and 2008:

Service revenue 5.4% 3.8%
composition

61.9%

mm Cellular - GSM 3 Long Distance, mmm  Cellular - CDMA
Daia and Internet

2006 2005
As percentage As percentage
of total of total
RMB in service RMB in service
million revenue million revenue
Total service revenue 90,027 100.0% 84,287 100.0%
Include: Cellutar 86,583 96.2% 79,713 94.6%
Of which: GEM 59,290 65.9% 52,136 61.9%
CDMA 27,293 30.3% 27,577 32.7%
Long Distance,
Data and Internet 3,444 3.8% 4,574 5.4%

1. GSM Cellular Business

In 2006, we have maintained a continued growth in GSM Cetlular Business. Revenue
from our GSM Cellular Business increased by 13.7% from RMB52.14 billion in 2005 to
RMB59.30 billion in 2008, of which service revenue accounted for RMB539.29 billion, also
up by 13.7% from 2005. Such increase is mainly due to increase in the number of
subscribers and in revenue from GSM value-added services. ARPU also increased from
RMB48.5 in 2005 to RMB49.2 in 2008, up by RMBO0.7. Sales of telecommunications
products relating to our GSM Cellular Business was RMB8.17 million in 2006.

Revenue from GSM value-added services amounted to RMB11.54 billion in 2006, up by
44.9% from 2005. The share of revenue from GSM value-added services as a percentage
of the GSM service revenue increased from 15.3% in 2005 to 19.5% in 2006 due to our
efforts to strengthen the development and promotion of the value-added business.

In line with the growth of the GSM Cellular Business and interconnection traffic volume,
interconnection revenue from the GSM Business increased to RMB4.91 billion in 20086,
up by 41.8% from 2005.

Service revenue of
GSM Cellular Business
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Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Service revenue of

CDMA Cellular
Business
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Service revenue of Long
Distance, Data and
Internet Business
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CDMA Celiular Business

In 2006, we continued to emphasise an effective development on COMA Cellular
Business. Revenue from CDMA Cellular Business reached RMB31.55 billien, an increase
of 4.1% from 2005. Of the total revenue {rom CDMA Cellular Business, service revenue
was RMB27.29 billion and decreased by 1.0% from 2005 due to a decrease of the ARPU
by RMB@.2 from RMB75.1 in 2005 to RMB685.9 in 2006. Such ARPU decrease was
because certain high-end contractual customers did not renew their contracts upon
expiry while the average ARPU of new customers was relatively lower. Sales of
telecommunications products relating to our CDMA Cellular Business increased to
RMB4.26 billion, up by 55.2% from 2005.

We continued to utilise the technical advantages of COMA1X technology to improve our
revenue from COMA value-added services. Such revenue reached RMBS5.31 billion in
2006, up by 29.1% from 2005, and accounted for 19.5% of the service revenue from
CDMA Cellular Business in 20086, an increase from 14.9% in 2005. Of the service revenue
from COMA Cellular Business, revenue from CDMA1X data business was RMB1.99
billion, representing an increase of 49.2% from 2005 and accounting for 37.5% of the

value-added service revenue from CDMA Cellular Business in 2008.

In line with the growth of CDMA Cellular Business and interconnection traffic volume,
interconnection revenue from CDMA Cellular Business reached RMB1.73 billion by the
end of 2008, up by 23.9% from 2005,

Long Distance, Data and Internet Business

Tariff for traditional businesses such as outgoing long distance calls continued to
decrease due to intensive market competition. To address this, we adjusted our business
structure and dropped less profitable products. In 2008, our service revenue from Long
Distance, Data and Internet Business was RMB3.44 billion, down by 24.7% from 2005
due to a decrease of 3.4% of the total minutes of outgoing domestic and international
calls from 2005.
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lll. Costs and Expenses

billion. Excluding the effect of the RMB2.40 billion unrealised loss on changes in fair value of

derivative component of Convertible Bonds, ¢osts and expenses would be RMB85.40 hillion,
increase by 6.8% from 2005, which is slower than the 8.3% growth in the total revenue in
2006.

The table below illustrates the major cost items from 2005 and 2006 and their respective share

of service revenue:

2006 2005

As percentage As percentage

RMB in of service RMB in of service

million revenue million revenue

Total costs and expenses 87,799 97.5% 79,947 94.9%

Leased lines and network capacities 8,763 9.7% 8,747 10.4%

Interconnection charges 9,595 10.7% 8,372 9.9%

Depreciation and amortisation 22,423 24.9% 20,368 24.2%

Employee benefit expenses 6,649 7.4% 5616 6.7%

Selling and marketing 19,252 21.4% 20,558 24.4%

General, administrative and other expenses 13,416 14.9% 11,742 13.9%

Finance costs, net of interest income 395 0.4% 1,003 1.2%

Cost of telecommunications products sold 4,930 5.5% 3,575 4.2%
Unrealised loss on changes in fair value

of derivative component of Convertible Bonds 2,397 2.7% - -

Other gains-net (21) (0.1%) (35) -
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Leased lines and network capacities

QOur aggregate lease expense for leased lines and network capacities reached
RMEB8.76 billion in 2006, up by 0.2% from 2005, and as a percentage of the service
revenue decreased from 10.4% in 2005 to 9.7% in 2008. Under the connected party
transactions agreement, lease expense for the CDMA network capacity in 2006 was
calculated based on 30% of the business income from our COMA Cellular Business in
2006. Network capacity lease expense for the CDMA Celiular Business for year 2006
increased from RMB7.92 billion in 2005 to RMB8.08 billion in 2006.

Interconnection charges

Due to the increase in interconnection traffic velume, intarconnection charges increased
to RMB9.60 billion in 2008, up by 14.6% from 2005. Interconnection charges as a
percentage of the service revenue increased from 9.8% in 2005 to 10.7% in 2006.

Net interconnection charges from 2006 was RMB2.43 billion, down by 18.1% from 2005,
and accounted for 2.7% of the service revenue in 2006 as opposed to 3.56% in 2005.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation expenses increased by 10.1% from RMB20.37 billion in
2005 to RMB22.42 billion in 2006 and, as a percentage of the service revenue, increased
from 24.2% in 2005 to 24.9% in 2006.

Employee benefit expenses

In 2006, due to various factors including a general increase in the employee insurance
premium expenditure, recruitment of new staff for business expansion and increase of share-
based compensation costs from the grant of new share options under the share option
scheme in 2006, employee benefit expenses for the year increased to RMBE.65 billion, up by
18.4% from 2005, and represented 7.4% of the service revenue, up from 6.7% in 2005.

Selling and marketing

In 20086, due to our effective cost control measures, particularly on the customer
acquisition costs on contractual CDMA subscribers and commission expenses, selling
and marketing expenses totaled RMB19.25 billion in 2008, a decrease of 6.4% from
2005. Such selling and marketing expenses accounted for 21.4% of our service revenue
in 2006, down by 3.0% from 24.4% in 2005. Amortisation of customer acquisition costs
on contractual CDMA subscribers was RMB4.21 billion (2005: RMB5.85 billion) in 2006.
The balance of unamortised CDMA customer acquisition costs decreased from
RMB2.94 billion as of 31 December 2005 to RMB2.10 billion as of 31 December 2006.




General, administrative and other expenses

Affected by factors such as increases in rents for base stations, maintenance fees,
utilities charges and other expenses, general, administrative and other expenses
increased by 14.3% from RMB11.74 billion in 2005 to RMB13.42 billion in 2006. General,
administrative and other expenses as a percentage of the service revenue increased from
13.9% in 2005 to 14.9% in 20086.

Finance costs, net of interest income

in 2006, we further strengthened and improved our capital structure, centralised
management and enforced effective application of our capital resources. As we improved
our ¢ash inflow from operating activities and improved our debt structure through the
issuance of Convertible Bonds and short-term bonds, finance costs, net of interest
income decreased from RMB1.00 billion in 2005 to RMBO.40 billion in 2008, down by
£0.6%. In addition, we recorded an exchange gain of RMB0.37 billion due to the
appreciation of RMB during 2008, which also contributed to the decrease of our

finance costs.

Cost of telecommunications products sotd

The cost of telecommunications products sold increased to RMB4.93 billion, up by
37.9% from 2005, This increase was primarily due to increases in the CDMA handsets
units purchased and sold. The corresponding sales of tefecommunications products was
RMB4.27 billion, up by 54.5%. The net loss from the sales of telecommunications
products was RMBO.66 billion, which is RMB0.15 billion less than the net ioss in 2005.

Unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative component of
Convertible Bonds

In July 2006, we issued the Convertible Bonds to SK Tefecom, a mobile
telecommunications service operator in Korea, In accordance with the requirements of
Hong Kong Accounting Standard 38, “Financial Instruments — Recognition and
Measurement®, the bond contract must be separated into two components: a derivative
component consisting of the conversion option and a liabitity component consisting of
the straight debt element of the bond. The conversion option is carried at fair value on the
balance sheet with any changes in fair value being charged or credited to the income
statement in the pericd when the change occurs. The fair value of the derivative
component of the Convertible Bond is calculated using the Binomial model, which

considers various factors including exercise price, volatility, expected dividend vield,
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Please refer to Note 1 and
Note 2 of “Financial
Highlights" as set out in page
4 for explanations.

risk free rate, expected life of options and the closing price of our share at valuation date.
Due to the substantial increase in our share price from HKD6.95 as at 5 July 20086, (the
issuance date of the Convertible Bonds) to HKD11.40 as at 31 December 2006, the fair
value of the derivative component in respect of the Convertible Bonds has increased and
therefore resulted in an unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative component
of Convertible Bonds of the RMB2.40 billion recognised in the income statement.

The unrealised loss had no effect on our cash flows or other aspects of our operations

in 2008.

Earnings

Profit before income tax

In 2006, our profit before income tax was RMB6.50 billion after the unrealised loss on
changes in fair vatue of derivative component of Convertible Bonds of the

RMB2.40 billion. Excluding the effect of the RMB2.40 billion unrealised loss on changes
in fair value of derivative component of Convertible Bonds, our profit before income tax
would be RMES.89 billion, an increase of 25.2% from 2005.

Profit before income tax for the GSM Cellular Business was RMB7.48 billion, up by 2.8%
from 2005 as a result of the increase in revenue from GSM Cellular Business. Profit before
income tax for the CDMA Cellular Business improved guarter on guarter and reached
RMB1.086 bilion. Profit before income tax for the Long Distance, Data and Internet
Business was RMB(Q.49 billion after the Company focused on developing profitable

businesses.

Income tax

Qur income tax increased to RMB2.786 billion in 2006 and the effective tax rate in 2006
was 42.5%. Excluding the effect of the RMB2.40 billion unrealised loss on changes in fair
value of derivative component of Canvertible Bonds, the effective tax rate would be
31.1%, similar to 30.6% in 2005.

Profit for the year

QOur profit for the year reached RMB3.73 billion in 2006. Basic earnings per share in 2006
were RMB0.296. Excluding the effect of the RMB2.40 billion unrealised loss on changes
in fair value of derivative component of Convertible Bonds, the profit for the year would
be RMBB.13 biltion and the adjusted basic earnings per share would bhe RMB0.486,

an increase of 24.0% from 2005.



V. Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA was RMB31.69 billion in 2006 and adjusted EBITDA margin {Adjusted
EBITDA as a percentage of the total revenue) was 33.6%.

EBITDA for the GEM Cellular Business was RMB26.42 billion, up by 3.8% from 2005.
EBITDA margin {EBITDA as a percentage of the total revenue) for the GSM Cellular Business
decreased from 48.8% in 2005 t0 44.6% in 2006 as a result of increased commission
expenses under intensified competition environment and increased interconnection charges.
EBITDA for the CDMA Cellular Business increased from RMB0.44 billion in 2005 to RMB1.82
billion in 2006 and the EBITDA margin for the CDMA Cellular Business increased from 1.4%
in 2005 to 5.8% in 2006. EBITDA for the Long Distance, Data and Internet Business was
RMB3.66 billion, an increase of 36.7% from 2005. EBITDA margin for the Long Distance,
Data and Internet Business increased from 32.1% in 2005 to 44.6% in 2006.

VL. Capital expenditures and free cash flow

Qur capital expenditures totaled AMB21.55 billion in 2006, representing an increase of
22.4% from RMB17.61 billion in 2005. Capital expenditures attributable to the

GSM Cellular Business were RMB10.58 billion. Capital expenditures for the Long Distance,
Data and Internet Business were RMB1.44 billion, Capital expenditures for local gateway
and infrastructure network were RMB3.70 biltion. Capital expenditures for billing system,
customer services and information technaology system and buildings and others were
RMB5.83 billion.

Both cash inflow from operating activities and free cash flow continued to improve from
RMB30.80 biilion and RMB13.19 billion in 2005 to RMB35.45 billion and RMB13.90 billion
in 2006, respectively. Cash inflow from operating activities increased by 15.1% from 2005.
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Adjusted EBITDA margin®
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The table below illustrates the capital expenditures of various major businesses in 2006 and i

the planned expenditures in 2007:

|

2006 2007 |

RMB in billion RMB in billion l

Total 21.55 26.00 !
GSM Cellular 10.58 13.60 ‘
Long Distance, Data and Internet 1.44 1.00 ‘
Gateway and infrastructure network 3.70 3.90 !
Others 5.83 7.50 |

Capital expenditures planned for 2007 are estimated RMB26.00 billion, capital expenditures '
for the GSM Cellular Business are estimated to be approximately RMB13.60 billion which will

be used to satisfy customers’ demand, improve the quality of network coverage and increase

the network capacity as appropriate. Capital expenditures for the Long Distance, Data and

Internst Business are estimated to be approximately RMB1.00 biliion. Capital expenditures for

local gateway and infrastructure network are estimated to be approximately RMB3.90 hbillion.

Capital expenditures for information technology system and buildings and others are estimated

to be approximately RMB7.50 billicn.

We plan to rely primarily on cash generated from operating activities to satisfy our capital

expenditures needs.

VIl. Balance Sheet

In 2006, our balance sheet structure was further improved. Total assets increased from
RMB142.63 billion as of 31 December 2005 to RMB146.44 billion as of 31 December 20086.
Total interest-bearing debts decreased from RMB34.58 billion as of 31 December 2005 to
RMB25.65 billion as of 31 December 2006. The liabilities-to-assets ratio decreased from
46.5% as at 31 December 2005 to 45.8% as at 31 December 2006. The debt-to-capitalisation
ratio (Note 4) decreased from 31.2% as at 31 December 2005 to 24.4% as at 31 December 2006.

As of 31 December 2006, we had net current liabilities (i.e. current assets minus current
liabitities) of RMB29.88 billion, representing a decrease of RMBS.71 billion from RMB35.59 billion
at the end of 2005. Taking into account of available sources of financing and continuous net
cash inflows from operating activities, we believe that we have sufficient funds to meet our
working capital requirements and debt obligations.

Note 4: Debt-to-capitalisation ratio represents interest bearing debts plus minority interest over interest
bearing debts plus total equity.



Report of the Directors

The directors ({the “Directors”) of China Unicom Limited (the “Company”} are pleased to
present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 20086.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the provision of cellular, long distance, data and Internet services

in China.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year endad 31 Decermnber 2006 are set out on pages 78 to 79

of the annual report.

In view of the rapid growth in the Group’s business and strong operating performance during
20086, the Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.18 per
ordinary share, totaling approximately RMB2.3 hillion for the year ended 31 December 20086.
Summary of Financial Information

Please refer to the Financial Summary on pages 171 to 172 for the summary of the operating
results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 20086.
Loans

Please refer to Notes 16,17,20 and 21 to the financial statements for details of the borrowings
of the Group as at 31 December 2006,

Convertible Bonds

Please refer to Note 17 to the financial statements for details of the convertible bonds of the
Group as at 31 December 2006.

Bonds

Please refer to Note 20 to the financial statements for details of the short-term bonds of the
Group as at 31 December 2006.
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Capitalised Interest

Please refer to Note 6 to the financial statements for details of the Group's capitalised interest

for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Please refer to Note 6 to the financial statements for changes in the preperty, plant and

equipment of the Group and the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Charge on Assets

As of 31 December 2008, no property, plant and equipment was pledged to banks as loan

security.

Reserves

Please refer to pages 80 to 81 of the annual report for the movements in the reserves of the
Group and the Company for the year ended 31 December 2006,

Subsidiaries

Piease refer to Note 22 to the financial staterments for details of the Company's subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2006.

Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Please refer to page 80 to 81 of the annual report for the Conselidated Statement of Changes

in Equity.

Housing Benefits

Please refer to Note 27 to the financial statements for details of the housing benefits provided

to employees of the Group.

Retirement Benefits

Please refer to Note 26 to the financial statements for details of the retirement benefits

provided to employees of the Group.



Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in the articles of association of the Company
{the “Articles of Association”) requiring the Company to offer new shares to the existing
shareholders in proportion to their sharehotdings.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group's sales to its five largest customers did not exceed 30% of the Group’s total
turnover for the vear ended 31 December 2006.

Purchases from the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2006 representad
approximately 7% of the Group’s total purchases. The total purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 accounted for
approximately 28% of the total purchases of the Group for the year 2006.

None of the Directors nor their respective associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) nor
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital} had any interests in the five largest suppliers of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 20086.

Connected Transactions

Please refer to Note 33 to the financial statements for a summary of the connected
transactions entered into by members of the Group for the year ended 31 December 20086.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company confirmed that all continuing
connected transactions referred to in Note 33.1, to which the Group was a party
during 2006:

(1) were entered into, and the agreements governing those transactions were entered into,

by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(2) were entered into either {a) on normal commercial terms, or (b} if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms that are no less favourable than terms available to or from (as appropriate)

independent third parties; and

{3) were entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of our
shareholders as a whole.
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The board of directors has received a letter from the auditors of the Company stating that all
the continuing connected transactions refered to in Note 33.1 to the financial statements of
the Company for 2006:

{1) have received the approval of the Company’s board of directors;

(2) were in accordance with the pricing policy on the transactions involving provision of

goods and services;

{3) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the

connected transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded their respective upper limits set for the year ended 31 December 2006.

Share Capital

Please refer to Note 15 to the financial statements for details of the share capital of the

Company for the year ended 31 December 2006.

. Share Option Scheme

| On 1 June 2000, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to employees who have made
contributions to the development of the Company. The terms of the Share Option Scheme
were amended on 13 May 2002 to comply with the requirements set out in the amencded
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 September 2001 and, following
amendment, provides a more favourable scheme to attract and retain key personnel. Under

the amended Share Option Scheme:

(1) share options may be granted to employees including executive directors of the Group

and any of the non-executive directors;

(2) any grant of share options to a Connected Person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company must be approved by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding any independent non-executive director of the Company who is the

grantee of the options);

{(3) the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted must not

exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 13 May 2002;

(4) the option period commences on any day after the date on which an option is offered,

but may not exceed 10 years from the offer date; and
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{5) the subscription price shall not be less than the higher of:
(@ the nominal value of the shares;

(b) the closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”} as stated in the Stock Exchange's gquotation sheets on the offer
date in respect of the options; and

{c) the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange’s quotation sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the offer date.

On 15 February 2008, the Company granted 167,466,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme, of which 2,840,000 share options were granted to the then existing directors
and 3,000,000 share options were granted to senior management who were later appointed
as Directors of the Company on 1 April 2006. The exercise price of the share options is
HK$6.35 per share. The closing price per share on 15 February 2006 immediately before the
grant is HK$6.35. The Company used the Black-Scholes valuation model to determine the fair
value of share options granted during the period. The fair value of an option is determined
based on different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in the variables so
adopted may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Up to 31 December 2006, 290,088,000 share options had been granted and remain valid
under the Share Option Scheme of the Company, of which 11,316,000 share options are
being held by the directers. Please refer to the paragraph “Directors’ interests and short

positions in shares, and remuneration™ herein below for details.

All of the options granted and outstanding as at 31 December 2006 are governed by the

amended terms of the Share Option Scheme as stated herein.

As of 31 December 2006, 127,993,200 options granted under the Share Option Scheme

have been exercised.

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006

]



Report of the Directors

Pre-global Offering Share Option Scheme

On 1 June 2000, the Company also adopted a pre-global offering share option scheme (the
“Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme”). In order to synchronise the administration of the
options granted under the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme with the Share Option
Scheme, the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scherme was alsa amended on 13 May 2002.
The amended terms of the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme are substantially the

same as the Share Option Scheme stated above except that:

{1} The price of a share payable upon the exercise of an option shall be HK$15.42

(excluding the brokerage fee and Stock Exchange transaction levy),

{2) The period during which an option may be exercised commenced two years from the

date of grant of the options and ends 10 years from 22 June 2000; and
{3)  No further options can be grantad under the scheme.

Up to 31 December 2006, 24,178,000 share options had been granted and remain valid
under the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme of the Company, of which 789,600
options are being held by the directors. Please refer to the paragraph “Directors’ interests and

short positions in shares, and remuneration” herein below for details.

All of the options granted and outstanding as at 31 December 2006 are governed by the
amended terms of the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme as stated herein,

Up to 31 December 2006, no options granted under the Pre-Global Offering Share Option

Scheme have been exercised.

Financial Impact and Valuation of Share Options Granted

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 2 effective on 1 January 2005, the Group expenses the cost of
share options in the income statement. Under the transitional provisions set out in paragraph
53 of HKFRS 2, the Group is not required to apply HKFRS 2 to share options granted on or
before 7 November 2002. The cost of share options granted after 7 November 2002 and not
yet vested on 1 January 2005 was expensed retrospectively in the income statements of the
respective periods. The Group recognised share-based employee compensation costs based
on the estimated fair value of share options at the grant date by using the Black-Scholes

valuation model.

Please also refer to Note 29 to the financial statements for an additional description, financial

impact and valuation of the respective share option schemes.



Repurchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Shares of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2006, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

Substantial Interests and Short Positions in the Share Capital of
the Company

The following table sets out the interests and short positions of every person, other than a
director or chief executive of the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SF0") as at 31 December 2006:

Percentage of

Ordinary shares held Other total issued
Directly Indirectly interests held shares
(i  China United Telecommunications
Corporation (“Unicom Group”} ! — 9,725,000,020 — 75.69%
(i) China United Telecommunications
Corporation Limited
{(“A Share Company”) ' —  9,725,000,020 — 76.69%
(i)  China Unicomn (BVI) Limited 9,725,000,020 — - 765.69%
(“China Unicom {BVI)"} *
{(iv) SK Telecom Co., Ltd {"SK Telecom") 2 — — 899,745,075 7.10%

Notes:

1. Because of the fact that Unicom Group and A Share Company directly or indirectly control one-third
or more of the voting rights in the shareholders’ meetings of China Unicom (BVI), in accordance with
the SFQ, the interests of China Unicom (BVI) are deemed to be, and have therafore been included
in, the interests of Unicom Group and A Share Company.

2. SKTelecom has an interest in 889,745,075 shares in the Company’s issued shares by virtue of its
ownership of the convertible bonds issued by the Company. Please refer to Note 17 to the financial
statements for details of the convertible bonds,

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 December 2006 no person or corporation had any interest

or short position in the shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in the register

reguired to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.,

Please also refer to Note 15 to the financial statements for the shareholding position of the

Company’s shares as at 31 December 20086.
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Composition of the Board

The directors during the year werg:

Executive directors:

Chang Xiaobing (Chairman})

Shang Bing

Tong Jilu

Li Jianguo {appointed on 1 April 2006)

Yang Xiaowei {appointed on 1 April 2006)

Li Zhengmao (appointed on 1 April 2006)

Li Gang {appointed on 1 April 2006}

Zhang Junan {appointed on 1 April 2006)
: Li Qiuhong (resigned on 1 April 2006}

Lo Wing Yan, William {resigned on 1 April 2006}

Ye Fengping (resigned on 1 April 2006}

Non-executive directors:

Lu Jianguo {appointed on 1 April 2006)
Liu Yunjie {resigned on 1 April 2006)

Independent non-executive directors:

Wu Jinglian

Shan Weijian

Cheung Wing Lam, Linus

Wong Wai Ming (appointed on 19 January 2006)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Shang Bing, Ms. Li Jianguo, Mr. Yang
Xiaowei, Mr. Wu Jinglian and Mr. Shan Weijian are subject to re-election due to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The personal biographies
of the directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors™ on pages
12 to 16 of this annual report. Additional information to be disclosed by the proposed

| directors pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules is set out below for the shareholders’

consideration.




Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”, Mr. Shang Bing
does not have any other relationship with any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. As at 29 March 2007 (the “Latest Practicable
Date”), except for holding a total number of 1,688,400 share options granted under the
Company's share option schemes, Mr. Shang does not have any other interest in the shares

of the Campany within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ.

The terms of services agreed between Mr. Shang and the Company do not provide for a
specified length of service and do not expressly require the Company to give more than one
year's notice period or o make payments equivalent to more than one year's emoluments to
terminate the service. Mr. Shang is subject to retirement by rotation in annual general
meetings in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr. Shang will
receive a remuneration package including a basic salary of HK$92,310 per month plus a
housing allowance, as well as a discretionary bonus and discretionary grant of share options
as may be recommended by the Remuneration Committee of the Company and determined
by the Board with reference to his working performance. The remuneration of Mr, Shang has
been determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company, his
experience and the prevailing market conditions. Mr. Shang has confirmed that there is no
other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company

pursuant to rule 13.51{2) of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographica!l Details of Directors”, Ms. Li Jianguo
does not have any other relationship with any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. As at the Latesi Practicable Date, except for holding
a total number of 1,340,000 share options granted under the Company’s share option
schemes. Ms. Li does not have any other interest in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

The terms of services agreed between Ms. Li and the Company do not provide for a specified
length of service and do not expressly require the Company to give more than one year’s
notice pericd or to make payments equivalent to more than one year’s emoluments to
terminate the service. Ms. Li is subject to retirement by rotation in annual general meetings in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Ms. Li will receive a remuneration
package including a basic salary of HK$57,700 per month plus a housing allowance, as well
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as a discretionary bonus and discretionary grant of share options as may be recommended
by the Remuneration Committee of the Company and determined by the Board with reference
to her working performance. The remuneration of Ms. Li has been determined with reference
to her duties and responsibilities in the Company, her experience and the prevailing market
conditions. Ms. Li has confirmed that there is no other matter that needs to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company pursuant to rule 13.51{2) of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Biographical Details of Directors™,Mr. Yang Xiaowei
does not have any other relationship with any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, except for holding
a total number of 914,000 share options granted under the Comgany’s share option
schemes, Mr. Yang does not have any other interest in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

The terms of services agreed between Mr. Yang and the Company do not provide far a
specified length of service and do not exprassly require the Company to give more than one
year’s notice period or to make payments equivalent to more than one year's emoluments to
terminate the service. Mr. Yang is subject to retirement by rotation in annual general meetings
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. Mr. Yang will receive a
remuneration package including a basic salary of HK$57,700 per month plus a housing
allowance, as well as a discretionary bonus and discretionary grant of share options as may
be recommended by the Remuneration Committee of the Company and determined by the
Board with reference to his working performance. The remuneration of Mr. Yang has been
determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities in the Company, his experience
and the prevailing market conditions. Mr. Yang has confirmed that there is no other matter
that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company pursuant to rule
13.51(2) of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”, Mr. Wu Jinglian
does not have any other relationship with any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, except for holding
a total number of 876,000 share options granted under the Company’s share option
schemes, Mr, Wu does not have any other interest in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.




Mr. Wu has not entered into any directors’ service contract with the Company and there is no
term expressly provides for the Company to give more than one year’s notice period or to
make payments equivalent to more than one year’s emoluments to terminate the service.

Mr. Wu is subject to retirement by rotation in annual general meetings in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Mr. Wu will receive an annual {ee of HK$300,000 as
fees for being a non-executive director, an annual fee of HK$70,000 for being a member of
the Audit Committee as well as an annual fee of HK$40,000 for being the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Other than the aforesaid fees, Mr. Wu is not entitled to any bonus
or other emoluments. Mr. Wu has confirmed that there is no other matter that needs to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Biographical Details of Directors”, Mr. Shan Weijian
does not have any other relationship with any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, except for holding
a total number of 584,000 share options granted under the Company’s share option
schemes, Mr. Shan does not have any other interest in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFC.

Mr. Shan has not entered into any directors’ service contract with the Company and there is
no terrm expressly provides for the Company to give more than one year's notice pericd or to
make payments equivalent to more than one year's emoluments to terminate the service.

Mr. Shan is subject to retirement by rotation in annual general meetings in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. Mr. Shan will receive an annual fee of HK$300,000
as fees for being a non-executive director and an annual fee of HK$70,000 for being a
member of the Audit Committee. Other than the aforesaid fees, Mr. Shan is not entitled to any
bonus or other emoluments. Mr. Shan has confirmed that there is no other matter that needs
to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, and Remuneration

As at 31 December 2006, the interests and short positions of the directors and past directors
of the Company in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations {as defined in the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Companies were as {ollows:

_As at 31 December 2008, the following Directors of the Company held the following ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 of the Company:

Percentage

of total

Name of director Capacity Ordinary shares held issued shares
Li Zhengmao Beneficial owner (personal) 20,000 0.0002%
Cheung Wing Lam, Linus  Beneficial owner (personal) 200,000 0.0016%

As at 31 December 2006, the following directors, past directors and chief executive of the
Company held the following interests under the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme
and the Share Option Scheme:

15 Februzry 2006 635 - 40,000 - 000

Price per Share
Name of Date of to be Paid No. of Options No. of Optians No. of Opticns No. of Options Remuneration
Directors/ Capagity and Oplions onExerciseof  Outstanding as af Granted Exercised  Quistanding as at for Year 2006
past Directors Nature Granted* Options HKS) 1 January 2006 ' During 2006 During 2006° 31 December 2006 ' (RMB '000)
| Existing Directors
: Crang Haoding Berefcia owner 21 Deoomer 2004 620 2500 - - 526000 4571
{Persona) 15 February 2006 635 - 800,000 - 800,000
Shang Bing Beneficia) owner 22 June 2000 1542 204,400 - - 204,400 4m
(Personal) 10 July 2002 6.18 262,000 - - 292,000
21 May 2003 430 202,000 - 220,000 72,000
20y 2004 592 262,000 - - 292000
21 December 2004 £.20 128,000 - - 128,000
15 February 2006 6.3 - 700,000 - 700,000
Tong Ju Benefcid ownes 30 June 2001 1542 22,000 - - 292,000 400
{Persond) 10 Juy 2002 6.18 202,000 - - 262,000
21 May 2003 430 292,000 - 220,000 72000
0 Jry 2004 592 22,000 - - 292,000
15 February 2006 5% - 500,000 - 500,000
Beneho owner 21 May 2003 430 32,000 - - 32,000
[Spouse] 20 July 2004 592 32,000 - - 32,000



Price per Share

Marme of Date of to be Paid No. of Options No. of Options No. of Options No. of Qptions Ramuneration
Dicectors/ Capacity and Options onExecise of  Outstanding as at Granted Exacised  Ouistanding a5 & for Year 2006
past Directors Nature Granted* Options (HKS) 1 January 2006 During 2006 During 2006" 31 December 2006 (RME '000)
U Jiangue? Beneficial owner 30 June 2001 1542 292,000 - - 282,000 27%
(Personal) 10 by 2002 6.8 176,000 - - 176,000
21 May 2003 43 292,000 - 212,000 80,000
20 Juy 2004 592 292,000 - - 292,000
15 February 208 6.35 - 500,000 - 500,000
Yang Xaowe? Beneicd owner 10 July 2002 6.18 122,000 - - 122,000 2,686
{Personal) 21 May 2003 430 204000 - 204,000 -
20 Juty 2004 582 292,000 - - 202,000
15 February 2006 6.35 - 500,000 - 500,000
Li Zhengmat? Bengfcial owner 22 Jume 2000 15.42 292,600 - - 292,600 2,257
Personal) 10.July 2002 618 176,000 - - 176,000
2 Ny 008 430 100,00 - 1050 -
20 Juy 2004 5% 22,000 - - 292,000
15 February 2006 6.35 - 500,000 - 500,000
Li Gang? Beneficial owner 15 Febnaary 2006 6.3 - 500,000 - 500,000 1,791
{Persona)
ZFrang dunan? Bereficial owner 15 Febouary 2006 6.35 - 500,000 - 500,000 1,791
(Personal)
Lu Janquo? Boreficil owner 22 June 2000 1542 202,600 - - 202,600 1,525
(Personzh 10 Juiy 2002 6.18 292,000 - - 202,000
21 May 2003 K] 202,000 - 292,000 -
20 July 2004 592 292,000 - - 202,000
15 February 2006 £.35 - 500,000 - 500,000
W fngian Bengficid owner 10 Ay 2002 6.18 202,000 - - 22,000 420
{Personal) 21 May 2003 430 202,000 - - 262,000
20 Juty 2004 532 202,000 - - 262,000
Shan Wean Beneficial owner 21 May 2003 430 262,000 - - 292000 n
{Personz} 20 bty 2004 592 252,000 - - 202,000
Chiayng Wing Bencfcilowrer 20 July 2004 5% 262,000 - - 232,000 40
Lam, Linus {Persona)
Wong Wai Ming? Beneficidl ovmer - - - - - - 30
{Personal)
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Price per Share
Name of Date of to be Paid No. of Opticns No. of Cptions No. of Options No. of Opticns Remuneration
Directors/ Capacity and Oplions onExerciseof  Outstanding as at Granted Exervised  Ouistanding as at for Year 2006
past Directors Nalure Granted* Options (HKS) 1 January 2006 During 2006 ! During 2006' 31 December 2006 ' {RMB *000}
Past Directors
Li Qiuhong® Beneficidl owner 22 June 2000 15.42 204,400 - - WA 584
{Personal 10 Juy 2002 6.8 204000 - - WA
21 May 2003 430 204,000 - - N/A
20 July 2004 5.92 204,000 - - NA
15 February 2006 6.35 - 280,000 - NA
Lo Wing Yan, Bevefcial owner 21 May 2003 430 85,000 - - NiA 611
Wikar® (Personal 20 July 2004 592 262,000 - - N/A
15 Febnuary 2006 6.35 - 280,000 - NA
Y Fengping® Beneficial omer 30 Jung 2001 15.42 136,000 - - NiA 8
(Personal) 10 Juty 2002 B.18 132,000 - - WA
21 May 2008 8% 206,000 - - NiA
20.Juy 2004 582 262,000 - - NiA
15 February 2006 6.3 - 280,000 - 17
L Yne* Benficilowner 22 June 2000 15.42 22 600 - - /A 8
{Persona) 21 May 2003 430 292,000 - - N/A
200 Juty 2004 592 292,000 - - NA

Notes:
1 Each option gives the holder the right 1o subscribe for one share,

2 Mr. Wong Wai Ming was appointed as independent non-executive director on 19 January 20086.
Ms. Li Jianguo, Mr. Yang Xiaowei, Mr. Li Zhengmago, Mr. Li Gang and Mr. Zhang Junan were
appointed as executive directors on 1 April 2007. Mr. Lu Jianguo was appoinied as non-executive
director on 1 April 2008,

3. MrLi Qiuhong, Mr. Lo Wing Yan, William, and Mr. Ye Fengping resigned as executive directors on
1 April 2008. Mr. Liu Yunjie resigned as non-executive director on 1 April 2006,



4. Particulars of share options are as {ollows:

Date of options granted The pericd during which an option may be exercised

Options granted under the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme:

22 June 2000 22 June 2002 10 21 June 2010

Options granted under the Share Option Scheme:

30 June 2001 30 June 2001 to 22 June 2010

10 July 2002 10 July 2003 to 9 July 2008 (in respact of 40% of the options grantedy}
10 July 2004 to 9 July 2008 (in respect of 30% of the options granted)
10 July 2005 to & July 2008 (in respect of the remaining 30% of the options granted)

21 May 2003 21 May 2004 to 20 May 2009 (in respect of 40% of the options granted)
21 May 2005 to 20 May 2009 (in respect of 30% of the options granted)
21 May 2006 to 20 May 2009 (in respect of the remaining 30% of the options granted)

30 May 2003 21 May 2004 to 20 May 2009 (in respect of 40% of the options granted)
21 May 2005 to 20 May 2008 (in respect of 30% of the options granted)
21 May 2006 to 20 May 2009 (in respect of the remaining 30% of the options granted)

20 July 2004 20 July 2005 to 19 July 2010 (in respect of 40% of the options granted)
20 July 2006 to 19 July 2010 (in respect of 30% of the options granted}
20 July 2007 to 19 July 2010 {in respect of the remaining 30% of the cptions granted)

21 December 2004 21 December 2005 to 20 December 2010 (in respect of 40% of the options granted)
21 December 2006 to 20 December 2010 (in respect of 30% of the options granted)
21 December 2007 to 20 December 2010 (in respect of the remaining 30% of the options granted)

15 February 2006 15 February 2008 to 14 February 2012 (in respect of 50% of the options granted)
15 February 2009 to 14 February 2312 {in respect of the remaining 50% of the options granted)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during 2006 was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the directors or any of their
spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of the

acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Furthermore, apart from the foregoing, as at 31 December 2006, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures in the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the Ordinance.
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Directors’ Interest in Contracts and Service Contracts
Each of the existing executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company.

Save for the service contracts mentioned above, as at 31 December 2006, the Directors did
not have any material interests, whether directly or indirectly, in any contracts of significance

entered into by the Company.

None of those Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has an unexpired service contract which is not terminable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation {other than statutory compensation}.

Emoluments of the Directors and Senior Management

Please refer to the paragraph “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares, and
remuneration” and Note 25 to the financial statements for details of the emoluments of the

directors and senior management of the Company.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2006, the Company employed approximately 120 and 53,000 staff in
Hong Kong and China, respectively. Also, we employed approximately 60,000 temporary staff
in China. Employee benefit expenses were RMBE.65 billion (2005: RMBS.82 billion).

The Company endeavors to keep its employees’ remuneration in line with market trend and
being competitive. Employees' remuneration is determined in accordance with the Company's
remuneration and bonus system based on their performance. The Company also provides
comprehensive benefit packages and career development opportunities for its employees,
including retirement benefits, housing benefits, internal and external training programmes,

varying based on their individual needs.

The Company has share option schemes, under which the Company may grant share options

for subscribing for its shares to eligible staff.




Strategic Alliance Framework Agreement with SK Telecom and Issue
of Convertible Bonds

The Company entered into a Strategic Alliance Framework Agreement (“SAFA") with SK
Telecom on 20 June 2008, pursuant to which the Company and SK Telecom agreed to
cooperate on the further development of COMA cellular communications services in China.
The Company has agreed to appoint SK Telecom as the Company’s sole and exclusive
partner in relation to its CDMA cellular communications business operations in mainland
China for a maximum term of 18 months in the areas of CDMA handsets, value-added
services and related business platform, markets, information technology infrastructure and

network technologies.

At the same time, the Company has also entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) with SK Telecom, whereby SK Telecorn agreed to subscribe and
pay for the US dollar denominated bonds (the "Convertible Bonds™) to be issued at par by the
Company in an aggregate principal amount of US$1 billion. The three-year Convertible Bonds
bear zero interest, with a conversion price of HK$8.63 per share and a maturity date of 5 July
2009. Upan the fulfilment of the conditions set forth in the Subscription Agreement, the
Convertible Bonds were issued on 5 July 2006.

Cn 5 July 2008 ({the Put Option Date), each bondholder will have the right at such holder's
option, to require the Company to redeem all or some only of the Convertible Bonds of such
holder on the Put Option Date at 102.82% of the principal amount. Unless previously
redeemed, converted, or purchased and cancelled, the Conveartible Bonds will be redeemed
at 104.26% of its principal amount on 5 July 2009.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive directors his annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company

censiders all independent non-executive directors to be independent.

Corporate Governance Report

Report on the Company's corporate governance are set out in “Corporate Governance

Report” on pages 17 to 29,
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Material Legal Proceedings

We are not involved in any material litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings. So far
as we are aware, no such litigation, arbitration or administrative proceedings are pending or

threatened.,

Public Float

Based on the publicly available information and so far as Directors are aware, the Company
has maintained the specified amount of public float as required by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange during the year and as at the date of this report.

Donations

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately RMBS,970,000 million.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers were appointed as the auditors of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2006 and have audited the accompanying financial statements. A resolution will
be submitted by the Board of Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoapers as the Company’s auditors for the year
ending 31 December 2007.

By Order of the Board
Chang Xiacbing

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong,
29 March 2007



Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (the*Meeting”) of China Unicom Limited (the"Company”} will be
held on 11 May 2007 at 3:00 p.m. at Ballroom C, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hotel, Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road,
Central, Hong Kong for the following purposes:

As Ordinary Business:

1. To receive and consider the financial statements and the Reports of the Directors and of the Independent Auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2006.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 20086,

3. To elect and re-elect the Directors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration for the year ending 31
December 2007,

4. To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors, and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration for the
year ending 31 December 2007,

And as Special Business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
5. “THAT:

(@) subject to paragraphs (b} and (¢} below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company to purchase shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company
including any form of depositary receipts representing the right to receive such shares (“Shares”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) or any other stock exchange recognised for this
purpose by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange in accordance with
all applicable laws including the Code on Share Repurchases and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange as amended from time to time be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved:;

(b} the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which may be purchased or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be purchased by the Directors pursuant to the approval in paragraph {a) above shall not exceed 10 per cent of
the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing this
Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;

(¢} for the purpose of this Resolution:
“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until the earlier of:
{i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(i} the expiry of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by the

Company's articles of association {the "Articles of Association™) or the Companies Crdinance to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given to the Directors under this Resolution by ordinary resolution

of the Company's shareholders in general meeting.”
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6. "THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined)
of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional Shares and to make or grant offers,
agreemerits and options which might require the exercise of such powers be and are hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph {a) shall authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period to make ¢r grant offers,

agreements and options which might require the exercise of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted, issued and dealt with or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted, issued and dealt with (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a). otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue {as hereinafter defined),

(iiy the exercise of options granted under any share option scheme adopted by the Company or (i) any scrip
dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotrment of Shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on
Shares in accordance with the Articles of Association, shall not exceed the aggregate of (aa) 20 per cent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing this Resolution, plus
(bb) (if the Directors are so authorised by a separate ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company) the
aggregate nominal amount of share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company subseguent 1o the
passing of this Resolution (up to a maximum amount equivalent to 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing this Resolution), and the said approval shall be

limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:
"Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until the earlier of:
()  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(il  the expiry of the period within which the next annual generai meeting of the Company is required by the
Articles of Association or the Companies Ordinance to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of the authority given to the Directors under this Resolution by ordinary resolution

of the Company's shargholders in general mesting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the Directors to holders of Shares on the
register of members on a fixed recerd date in proportion to their then holdings of such Shares on such record
date {subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any legal or practical restrictions or obligations under the
laws of, or the requirements of, any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory applicable

to the Company) and an offer, allotment or issue of shares by way of rights shall be construed accordingly.”



7. “THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorised to exercise the powers of the Company referred to in paragraph (a)
of Resolution 6 in respect of the share capital of the Company referred to in sub-paragraph (bb) of paragraph (=) of

such resolution.”

8. “THAT the amendments to the rules of the Share Option Scheme and the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme
of the Company (the "Share Option Schemes") referred to in the circular to shareholders of the Company dated 19
April 2007 (the "Circular") and contained in the amended Share Option Schemes, a copy of which is avaitable for
inspection as detailed in the Circular and produced to the Meeting, be approved, subject to such modifications of
those amendments to the rules of the Share Option Schemes as the Directors of the Company may consider
neceassary 1o take into account the requirements of the Stock Exchange and that the Directors of the Company be
authorized to adopt the amendments to the rules of the Share Option Scheme and do all acts and things necessary to

carry such amendments and modifications (if any) into effect.”

9. “THAT the amendments to certain terms of options granted under the Share Option Schemes referred to in the
Circular be approved, subject to such modifications of those amendments to the terms of options granted under the
Share Option Scheme as the Directors of the Company may consider necessary to take into account the
requirements of the Stock Exchange and that the Directors of the Company be authorised to adopt the amendments
to the terms of options granted under the Share Option Schemes and do all acts and things necessary to carry such
amendments and modifications {if any) into effect.”

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises.

Executive Directors: Chang Xiaobing, Shang Bing, Tong Jilu, Li Jianguo, Yang Xiaowei,
Li Zhengmao, Li Gang, and Zhang Junan

Non-executive Director: Lu Jlanguo

Independent Non-executive Wu Jinglian, Shan Weijjian, Cheung Wing Lam, Linus, and Wong Wai Ming
Directors:

By order of the Board

Chu Ka Yee
Company Secretary

Hong Kong,
18 April 2007
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Notes:

1. Any member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one or not exceeding two proxies to attend and, on a
poll, vote in his siead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. Inorder to be valid, a form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a
notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at 75/F,, The Center, 89 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kang at least 48 hours before the time for holding the Meeting. Completion and return of a form of proxy will not
preclude a member from attending and voting in person if he is subsequently able to be present.

3. The Directors have recommended a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2006 of RMBO.18 per share and subject to the
passing of the Resolution 2 above, the dividend is expected to be paid in Hong Keng dollars around 8 June 2007 to those
shareholders whose names appear on the Company's register of shareholders on 11 May 2007.

4,  The Register of the shareholders will be closed from 9 May 2007 to 11 May 2007 {(both days inclusive), during which dates no
transfer of shares oi the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed fina!l dividend, all transfers, accompanied by
the relevant certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centra, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on B8 May 2007.

5.  In relation to the Ordinary Resolution set out in item 5 of the Notice, the Directors wish to state that they will exercise the powers
conferred thereby to repurchase Shares in circumstances which they deem appropriate or for the benefit of the shareholders. The
Explanatory Statement containing the information necessary to enable the shareholders to make an informed decision on whether to
vote for or against the resolution te approve the repurchase by the Company of its own Shares, as required by the Listing Rules, will
be set out in a separate letter from the Company to be enclosed with the 2006 annual report.

6. The votes to be taken at the Meeting will be taken by poll, the results of which will be anncunced after the Meeting. Under the
Articles of Association, a poll can be demanded by: (i) the Chairman of the Meeting; or {ii} at least three shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders") present in perscn (or if the Sharehoider is a corporate, present by its duly authorised representative} or by proxy
and entitled to vota at the Meeting; or (i) any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person (or if the Shareholder is a corporate,
present by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy and representing in aggregate not less than one-tenth of the totat voting
rights of all Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at the Meeting; or (iv) any Shareholder or Shareholders present in
person {or if the Shareholder is a corporate, present by its duly authorised representative) cr by proxy and holding shares conferring
a right to attend and vote at the Meeting on which there have been paid up sums in the aggregate equal to not less than one-tenth
of the total sum paid on all shares conferring that right.




Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA UNICOM LIMITED
{incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Unicom Limited [the “Company”) and its subsidiaries:
{together, the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 170, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 December 2006, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in eguity, and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsinility for the financizl statements

The directors of the Gompany are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reascnable in the circumstances.

Augcitor’'s rasoonsioility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Crdinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assurng responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirernents and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of matsrial
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit atso includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We beligve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Oainion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2006 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
29 March 2007
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2006
(All amounts in Renminbi {*RMB"} thousands)

As at 31 December

Note 2006 2005
ASSETS
Non curre-; ass'et; B - N o o o - - -
P;openy. ;Iant an@;mpme—n_t T B B —6— 36 o 111,381,505 7 115;7’73.285_-
-éz)odwm“ - o k - __7 o 3,143,983 B 3,143,983
— 6318; assét_s - . 8 36 o 11,176,569 11 501 ?30_
[;;»ferred |n_come_a -tax_assets_r ) o N N 9 o 309,668 335.234
126,011,725 127,354,232
Current assets
‘Ir:v—e‘ntorlw(;“ I S 7;0 o 2.333,902— - _2— ;0? 81 2 )
;ccount;;t;celvablg -n;t S B o o V717 1 o 3,419,343 - 4 548 429
“Prepayments and ofher curent assets 12 1,988,019 2,342,467
‘Amoums due from ;Iated ;;\:tgas o o T “3L3 1 o 168,548 7 384 531
jkmiountsg;; ;rorﬁ)omesglg_c-amer;— I __35; o 138,521 o 138 485
Sh‘ort te;n—bank deposits S S 13 o 195.S20 B _282 457
ﬁCash aﬁd “cas-h equn-ralentsn— R S -__14- o 12,182.71707&;-‘47 f:ﬂ:n 576
20,426,261 15,275,757
Total assets 146,437,986 142,629,989
EQUITY
Capital and_r;eserve's_attrlbu—ta_.ial-e tc;_t;a Cc;r;;e;ny 'S eq;t; 7h_oErs- o - ) 7 i
7S;1a;re capltal_ - o o o __;5 o 1,344,440 @5‘6_2:_
MS—hare premlurn B - o o o ) 15 o 53,222,976 7&‘32_661 -S-1-4_
—I;eserves_ T - T 73.554,930 2-8_27 331
_S_;t‘amedi;;rofns h - T o
- F’ropze;:i fnal ;deend—_- S - —31 - 2,282,578 7 1?.?;85.169_
- Othe_r; o 7 S 19,003,893 718.13S,21O
79,408,817 76,284,345
Minority interest 22(a} 2,841 2,734
79,411,658 76,287,079

Total equity




As at 31 December

Note 2006 2005

LIABILITIES

Non- cu;ré-n;lla_l;|let;es S - o i
Long-té;n:b'a—rﬂ;—l-oé:lé - . 16 - 4,139,349 1i.€iéi,f;1é
Conveﬁ;;[é L)onds - T 17 - 1(524 949 7 7 —
Obligations under finance leases 18 10200 145,367
Defer‘reac;;me tax Ilablhn_; S Q; S 5,879 - 5—g1_3_
Defer:ed_rev-eAnue_ i R I 2,243,384 - 3,3 i48-2.3_£-

16,723,791 15,480,730

Current liabilities
Payablesie;nd accrl.;e‘d I|ab_|||_t;_ T T _1“9 o 26,290,074 - 18.\)26 (3:28
Té;(e—s payaE)I;egi 7 o T T 1,632,195 7 1,()16,128
Amouﬁt-s_due to lj:;ncom 7(:‘-rc7)up7 o - 53.1 S 45,081 38.0§4_
Arr_10ur1TsEU_e to related parTe?~ I 3 3.1A o - 325,308 o 1—6;52_1_
AmOL-,Ir;t-S_(;L_Je to Domestn-(_: Ee;r;c;g S - _3-3.2“ - 850,975 ) 82—2-(56”
Shor‘; t“e";nm ;onds S S 20 - 7,087,217 - 9 865 900
Shorl term bank Ioans I 7 - é1 - 7—7 7,024:35-2;
Current—p;rtlon of long- terr;\wsér;k loans o A o 16 - 3,984,350 5,745,190

- Curré;t_ p_o_mon of obl;g;_a&;;d‘e_r f|r_13nc;a IEE;S_{;S— . - 18 N _-—___9—!—3:;&3— o 420?33;_
Advances from customess g M 7,886604

50,302,537 50,862,180

Total liabilities 67,026,328 66,342,910

Total equity and liabilities 146,437,986 142,629,989

Net current liabilities (29,876,276} (35,586,423)

Total assets less current liabilities 96,135,449 91,767,809

The notes on pages 84 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2007 and signed on behalf of the Board by

Chang Xlaobmg Tong Jilu

Director Director

China Unicom Limited Annual Rezport 2006




Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2006
{All amounts in RMB thousands)

As at 31 December

Note 2006 2005
ASSETS
Non cu.:rr;;t assets o i 7 o o 7
Inves;nent in subsrgjlarles__w o - o é_z;(a) ) 55,341 ,0;7 7 523_341-(-)26-5
Propedy, pent and equipment 6 38646 43,660
Loa—r;to_submdlanes o - o _2_2_(_b) N 11,703,499 N —5;4_9._.1—62
67,083,171 61,033,848
Current assets
Pl:ep;l;ri‘r:l;nits and other ;;urrent assets o - N 1é N 10,95? - ?0"366
- Amounté dug fror—ﬁ Unlcc;r;aﬁr;p: - o _S—BT_W 22 - 1_56
A}n;dr;s_(;ﬂ;a‘from a subsudu;rygAu— S - _E:;(-c-} 169,889 | _215—397
Dividend re_c-e;vable B T 3,200,000 - 32_8_0600
S_h-ort tern:l bank deposn; - o 717 3 7 187,449 - __—80_752
Cashend cash equivalents 14 020001 299,744
4,488,351 3,732,865
Total assets 71,571,522 64,766,713
EQUITY
Capltal;;u; réserve attrtbutab; ;o th_e_éom;aanys equlty holders - o
 Share captal - - s 1344440 10333621
- Sgra_re_pre-mium S - o r1_5 7 53,222,976 52.6-3_0—1-,014
Reserves I 264,173 215,361
Ret;ned profits ‘ - - - - -
‘ :_P;t-)—p—o;;ed f|na! dlwdeng__ o - - "51 o 2,282,578 1.58?3,16;97
) _—F(:)_tl:lers o S 85,201 ) 1.?09,952_
Total equity 57,199,368 57,243,117




As at 31 December

Note 2006 2005

LIABILITIES
I'ién-curr:e;t liabilities o v B o _ -
nLong-term bank lc;aﬁs o i - o o 173- - 77_—13;0‘4.349 ) 4,035,116
- Conver;i—blé bondsW o o . S 1-;_ - T0:324,949 o -
14,229,298 4,035,116
Current liabilities
VF’ayabIesiand acc;u"ea Iiabiii;;s:-s ) o o h -15; - 68,071 - o 62.07§
Amountsit;jue to stjt;sidiari;as" S 7 ) - 22(_0) - 74,7? 90,658
“Short-term bankloans a2 - ir2tew
Current r;'ortion of_lo‘ng-ter% ijank Ioe;n_; o 7 - 1_6 - - 7,614.646_57
142,856 3,488,480
Total liabilities 14,372,154 7,523,696
Total equity and liabilities 71,571,522 64,766,713

The notes on pages 84 1o 170 are an integral part of this financial statement.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2007 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

|
|
|
Director Director
China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006

Chang Xiaobing Tong Jilu




Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006

{All amounts in RMB thousands, except per share data)

Year ended 31 December

Note 20086 2005
Revenue (T urnover)
GSM Busnness S o o SE_’: E33 o 59,290,421 - 52 135,528
CDMA Busmess ) ) - - 5, 23 33 - 27,293,142 _ 27:;6— 536
Data and lntemevt l;usmess o o o _ 5 23 33 - 7772,?75;;6_ o 3 0;!_3—;)6—?
LonngTstance Busmess o o S N 553 33 o 1,068:@‘— N 1 524 5?3
Total service revenue 90,027,301 84,287,004
Sales of telecommunications products 5,23, 33 4,267,192 2,761,827
Total revenue 5,23 94,294,493 87,048,831
Leased lings and network capacmes 24,33 (8,763,865) (8,74?,31 7)
lnlercor;lectlon charges o o N - ’E— (9,595.6é2) ] (8,372,370)
Deprecaa;on and amortisation - o ] _54 o (22,422,812) o (20, 351;)
Employ;; b;eneﬁt e‘x;;enses - o o o 25 26 27 (6,648,693 - (5.6%.-312)
Selling and marketl—nwg‘ o S - o 2;-1 _53 - (1 9.25:17,:!04) 7 {20,557 878).
Genera! adrnmlstratlve and other e;nens_e:r o . ‘ 2?33 o (13,415,568) {11 ,7; ._560)7
Cost of_tgldcvommunncanons products sad_' ) B - _ 2_4,_35 o {4,929,988) (3,575, 316)-
Fmancea)‘s-ts _ o . N ‘ u2u4 - -_—__—(654;«120)— -(1 099.321 )”
Interest Fcome o 7 o o T 259,040 a g(; 56
Other édins - net h - o . S 21,353 34 925
8,892,408 7,101,697
Unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative
component of convertible bonds 17 (2,396,592) -
Profit before income tax 6,495,816 7,101,697
Income tax expenses 9 (2,763,885) (2,170,411)
Profit for the year 3,731,931 4,931,286
Attributable to:
Eqmty holders of the Company_- ) N B 7 3,731,824 4,931_.052
Munority mterest_ ) o o I ] 107 N B 2734
3,731,931 4,931,286
Proposed final dividend 31 2,282,578 1,383,169
Dividend paid during the year AN 1,384,146 1,256,924




Year ended 31 December

) N L Note 2006 2005
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the
equity hotders of the Company during the year

Basic earnings per share (RMB}) 30 0.296 0.392

Diluted earnings per share (RMB) 30 0.295 0.391

Number of shares ouistanding for basic earnings (in thousands) 30 12,599,018 12,570,398

Number of shares cutstanding for diluted earnings (in thousands) 30 12,649,306 12,607,476

Basic earnings per ADS (RMB) 30 2.962 3.923

Diluted earnings per ADS (RMB) 30 2.950 3.911

Number of ADS outstanding for basic earnings (in thousands) 30 1,259,902 1,257,040
30 1,264,931 1,260,748

Number of ADS outstanding for diluted earnings (in thousands)

The notes on pages 84 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2006
(Al amounts in RMB thousands)

The Group
Employee
share-based
Share Share compensation Revaluation  Statutory  Retained Minority Total
capital premiurm reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity
Balance at 1 January 2005 1,332,487 52,546,294 110,664 176,853 1,971,778 16,311,590 72,449,666 - 72,449,666
Profit for the year - - - - — 4931052 4,931,052 234 4,931,286
Subscription of shares of
a subsidiary by minarity
shargholder (Note 22(aj} - - - - - - - 2,500 2,500
Employee share option scheme:
- Value of employee senvices - - 108,417 - - - 108,417 - 108,417
- Recognition of shares issued
on exercise of oplions (Note 29} 1,134 54,720 (3,720) - - - 52,134 - 52,134
Appropriation to statutcry
reserve (Note 28} - - - - 463,339 {463,339} - - -
Dividends relating 1o 2004 (Note 31) — - - - — {1,256,824) (1,256,924) - {1,256,924)
Balance at 31 December 2005 1,333,621 52,601,014 215,361 176,853 2,435,117 19,522,379 76,284,345 2,134 76,287,079
Profit {or the year - - - - — 3,731,824 3,731,824 107 3,731,931
Revaluation of buildings - gross {(Note 6} - - - 200,330 - 200,330 - 200,330
Revaluation of buildings - tax (Note 6) - - - (105,129) - - {105,129) - 1105,129)
Employee share option scheme:
- Value of employee senvices - - 146,284 - - - 146,204 - 146,294
- Recognition of shares issued on
exercise of opticns (Note 29) 10,619 621,962 (67,482) - - - 535,299 - 535,299
Appropriation to statutory
reserve (Note 28) - - - - 583,586  (583,586) - - -
Dividends relating to 2005 (Note 31) - - - - —  (1,384,148) {1,384,146) —  {1,384,146)
Balance at 31 December 2006 1,344,440 53,222,976 264,173 272,054 3,018,703 21,286,471 75,408,817 2,841 76,411,658




€1

The Company

Employee
share-based
Share Share compensation Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total equity
Balance at 1 January 2005 1,332,487 52,546,294 110,664 1,219,763 55,209,208
Profit for the year - - — 3,130,282 3,130,282
Employee share option scheme:
- Value of employee services - — 108,417 - 108,417
- Recognition of shares issued on exercise
of options (Note 29) 1,134 54,720 (3,720} - 52,134
Dividends relating to 2004 {Note 31) — - - (1,256,924) (1,256,924}
Balance at 31 Decembar 2005 1,333,621 52,601,014 215,361 3,093,121 57,243,117
Profit for the year -_— — - 658,804 658,804
Employee share option scheme:
- Value of employee services — — 146,294 — 146,204
— Recognition of shares issued on exercise
of options (Nate 29) 10,819 621,962 (97,482) — 535,299
Dividends relating to 2005 (Note 31) - — - (1,384,146) (1,384,146}
Batance at 31 December 2006 1,344,440 53,222,976 264,173 2,367,779 57,199,368

The notes on pages 84 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006
(All amounts in RMB thousands)

Year ended 31 December

Note 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operatlons ) o o o (a) ) m738 522, 31(; o 33 974 778
- Interes’( received o - o 248,924 B 7 7795 7317
Interest paid I o o o ) f77(1,206,93éi ) (1,?92,398)
Tax pald o o _ a _ - . _—{2,113,147)_ ﬁ(i,‘df-%t’i,;iQB}
Net cash generated from operating activities 35,451,157 30,803,688
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (16744,789)  (16,643,005)
Proceede from sale oi;r-operiy.rr;ﬁnt and?atquupment - o ] 59,341 o 91 861
Decrease in shon term bank 63305.:5' o o o o - - ABE,_GE-THU -3_75-) 568
Purc-:-hase of other assets o i} - - o T (738.5(7)07)4 (576 755)
Net cash used in investing activities (17,337,311) (16,748,341)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from exermse of share optnons_—- I T o o 535,29_9— S “-5_2-134'
Proceeds from munont—y_unteres:)ia subel_ciiar; - 7 o S
in respect of share capltal contribution - 2,500
Prc;c-eeds froin short- term bonds o B o S _m-s 949, 766 - 9,6970:800
Pr-o-c—eeds frern .short term bank Ioans - o - o 12_1;50?00 - 12.532,071
Proceeds from long-term bank loans o - 1,345,050 5,798,657
Proceeds from |ssuance of CC;I';IG_ITIUB b(ﬁjs ______ N o 7,993,500 R
Repayment of short-term bonds S (07318000 —
Repayment of short-term bank loans (8.905,858) (20,104, 146)
Fiepayment of Iong term bank |c5;r7§ S - o {10,348,059) - (19, 925-3 A416)
Dividends paid - (1,384,146) (1,256,924
Net cash used in financing activities (11,403,314) (13,213,324)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,710,532 842,023
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 5,471,576 4,629,553
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 14 12,182,108 5,471,576
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equwalents
Cash balances S 4,458 " 9ate
Ba-n; balances i . B o o o o o 12i1ﬁ};767570 o 5,462,257
12,182,108 5,471,576




88

(@)

(0}

The reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from operations was as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2006 2005
Profit before income tax 6,495,816 7 01 697
Adjustmentsfor: . ' ' A
Depreciation and amortisation 7 7 22422812 20,368,181
—Rm—or‘usatlon of customer acqmsntnon costs of contractual CDMA subscnbers 7 741565,253 o 5,9_4-7. 631
" Interest income © (259040) (96,196
_Interest'expense S ' 7 ‘-__Tm— ) ——%_660 271
- Loss on dlsposat of proper‘(y, plant and equrpment W ' ﬁ 7771;1;,764;” 7 25 134
.‘ _S'nare based compensauon costs - 146,294 - iOB 417
Provusmn for doubtful debts B —WTTTIZHBT; - ;[98;310
Unreahsed loss en changes in fair value of derlvative I -
compenent of convertible bonds 2,396,592 —
Cnenge‘s]n Wdrl&rg capltal S - o I
Increase in accounts recervabre 7 - - - EE,—G}_Q{ o ?3_1 6_9_595
(Increase)/decrease in |nventorles - I —_(—2—2—(;:656)_" _ -17)66_82_0‘
* Increase in otner assets - T (748,235 (2 38 580]_
Increase in prepayments and other current assets A A ___-—(451 »215) ) (477 665)
m(l-ngrease)/decrease in amounts due from Domest|c Carrters ' - (36) |—31_,ZS4
Decrease in amounts due from Un!com Group i I I 6‘17461
) aaerease/{rner—e-ase) in amounts due from related parlles - _ - _2_1-5_955_“ o (Igi lrsé)
Vﬁre;se in ;)_a;/atrles mand accrued !rabtlrtres o _ o 2,354,762 o 7;04 410
;Increase in advances from customers - o ém:;__“ ] _1;5"1-é29
Decrease in deferred revenue S (1,104,848)  (492.261)
_Inc;a;/(de_cga_sei in a'rugunte due te Bo‘mestlc Carrters . ' 28,969 (‘I26,568_)-
Ewdrease in am_dunts due to Unlcorn Group o o 7 o 6,987 o 38,654—
- inerea_se in amounts due to relet—ed pamee - o o 208,687 o 110.86-1_
Cash generated from operations 38,522,310 33,974,778

Supplemental information:

Payables to equipment suppliers for construction-in-progress during 2006 increased by approximately RMB5.0 billion
(2005: increased by approximately RMB633 million).

The notes on pages 84 to 170 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

-
.

CRGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Unicom Limited (the "Company"} was incorporated as a limited liability company in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region ("Hong Kong”), the Peopte’s Republic of China {the "PRC”} on 8 February 2000. The principal
activities of the Company are investment hoiding and the Company's subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of GSM and CDMA ceflular, long distance, data and Internet services in the PRC. The GSM and CDMA
business hereinafter collectively refer to as the "Cellular Business”. The Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter
referred to as the “Group”. The address of its registered office is 75th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (*SEHK") on 22 June 2000 and
the American Depositary Shares of the Company were listed on the New York Stock Exchange on 21 June 2000.

The immediate holding company of the Company is China Unicom (BV) Limited (“Unicom BVI"). The majcrity of the
equity interests in Unicom BVl is owned by China United Telecommunications Corporation Limited (“A Share
Company”, a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC on 31 December 2001, with its A shares listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 9 October 2002). The majority of the equity interest in A Share Company is owned by
China United Telecommunications Corporation (a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC, hersinafter referred
to as "Unicom Group”). The directors of the Company consider Unicom Group to be the ultimate holding company.

SUMMARY C= SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCOLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified by the
revaluation of buildings, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss. They have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS™ issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). These
accounting standards differ from that used in the preparation of statutory financial statements for PRC statutory
reporting purposes, which are based on the accounting principles and financial regulations applicable to
enterprises established in the PRC ("PRC GAAP").




2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continu-g)

2.1 Basis of Preparation {continueq)

The principal adjustments made to conform to HKFRS include the following:

reversal of revaluation surplus and related depreciation and amortisation charges arising from the revaluation
of assets performed by independent valuers for the purpose of reporting to relevant PRC government
authorities;

additional capitalisation of borrowing costs;

capitalisation of the direct costs associated with the acquisition of subsidiaries;

recognition of employee share-based compensation costs;

revarsal of goodwill amortisation and recognition of negative goodwill in opening retained earnings;

separation of the conversicn option of convertible bonds from the host debt contract and accounting for as a

derivative component at fair value through profit or loss;

capitalisation and amortisation of upfront non-refundable revenue and the related direct incremental costs for
activating cellutar subscribers; and

provision for deferred taxation on HKFRS adjustments.

As at 31 December 2006, the current liabilities of the Group had exceeded the current assets by approxirnately

RMB29.9 billion {2005: RMB35.6 billion}. Taking into account of available sources of financing and continuous net
cash inflows from operating activities, the Group has sufficient funds to meet its working capital requirements and
debt obligations. As a resutt, the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2006 have been prepared under the going concern basis.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where

assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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88 | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING PQLICIES (contnuzg)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)

{a)

Amendments, new standards and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group

HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007). HKFRS 7 introduces new disclosures relating to financial instruments. This standard
does not have any impact on the classification and valuation of the Group’s financial instruments;

HKFRS 8, Operating segments (effective for annuat periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009).
HKFRS 8 sets out requirements for disclosure of information about an entity’s operating segments and
also about the entity's products and services, the geographical areas in which it operates and its major
customers, This standard does not have any impact on the classification and presentation of the
Group's consolidated financial statements;

Amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements - Capital Disclosure {effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007). The amendment introduces new disclosuras for
managing capital. This amendment does not have any impact on the classification and presentation of
the Group's consolidated financial statements;

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, Scope of HKFRS 2 {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006).
HK({IFRIC)-Int 8 requires consideration of transactions involving the issuance of equity instruments -
where the identifiable consideration received is less than the fair value of the eqguity instruments issued -
to establish whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS 2. HK{IFRIC)-Int 8 does not have any
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements;

HK({IFRIC)-Int 9, Reassessment of embedded derivatives (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 June 2006). HK({IFRIC)-Int 9 requires an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative is
required to be separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative when the entity first
becomes a party to the contract. Subsequent reassessment is prohibited unless there is a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required
under the contract, in which case reassessment is required. As the Group's entities have not changed
the terms of their contracts, HK({IFRIC}-Int 9 does not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements;

HK(FRIC}-Int 10, Interim financial reporting and impairment (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 November 2006). HK{IFRIC}-Int 10 prohibits the impairment losses recognised in an interim period
on goodwill, investments in equity instruments and investments in financial assets carried at cost to be
reversed at a subsequent balance sheet date. The Group will apply HK{IFRIC)-Int 10 from 1 January 2007,
but it is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements; and




2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES wamtruva

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)

{a) Amendments, new standards and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group (continued)

HK({FRIC)-Int 11, Group and treasury share transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 March 2007). HK{IFRIC)-Int 11 requires a share-based payment arrangement in which an entity
receives goods or services as consideration for its own equity-instruments to be accounted for as an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, regardless of how the equity instruments needed are
obtained. HK(FRIC)-Int 11 also provides guidance on whether share-based payment arrangements, in
which suppliers of goods or services of an entity are provided with equity instruments of the entity’s
parent, should be accounted for as cash-settled or equity-settled in the entity’s financial statements.
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 is not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

(b} Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and not relevant for the Group's operations

HK({IFRIC)-Int 7, Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29, Financial reporting in
hyperinflationary economies {(effective from 1 March 2006}. HK(IFRIC}-Int 7 provides guidance or: how to
apply requirements of HKAS 29 in a reporting period in which an entity identifies the existence of
hyperinflation in the economy of its functional currency, when the economy was not hyperinflationary in
the prior period. As none of the group entities have a currency of a hyperinflationary economy as its
functional currency, HK{IFRIC)-Int 7 is not relevant to the Group’s operations; and

HK({IFRIC}-Int 12, Service concession arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008}. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 provides guidance on the accounting by operators for public-to-private
service concession arrangements. As the Group does not have any public-to-private service concession
arrangements, HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 is not relevant to the Group's operations.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made

up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities} over which the Group has the power to govern the

financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered

when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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2. SUMMAZRY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ot )

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assurned at the date of exchange, plus costs diractly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost
of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries would be changed when necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the portion of the net assets of subsidiarigs attributable to
interests that are not owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are presented in
the consolidated balance sheets and statements of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statements as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between
minority interests and the equity holders of the Company.

Where tosses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and
any further losses applicable to the minerity, are charged against the Group's interest except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If the
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group's interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.



2. SUMMAZY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuwa)

2.3 Segment Reporting

2.4

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. The Group has not
presented geographical segments as the Group operates primarily in one geographical segment. This is also
censistent with the Group’s internal financial reporting.

Unallocated costs primarily represent corpaorate expenses, income tax expense and unrealised loss on changes in
fair value of derivative component of convertible bonds, whilst unallocated income represents interest income that
cannot be identified to difierent operating segments. Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
eguipment, other assets, prepayments, inventories, receivables and operating cash. Segment liabilities primarily
comprise operating liabilities. Capital expenditure mainly comprises additions to property, plant and equiprnent.

Foreign Currency Translation

{8) Functional and presentation currency

Itemns included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entities operate {'the functional currency”). The consclidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (*“RMB"), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

{b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES (contrum

2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings are stated at valuation. Independent valuations are performed periodically with the last valuation being
performed on values as of 31 August 2006. In the intervening years, the directors review the carrying value of
buildings and adjustment is made where in the directors’ opinion there has been a material change in value. Any
increase in the values of the buildings is credited to the revaluation reserve; any decrease is first offset against the
increase on earlier valuations recarded in the revaluation reserve, in respect of the same asset and is thereafter
charged to the income statement. Upon the disposal of revalued buildings, the realised portion of the revaluation
reserve is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Other property, plant and eguipment, comprising leasehold improvements, plant, telecommunications equipment,
office furniture, fixtures and others are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable at the time they incurred that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs
or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Depreciable life Residual rate
Buildings 10 - 40 years 3%
Telecommunications eguipment 3-15 years 3%

Office furniture, fixtures and others 5~ 15 years 3%
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2. SUNMMARY OF SIGN.FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES wcartimz)

2.5

2.6

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives and the lease periods,
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP") reprasents buildings, plant and equipment under construction and pending
installation, and is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Costs include construction and acquisition
costs, and interest charges arising from borrowings used to finance the assets during the construction period. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until such time as the assets are completed and
ready for use.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

The gain or loss on disposal of a property, plant or equipment is the differences between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the income statement. Any revaluation reserve
balance remaining attributable to the relevant asset is transferred to retained earnings and is shown as a
movement in réserves.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gain or
loss on the disposal of an entity includes the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The Group has allocated goodwill to the GSM Business and the CDMA
Business which it operates (Note 2.8).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES tcontinue)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Other Assets

Other assets mainly represent (i) capitalised direct incremental costs for activating GSM and CDMA subscribers;
{ii} customer acquisition costs under contractual CDMA subscriber packages, (i) computer software; (iv) prepaid
rentals for premises and leased lines; and (v} prepayment for lease of land.

Capitalised direct incremental costs for activating GSM and CDMA subscribers, including costs of SIM/UIM cards
and commissions which are directly associated with upfront non-refundable revenue received upon activation of
cellular services, are amortised over the expected customer service periods. The expected customer service
periods are estimated based on the expected stabilised churn rates of subscribers.

Customer acquisition costs under contractual CDMA subscriber packages represent the cost of COMA handsets
given to contractual subscribers under special promotional packages. Such customer acquisition costs, to the
extent recoverable, are amortised over the contractual period {not exceeding 2 years) during which the minimum
contract revenue is expected to flow to the Group. Customer acquisition costs of contractual COMA subscribers
are included in “prepayment and other current assets” when the customer contract is within 1 year of expiry,
whereas they are recorded as "other assets” when the unexpired contract period is over 1 year.

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives.

Long-term prepaid rental for premises and leased lines are amortised using a straight-line method over the lease
period.

Long-term prepayments for lease of land are amortised over the period of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Impairment of Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested for impairment at each balance sheet date. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered from
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories, which principally comprise handsets, SIM cards, UIM cards and accessories, are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the weighted average method and comprises all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.
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2.

SUVMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC!ES contit: o)

2.10 Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are recognised at fair value, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of accounts receivable and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of a provision account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the provision account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to the income statement.

2.11 Short-term Bank Deposits

Short-term bank deposits are cash invested in fixed-term deposits with ariginal maturities ranging from mare than
3 months to 1 year.

2.12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investrments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Convertible Bonds

As the functional currency of the Group is RMB, the conversion of the convertible bonds denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars will not result in settlement by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash in BMB, the functional
currency of the Group, for a fixed number of the Company's shares. In accordance with the requirements of
HKAS 39, Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement, the convertible bond contract must be
separaied intc two component elements: a derivative component consisting of the conversion option anc a
liability component consisting of the straight debt element of the bonds.

On the issue of the convertibie bonds, the fair value of the embedded conversion option was calculated using the
Binomial model. The derivative component, the embedded conversion option, is carried at fair value on the
balance sheet with any changes in fair value being charged or credited to the income statement in the period
when the change occurs. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to debt elemant of the bands, net of
transaction costs, and is recorded as the liability component. The fiability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost until extinguished on conversion or redemption. Interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method by applying the effective interest rate to the liahility component through the maturity date.

If the convertible bonds are converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative and liability components are
transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for the shares issued. I the convertible bonds are
redeemed, any difference between the amount paid and the carrying amounts of both components is recognised
in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 20_CIES wotrug

2.14 Deferred Revenue and Advances from Customers

{a)

(o)

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue reprasents upfront non-refundable revenue, including connection fee and receipts from
activation of SIM/UIM cards relating to GSM and CDMA businesses, which are deferred and recognised over
the expected service period.

Advances from customers

Advances from customers are amounts paid by customers for GSM and CDMA prepaid cards, GSM and
CDMA prepaid service fees, Internet protocol (“IP”) telephone cards and other calling cards which cover
future telecommunications services {over a period of one to twetve months). Advances from customers are
stated at the amount of proceeds received less the amount already recognised as revenues upon the
rendering of services.

2.15 Employee Benefits

(a)

Retirement benefits

For defined contribution plan, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatery, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee beneiit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a reduction
in the future payments is available.

Housing benefits

The Group’s contributions to the housing fund, special monetary housing benefits and other housing benefits
are expensed as incurred.

Share-based compensation costs

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the share options is recognised as an expense. The {otal
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the share
opticns granted excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions {for example, revenue and profit
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of share
options that are expected to become exercisable. The Group recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital {nominal
value} and share prermium when the share options are exercised.



2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contiu )

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has present legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events,

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been

reliably estimated. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in

settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the

likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be smaill.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the pre-tax amount of expenditures expected to be requirad to

settle the obligation that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to

the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.17 Revenue Recognition

(a) Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the services and sales of

telecommunications products in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of

business tax, government surcharges, returns and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a transaction wiill flow

to the Group and when the revenue and cost can be measured reliably, on the following basis:

usage fees are recognised when the service is rendered;
monthly fees are recognised as revenue in the month during which the services are rendered;

revenue from telephone cards, which represent service fees received from customers for telephone
services, is recognised when the related service is rendered upon actual usage of the telephone cards
by customers;

leased lines and indefeasible rights of use ("IRU") are treated as operating leases with rental income
recognised on a straight-ling basis over the lease term, except for the lease of specific and identified
network assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership to the
lessee, which is recognised as capacity sales;

valued-added services revenue which mainly represents revenue from the provision of services slch as
short message, cool ringtone, COMA1X wirgless data services and secretarial services to subscribers
are recognised when service is rendered; and

sales of telecommunications products, which mainly represent handsets and accessories, are
recognised when title has been passed to the buyers.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING 2OLICIES erta u

2.17 Revenue Recognition (continued)

(b)

(@

Interest income

Interest income from deposits in banks or other financial institutions is recognised on a time propaortion basis,
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the rights to receive payment is established.

2.18 Leases (as the lessee)

(@

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a straight-fine basis over the period of the lease.

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the liability balance
outstanding. The correspanding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under finance
leases. The interest element implicits in the lease payment is recognised in the income statement over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

2.19 Costs under Subscriber Point Reward Program

The estimated costs of providing telecommunications services or providing non-cash gifts under the subscriber

point reward program are calculated based on the value of bonus points awarded to subscribers and are

recognised as selling and marketing expenses when subscribers accumulate bonus points. The value of a bonus
point and the criteria for awarding bonus points are established by the Group at the inception of the program.



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contnueay

2.20 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred, except for interest directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use, in
which case they are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences
when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and the activities to prepare the asset for
its intended use are in progress. Borrowing costs are capitalised up to the date when the project is completed
and ready for its intended use.

To the extent that funds are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined at the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
during the pericd less any investment income on the temporary investment of those borrowings.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpase of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during a period should not
exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
expenses when incurred.

The capitalised borrowing rate represents the cost of capital for raising the retated borrowings externally and
varies from 3.60% to 5.83% for the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: 3.60% to 5.58%).

2.21 Taxation

(a) Income tax

Income tax is provided on the basis of income for statutory financial reporting purposes, adjusted for income
and expense items, which are not assessable or deductible for tax purposes.

(o) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transacticn other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING BOLICIES continuca)

2.22 Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

2.23 Related Parties

Entities are considered to be related if one has the ability to contral the other, directly or indirectly, or has the
ability to exercise significant influence over the financial and operating decisions of the other. Entities are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or commen significant influence.

2.24 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
controt of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic rescurces will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, the liability will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the conirol of the
Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When an inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

2.25 Earnings per Share and per American Depositary Share ("ADS")

Basic earnings per share have been computed by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share have been computed by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares, after adjusting for the effects of the dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

Basic and diluted earnings per ADS have been computed by multiplying earnings per share by 10, which is the
number of shares represented by each ADS.



3. FINANCIAL AUSK MANAGEMIENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interast rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

Financial risk management is carried out by the Group's finance department in headquarter, following the overall

directions determined by the Board of Directors. The Group’s finance department identifies and evaluates financial

risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating units.

(@) Market risk

(il

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’'s businesses are mainly conducted in RMB, except for certain subsidiaries located n Hong
Kong, Macau and United States of America {“USA"). Dividends to equity holders are declared in RMB
and paid in HK dollars. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to US dollars and HK dollars. As at 31 Decamber 20086, the Group
had approximately USD1.0 billion bank loans and a USD1.3 billion convertible bond recorded in the
financial statements. The Group also had cash and cash equivatents and short-term bank deposits of
USD5G1 million and HKD664 million in total. The Group has not used any forward centracts or foreign
currency swap arrangements to hedge its exposure to currency risk. However, the Group's finance
department in headquarter continucusly monitors the foreign exchange risk regarding loans and
deposits denominated in foreign currency.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest-bearing assets are mainly represented by bank deposits. Apart from this, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term bank loans and liability component of convertible
bonds. Bank loans issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Bank ioans,
short-term bonds and liability component of convertible bonds issued at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk, As at 31 December 2006, RMB315 million (2005: BMB7,442 million} of
lorg-term bank loans and RMB7,087 miflion (2005: RMB2,866 million) of short-term bonds and
RMB7,117 million of liability component of convertible bonds (2005: Nil) were at fixed rates, wnile
RMB7,809 million (2005: RMB9,684 million) of long-term bank loans were at ftoating rates.

The Group does not expect any significant changes in interest rates which might materially affact the
Group's results of operations.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont nuza)

341

3.2

Financial risk factors (continued)

{by Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The extent of the Group's credit exposure is
mainly represented by the aggregate balance of accounts receivable for services and amounts due from
related parties and other operators.

The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to accounts receivable for services and
amounts due from related parties and other operators. The normal credit period granted by the Group is on
average 30 days from the date of invoice. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored by the Group.

(¢} Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of available financing, including short-term bank loans and issuance of bonds. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s finance department in headquarter maintains
adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents and flexibility in funding through having available sources of
financing.

Fair value estimation

The estimate of the fair value of the conversion option of the convertible bonds, that is separated from the host
debt contract and accounted for as a derivative liability, is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
selects an appropriate valuation methed and makes assumptions with reference to market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date. Please refer to Note 17 for details.

The carrying value of trade receivables (net of impairment provision) and payable are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ZSTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by

definition, may not equal to the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on the Group’s property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts to residual values over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the
useful lives and residual values periedically to ensure that the method and rates of depreciation are
consistent with the expected pattern of realisation of ecenomic benefits from property, plant and equipment,
The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on historical experience, taking
into account of anticipated technological changes. If there are significant changes from previously estimated
useful lives, the amount of depreciation expenses may change. The cost or revalued amount and
accumulated depreciation of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2006 amounted to
RMB205.8 billion {(2005: RMB186.7 billion) and RMBS4.4 billion (2005: RMB74.3 billion}, respectively.

(b) tmpairment of non-current assets

The Group tests whether non-current assets have suffered from any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. Management astimates value in use based on estimated discounted pre-tax
future cash flows of the cash generating unit at the lowest leve! to which the asset belongs. if there is a
significant change in management’s assumptions and the estimated recoverable amounts of the non-current
assets, the Group's future results would be affected.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING =STTVIATES AND JUDEWVIENTS (cont rea)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions icontinued)

()

Provision for doubtful debts

Accounts receivables are stated at costs, less provision for doubtful debts. The Group evaluates specific
accounts receivable where there are indications that the receivable may be doubtful or is not collectible. The
Group records a provision based on its best estimates to reduce the receivable balance to the amount that is
expected to be collected. For the remaining receivable balances at each reporting date, the Group makes a
provision based on observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from the remaining balances. The Group makes such estimates based on its past experience,
historical collection patterns, subscribers' credibility and collection trends. For general subscribers of Cellutar,
Leng Distance, Data and Internet businesses, the Group makes a full provision for receivables aged over 3
months, which is consistent with its credit policy with respect to retevant subscribers.

The Group's estimates described above are based on past experience, subscribers’ credibility and collection
trends. If circumstances change {e.g. due to factors including developments in the Group's business and the
external market environment), the Group may need to re-avaluate its policies on doubtful debts, and make
additional provisions in the future.

Provision for subscriber peint reward program

The Group has implemented a subscriber point reward program, which is a bonus point based scheme that
rewards subscribers according to their service censumption, loyalty and payment history. The cost of the
subscriber point reward program is charged to the income statement as “selling and marketing” expenses,
instead of a reduction of revenue. The estimated liability is recognised based on {j) the value of each bonus
point awarded to subscribers, and (i} the number of bonus points related to subscribers who are qualified or
expected to be qualified to exercise their redemption right at each balance sheet date. If subscribers redeem
rewards or their entitlements expire, the provision is adjusted accordingly. The Group has recognised a
liability for this program amounting to RMB556 million as at 31 December 2006 (2005: RMB337 million). As
the Group has not had much historical incentive redemption experience in the past, the Group may need to
re-assess the method for accruing for the potential bonus point liability when there is a more stabilised and
refiable historical redemption statistics in future.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIVATZS AND JUDRCGMENTS (comru 4)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (cortinued)

(e}

U]

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision and deferred taxation in accordance with the prevailing tax
rutes and regulations, taking into account any special approvals obtained from relevant tax authorities and
any preferential tax treatment to which it is entitled in each location or jurisdiction in which the Group
operates. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group racognises fiabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

For the evaluation of temporary differences, the Group has assessed the likelinood that the deferred taxes
could be recovered. Major deferred tax components relate to interest on loans from China-China-Foreign
(“CCF"} joint ventures, loss arising from terminations of CCF arrangements (Note 9(g)), provisions for doubtful
debts and write-down of inventory to net realisable value and additional depreciation deductible for tax
purposes. Due to the effects of these temporary differences on income tax, the Group has recorded deferred
tax assets amounting to RMBO0.31 bilion as at 31 December 2006 {2005: BMBO0.34 billion). Deferred tax
assets are recognised based on the Group's estimates and assumptions that they will be recovered from
taxable income arising from the continuing operations in the foreseeable future.

The Group believes it has recorded adequate current tax provision and deferred taxes hased on the
prevailing tax rules and regulations and its current best estimates and assumptions. In the event that future
tax rules and regulations or related circumstances change, adjustments to current and deferred taxation may
be necessary.

Fair value of conversion option

On 5 July 20086, the Company issued a zero coupon convertible bonds with an aggregate principat amount
of USD1 billion. The three-year convertible bonds was issued with a conversion price of HKD8.83 and will
mature on 5 July 2009. The embedded conversion option has been separated from the host debt coniract
and accounted for as a derivative liability carried at fair value through profit or loss (Note 17}. The fair value of
this conversion option which is not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgment to select an appropriate valuation method and makes assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. The valuation model requires the
input of subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share price, stock closing price, dividend vield, risk
free rate, and expected option life. Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the unrealised loss resulting from changes in fair
value of the conversion option of the convertible bonds was approximately RMB2.4 billion.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ZSTIMATZES AND JUDCGWVENTS (continuca)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies

(a) Capitalisation of CDMA customer acquisition costs

The Group has been operating the CDMA business since the beginning of 2002. In order 1o accelerate the
development of the COMA business and subscriber growth, the Group offers certain promotional packages.
As part of the contractual arrangements with certain COMA contractual subscribers under these special
promotional packages, CDMA handsets were provided to the subscribers for their use at no additional
charge during the specified contract period ranging from 6 months to 2 years. In return, the subscribers are
required to incur a minimum amount of service fees during the contract pericd. If the contractual subscribers
can fulfil the minimum contract spending amounts by the end of the contract period, they will not be obliged
to repay the remaining costs of the CDMA handsets given for their use. In addition, to secure contract
performance, these subscribers are required under their contracts to (1} prepay certain amounts of service
fees or deposits, (2) maintain a bank deposit in one of the designated commercial banks to secure their
minimum contract amounts, or (3) provide a guarantor who will compensate the Group for any loss in the
event of the subscriber's non-performance of related contractual obligations.

The Group considers the costs of the CDMA handsets provided to contractual subscribers under these
promotional packages as customer acquisition costs for the development of these new CDMA contractual
subscribers. Such customer acquisition costs are deferred to the extent expected to be recoverable, and
amortised over the contractual periods (not exceeding two years), over which future economic benefits are
expected to flow to the Group in the form of minimum centract revenue.

The Group determined its accounting policy for capitalisation of customer acquisition costs of contractual
CDMA subscribers afier a careful evaluation of specific facts and circumstances, and believes that the
capitalisation of such costs is appropriate because future economic benefits are expected to flow to the
Group in the form of future contractual revenues, taking inte consideration (1) the historically high ARPUs
and low churn rate, default or bad debt rates of these subscribers; (2) the Group’s established procedures in
and the relative low cost of enforcement of contracts in default; and (3) the existence of specified contract
periods with minimum contract spending amounts and built-in contractual safeguarding measures such as
non-refundable prepayments, bank deposits, and guarantees received, as well as penalty clauses imposed
on subscribers.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (et -wu;

4.2 Critical judgments in applying the entity's accounting policies (continued)

(a)

{b)

Capitalisation of CDOMA customer acquisition costs (continued)

Therefare, the Group believes that the customer acquisition costs are recoverable from future revenue to be
derived from these promotional packages, and the capitalisation and amortisation of these customer
acquisition costs is an appropriate accounting policy. Furthermore, the Group continuously assesses and
evaluates the recoverability of these customer acquisition costs, based on detailed review of historical
subscriber churn rates and estimated default rate. Based on the Group's current assessment and evaluation,
the Group believes that there is no significant problem in recovering the carrying amounts of the customer
acquisition costs as at the balance sheet date.

The Group has made the above recoverability assessments based on the current legal and operating
environment relating to the subscribers’ contract performance and other information currently available.
Actual results may differ significantly from the current situation and the Group’s current estimates. If the
situation changes significantly in the future, the Group may need to accelerate the amortisation of customer
acquisition costs based on conditions at that time.

Recognition of upfront non-refundable revenue and direct incremental costs

The Group capitalises and amortises upfront non-refundable revenus, including connection fees and
activation fees of SIM cards or UIM cards from cellular subscribers over the expected customer service
period. Accordingly, the refated direct incremental costs of acquiring and activating GSM and COMA
subscribers, including costs of SIM or UIM cards and commissions which are directly associated with upfront
non-refundable revenue received upon activation of cellutar services, are also capitalised and amortised over
the same expected customer service period. The Group only capitalises costs to the extent that they will
generate future economic benefits. The excess of the direct incremental costs over the corresponding
upfront non-refundable revenue, if any, are expensed to the income statement immediately.

The expected customer service period for the cellular business is estimated based on the expected
stabilised churn rates of subscribers after taking into consideration factors such as customer retention
experience, the expected leve! of competition, the risk of technologicat or functional obsolescence of our
sarvices and the current regulatory environment. If the estimate of the expected stabilised churn rate
changes for future periods as a result of unexpected changes in competition environment,
telecommunications technalogy or regulatory environment, the amount and timing of recognition of these
direct incremental costs and our deferred revenue would also change.
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4. CAITICAL ACCCUNTING Z8TIWMAT -8 AN CUZT VW ENTE mane o

4.2 Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Lease of CDMA network capacity

Pursuant to a CDMA lease agreement signed by the Group and Unicom Group's wholly-owned subsidiary,
Unicom New Horizon Mobile Telecommunications Company Limited (“Unicom New Horizon™) in 2002
{“Criginal COMA Lease Agreement”), Unicom New Horizon agreed to lease the capacity of the CDMA
network to the Group.

Unicom New Horizon has the legal ownership of the CDMA network, is directly responsible for the planning,
financing and construction of the CDMA network, and directly enters into all contracts with suppliers and
constructors. The Group believes it only bears the risks associated with the operation of the CDMA business
during the relevant feasing periods and is free from any ownership risks of the CDMA network and the risks
and rewards of ownership of the leased assets rest substantially with the lessor.

At the inception of the Original CDMA Lease Agreement, there was a high degree of uncertainty related to
the market condition and operating results of the CDMA business. It was highly uncertain whether the Group
would continue to lease the network in the future or to estimate the future network capacity to be leased.
The Group was also unable to determine whether or not they would exercise the purchase option in future.
Given these uncertainties and due to the fact that the risks associated with the ownership of the COMA
assels substantially remained with Unicom Group and Unicom New Herizon, the Group accounted for the
lgasing of the COMA network as operating leases for the initial three-year lease period, so as to reflect the
respective rights and obligations of the relevant parties to the Criginal CDMA Lease Agreement.

On 24 March 2005, the Group entered into another CDMA Lease Agreement { “2005 CDMA Lease
Agreement”) with Unicom Group and Unicom New Horizan to replace the Qriginal CDMA Lease Agreement.
Key terms of the 2005 CDMA Lease Agreement, including exclusive operating rights and purchase option,
are substantially similar to those contained in the Original CDMA Lease Agreement except that the COMA
lease has an initial term of two years and the lease fee of the CDMA Network is to be detarmined on the
basis of the audited COMA business income. Given that the uncertainties continued, the Group considered
the risks associated with the ownership of the COMA assets still substantially remain with Unicom Group and
Unicom New Horizon, and has concluded the leasing of the COMA network continues to be an operating
lease.
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4.2 Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies (contiousd)

{c) Lease of COMA network capacity (continued)

On 26 October 20086, the Group entered into a new CDMA Lease Agreement (the "2006 CDMA Lease
Agreement”) with Unicom Group and Unicom New Herizon to renew the 2005 CDMA Lease Agreement
effective from 1 January 2007. Pursuant to the 2006 CDMA Lease Agreement, the initial lease period is for
one year, renewable for an additional one-year term at the Group’s option. The lease fee of the CDMA
network for 2007 and 2008 is as follows:

*  31% of the audited CDMA business income of the lessee for each of the years 2007 and 2008; or

¢ 30% of the audited CDMA business income of the lessee for the year 2007 or 2008, where the audited
CDMA business profit before taxation of the essee for the relevant year is less than the audited COMA
business profit before taxation of the lessee for the year 2006 as set out in the relevant annual audited
financiai statements of the lessee.

Under the 2006 CDMA Lease Agreement, the annual lease fee of the CDMA network shall not be less than a
certain minimum level {the “Minimurmn Lease Fee”) regardless of the amount of COMA business income for
that year. The Minimum Lease Fee for 2007 shall be 90% of the total amount of lease fee paid by the Group
to Unicom New Horizon for 2006 pursuant to the 2005 CDMA Lease Agreement. The Minimum Lease Fee
for 2008 shall be 90% of the total amount of lease fee paid by the Group to Unicom New Haorizon for 2007
pursuant to the 2006 CDMA Lease Agreement. The level of lease fee under the 2006 CDMA Lease
Agreement has been set by reference to the Group’s view of the industry trends, including factors suzh as
CDMA subscribers and average revenue per user per month levels.

Under the 2006 CDMA Lease Agreement, the Group believes the uncertainties of the COMA business
continue to exist, particutarly due to the fact that (i) the service revenue of CDMA business was stagnant in
2006; (ii} the uncertainty of the future success of CDMA business arising from keen market competition; and
{iii) the uncertainty in the future changes in technology, technological standards and government regulatory
environment. Moreover, at the inception of the 2006 CDMA Lease Agreement, the Group was still unabte to
determine whether it would renew the lease after the initiat one-year lease term or whether it would exercise
the purchase option. As a result, the Group considered the risks associated with the ownership of the CDMA
assets still substantially remain with Unicom Group and Unicom New Horizon, and has concluded the leasing
of the CDMA network will stilt be accounted for as an operating lease.

At the beginning of each lease term, the Group will reassess the appropriate classification based on the
relevant factors and circumstances at that time. Based on the above accounting judgment made, the
operating lease expense has been recorded in the income statement, and the carrying value of the CDMA
assets and the related liabilities have not been reflected in the balance sheets. For the year ended 31
December 2008, the lease expense of approximately RMBS8.08 billion (2005: RMB7.92 billion) was recorded
under leased lines and network capacities in the income statement.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group comprises four business segments based on the various types of telecommunications services mainly
provided to customers in Mainland China. The major business segments operated by the Group are classified as
below:

e  GSM Business — the provision of GSM telephone and related services;

e CDMA Business - the provision of CDMA telephone and related services, through a leasing arrangement for
CDMA network capacity from Unicom New Horizon;

. Data and Internet Business — the provision of domestic and international data, Internet and other related
services; and

+  Long Distance Business — the provision of domestic and international long distance and other related services.

The Group’s primary measure of segment results is based on segment profit or loss before income tax. Unailocated
costs primarily represent corporate expenses, income tax expense and unrealised loss on changes in fair value of
derivative component of convertible bonds, whilst unallocated income represents interest income that cannot be
identified to different operating segments.



5. SECGVENT INFCRIVATION teontrum

5.1 Business Segments

2006
Data ang Long
GSM COMA Internet Distance  Unallocated
Business Business Business Business amounts Elimination Total
Revenue {Turrover)

CUsigefee 1/EI0M 1469578 1,770,321 §4,397 — T syms0
Momhyfee T3040 50542 - - - 1235882
 Interconnecion revenus AF4964 1732060 9240 424792 . 7,164,256
Lezsed Ines renial - — anme 517 - 1,048,436
Value-added service revenue 1543343 5314118 - - o 16857461
Otermene 1850580 525484 AT 4565 . YTy
Total senice revenue 50200421 21203342 2375316 1,068,422 - 90,027,301
Sales of teflecommunications products 8174 4,257,118 1,900 - - 4,267,192
fodlmene ometerdowsomes 59298595 31550260 2377216 1068422 - 94,294,433
Intersegment revenue - - 2,978,463 1,783,015 - (4,761,483} -
Totd revenue 50208595 3150260 535684 285147 = AT61483) 9,294,493
Leased lnes and network capacites (23503)  (@60,189)  (3038%8) {64785) - (6,763,965)
inte-connection charges 0496433)  (A0676)  (@B1528) (24680 - AT6I4E  (6595622)
Depreciation and amortisation (18614663)  [17828)  (2419598)  (670,191) (532)  mane)
Employee benefi expenses BA%669)  (1529503)  (2N58)  [223)  (182.478) (6,649,699)
Selngand maketng (©396325)  (00078%8)  (683402)  [24078)  {81) O (9,251,704)
" Generd, acminisratve and B o o -
other expenses O481491)  (2849754)  (O7330) (2599000  {272%3) (13,415,568)

uCcst oflefeco?nrr;l:n?cétions ) o - o
peodicts Soid (188209) (4735533 (6,197) (19 - (4.920,968)
Fnancecoss @15456)  (46,359)  (B512)  (5429)  (467006) 424362 (654,200)
teestincome 122601 686 12483 2008 5M9040  (44362) 259,040
" Other gans foss] - net 23,474 107 26 (3,409) 5 21,359
747831 106,413 11380 3708 (138.224) 8,892,408
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5.1 Business Segments (continued)

2006
Data and Long
GSM COMA Internet Distance  Unallocated
- i Business Business Business Business amounts Elimination Total
Unreglised loss on changes in
fair value of derivative component
of converiible bonds {2,396,592)
Segment profit floss) before
income tax 7,478,361 1,061,413 113,830 377,028 {138,224} 6,495,816
income tax expenses (2,763,885}
Profit for the year 3,731,931
Altributable to:
Equity holders of the Gompany 3,731,824
Minority interest 107
3,741,931
Other information:
Provision for doubtful debts 1,124,113 457,942 106,883 52,827 - 1,741,765
Capital expenditures for
segment assets (3} 10,577,010 - 2,500,814 2,640,789 5,827,151 21,545,764
31 December 2006
Data and Long
GSM CDMA Internet Distance  Unallocated
. o L Business Business Business Business amounts Elimination Total
Total segment assets 107,288,975 7,722,526 8,300,155 16,810,768 56,477,257  (50,161,795) 146,437,988
Total segment liabiities 38,594,177 7,666,939 2,801,914 3,673,741 14,289 557 67,026,328
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5.1 Business Segments (continued)

2005
- o  Dlamd g
GSM COMA Internet Distance  Unallocated
... _ _Bustess  Busness  Business  Business amounis  Efminaion  Told
Revenue (Tusnover)
Usagelee OIS 1676678 250574 599251 o 51,943,808
Monthylee URBAOTN 490558 0 - - o 11,746,258
neconeconevere 3465067 100857 102089 4345TT o 5402210
laasedines rentl - - 3WeE 489969 -  gaapom
Vileaddedsevicerevenie 7966620 4mss2 - - - 12,082,171
Other revenue O imsw 40800 12745 776 . 2228,029
Total service revenue 52,135,528 27,576,936 3,040,967 1,524,573 - 84,287,004
Ses of telecommunications products e 274 7.2 8000 _ 2761827
Toi mvene fomederd customers G2,138702 30320273 B0STIR 1502663 - 87,048,831
Intersegment revenue - - 2,563,242 1,189,531 - (3,742,773) -
Tote reverwe 52138700 030273 5610435 2722194 — peIn) sTMsE
Lieased Enes and nework capaciies P537%0)  BOSM) (W95 EB3) _ 8741317)
Interconnection charges O po0n1m)  (AM5I80)  (6004B2)  (962.378) - 3 BAT2AN0)
Depreciation and amortisaticn (7315200)  (B14297)  (1886.178)  (551.045) (452) (20,368,181
Empoyesbereft expenses  [(3550780)  (1176502)  [492376)  (O7160) (09494 (5,616,312)
‘Sellng and marketing Crstess)  (1208449)  (13%790)  @isie) 0 — (20557 878)
_éaneral. zi'ci?rlir;istréti-wfé and- S 7 - N
other expenses BOS4361)  RSTSN0)  BOTET0)  (S8705) @187 (1,741,560)
" Gast of telecommurications - T T o
products sod B0674)  BATIE®Y)  (16315) 34) - (3575.316)
Framecosts e43214)  @238)  (T.043)  BI8T) @268 21373 (1008321
 inerestincome  ae% 8.956 2915 3807 968 [I3TT) 0,16
Other gains oss) - et O msm eMs e 29 @ 9%
68T (199899)  (43.068) (116,89) 7,101,697

184,581
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B, SEGMENT INFORWVATION contiug)

5.1 Business Segments {continued)

2005
Data and Long
GSM COMA Internet Distance Unallocated
L Business Business Business Business amounts Elmination Total
Urvealised foss on changes in
fair value of derivative companent
of convertible bands -
Segment profit (loss) before
income tax 7276917 (199,899) (43.063) 184,581 (116,839) 7.101,657
income 1ax expenses (2,170,411}
Profit for the year 4.931,286
Aftributable to:
Equity holciers of the Company 4931052
Minority interest 234
4.931,286
Other information:
Prowision for doubtful debts 867,154 458,161 139,327 33,668 - 1,498,510
Capital expenditures for
segment assels (at 7,333,030 - 1,962,796 2,162,637 6,154,335 17,512,798
31 December 2005
Data and Long
GSM COMA Internet Distance Unallocated
Business Business Business Business amounts Efmination Total
Total segment assets 107,723,037 4,087,906 7518912 17,794,348 55,667,580  (50,161,795) 142,629,089
Total segment fabiliies 45,706,440 5,620,722 2518018 4,973,134 7,523,596 66,342,910

{a) Capital expenditures classified under “Unallocated amounts” represent capital expenditures on common

facilities, which benefit alf business segments.
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5. SECGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

5.2 Geographical Segments

The customers of the Group’s services are mainly in mainland China. There is no other geographical segment with
segment revenue from external customers equal to or greater than 10% of total revenue.

In addition, although the Group has its corporate headguarter in Hong Kong, a substantial portion of the Group's
non-current asseats (including property, plant and equipment and other assets) are situated in mainland China, as
the Group's principal activities are conducted in mainland China. For 2006 and 2005, substantially all capital
expenditures were incurred to acquire assets located in mainland China and less than 10% of the Group's assets
and operations are located coutside mainland China. Accordingly, no geographical segment information is
presented.
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3. RCIE-V VANT AT O A
The Group
T e ) s
— o " — T
Tele- furniture,
communications fixtures and Leasehold  Construction-
Buildings equipment others  improvements in-progress Total Total
Cost or valuation:
Beginning of year 13,614,837 144,752,704 8,370,669 1,120,171 18,826,688 186,685,169 173,835,655
Revaluation surplus“- 200,330 - - - - 200,330 o —
Additions - _56_6,212 348,077 139,0_3;- - T 20_,4;;439 21,545,764 o 1—7.6-1—2,7é8_
T;an-sfer from CIP 737,505 23,240,505 1,532,868 477,166 (25,988,044) ) —_ o -
Reclassification to N -
other assets (528,428) - - - - (528,428) {4,194,413}
Disp;Jsals 7 (22,296) (1,478,238) {425,924) {214,304) - (2,140,762) 7568.5%1 )
End of year 14,568,260 166,863,048 9,616,649 1,383,033 13,331,083 205,762,073 186,685,169
Representing:
At cost 2,036,229 166,863,048 9,616,649 1,383,033 13,331,083 193,230,042 184.31#.3—96_
Al véiuation 12,532,031 - - - - 12,532,031 _2—,3?;0,_773- -
14,568,260 166,863,048 9,616,649 1,383,033 13,331,083 205,762,073 186,635,169
Accumulated
depreciation:
Beginning of year 3,110,261 66,942,910 3,502,469 741,937 14,307 74,311,884 55,343,535
-Char-éé {(-)r-the year 454,958 19,524,750 1,763,763 271,990 - 22,005,461 A1;9§150{
Heblass;f;cation to_ -
other assets - - - - - - (511,266)
bisposals {16,473} {1,418,541) (287,459) (214,304) - {1,936,777} (45-1,_85-6)-‘
End of year 3,548,748 85,049,119 4,968,773 799,623 14,307 94,380,568 74,311,884
Net hook value:
End of year 11,019,514 81,813,929 4,647,876 583,410 13,316,776 111,381,505 112,373,285
Beginning of year 10,504,676 77,809,794 4,868,200 378,234 18,812,381 112,373,285 118,482,120
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BECSEUY, FTANTANTD SQUIBYIEN rurtug)
The Company
- o o N 2008
7 B - 7 Oﬂ‘ic; o N S
Tele- furniture,
communications fixtures
equipment and others Total Total
Cost :
Beginning of year 52,404 8,531 60,935 62,189
Additions o o o - E%E;B . "385 - 238
"IZ;isposaIs o o (1,612) - 777{87;97)" (2,471_)- ) {1,492)
End of year 50,792 8,060 58,852 60,935
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning of year 9,557 7,718 17,275 12,742
7Charge for th;yre’ar 7 o B 3,453 532 N 3,9g‘ - 4:91:1
VDisposals o o {256) (798)_ N (1,054) o (381)
End of year 12,754 7,452 20,206 17,275
Net book value:
End of year 38,038 608 38,646 43,660
42,847 813 43,660

Beginning of year

For the year ended 31 December 2006, interest expense of approximately RMB423 million (2005: RMB683 million)
was capitalised to construction-in-progress.

During 2006, the Group engaged an independent property valuation firm to undertake a valuation of the buildings of
the Group as at 31 August 2006 (“2006 Revaluation™, using the replacement cost or open market value approach, as
appropriate. Based on the 2006 Revaltuation, an additional revaluation surplus of approximately RMB200 million was
recognised. The revaluation surplus net of the related deferred income tax of approxirmately RMB105 million (Note 9}
was credited to revaluation reserve in shareholders' equity. The accumulated revaluation surplus on the buitdings
resulting from all previous and current valuations of the buildings as of 31 December 2006 was RMB272 millior.. As of

31 December 2006, the carrying value of buildings would have been approximately RMB10,701 million (2005:

RMB10,379 million) had they been stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The directors considered
the fair values of these buildings were not materially different from their carrying values as of 31 December 2006. The
additional depreciation attributabte to the revaluation surplus amounted to approximately RMB8.80 million for 2006

(2005: RMB8.80 million).

Telecommunications eqguipment held under finance leases represents wireless public phone equipment. As at 31
December 20086, net book value of wireless public phone equipment under finance leases amounted to approximately

RMB231 million {2005: RMB354 million) (Note 18).
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a.

SROPZEYY, PLANT AND ZQUIRVENT (contreeg)
For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recognised loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB145 million (2005; BMB25 million).

For comparative purposes, the carrying value of land use rights underlying the buildings acquired from third parties
amounting to approximately RMB3.7 billion was reclassified from "Property, plant and equipment” to "Other assets” in
the 2005 comparative consolidated balance shest.

GOODWILL - GROUR

The Group
2006 2005
Cost:
Gooc—i—m-nll arising fro—r; acquisitionsﬂ - o o 3,143,983 1’»743,983

Goodwill arising from the acquisitions of Unicom New Century Telecommunications Co., Ltd. and Unicom New World
Telecommunications Co., Ltd. in 2002 and 2003 respectively represented the excess of the purchase consideration
over the Group’s share of the fair values of the separately identifiable net assets acquired.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU") identified according to business segments. The
recoverable amount of goodwill is determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management, including expected profit margins, growth rates
and the applicable discount rates. Management determined budgeted profit marging based on past performance and
its expectations in refation to market developments. The expected growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
of the business segments. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the business, Based
on management’s assessment results, there was no impairment of goodwill as at 31 December 2006 and 2005.
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CTHzR ASSETS - GROJP

The Group

Note 2006 2005

Direct incremental costs for acnvatlng celtular subscribers (a) 2,243,384 3,191, 853
Cu;t“omer acqum;o: c;sts of contractual CDMA subs—crsbers 4.2(3),_(1_3}- o “1 643 623— 2 416 224
Long -term prepa;rr;ler; far Iease c;f_la;:im o o E:)_B— - 4,867,840 4, 1897 52%
Purchased software - o 7 (&TW ' 7*6;7 187 276, 863
Pre;;:ud rental for pr;rmses and Ieaséc; I-lnes o S 7 1 ,005,514 858 661
Ot—h(;rs o o S (J)_ : - 7?39,0217 “68 863
11,176,569 11,601,730

{a}

{o)

©

For the year ended 31 December 2006, amortisation of direct incremental costs for activating GSM and CDMA
subscribers amounted to RMB1,817 million (2005: RMB1,582 million) (Note 24), which has been included in
“selling and marketing” expenses,

For the year ended 31 December 2008, amortisation of the customer acquisition costs of contractual CDMA
subscribers amounted to approximately RMB4,205 million (2005: RMB5,948 million} {Note 24} which was
recorded in “selling and marketing” expenses. As at 31 December 20086, the carrying amount of unamortised
customer acquisition costs of contractual CDMA subscribers totaled approximately RMB2,102 million (2005:
RMB2,844 million), with approximately RMB1,644 million {2005: RMB2,416 million) recorded in “other assats” (for
contracts expiring over 1 year) and approximately RMB458 million (2005: RMB528 miillion) recorded in
“prepayments and other current assets” (for contracts expiring within 1 year) (Note 12).

The Group's long-term prepayment for lease of land represents prepaid operating lease payments for land use
rights in Mainland China and their net book value is analysed as foliows:

The Group
2006 2005
Held on:
Leases of be{we;en 10 to 50 years i - o - :1 8;’3; 0;1— 4,174, é(;4
Léases of |essThan 10 years - - a S 34,829 N 14,:16_;
4,867,840 4,139,328

For comparative purposes, the carrying value of land use rights underlying the buildings acquired from third
parties was reclassified from “Property, plant and equipment” to “Other assets” in the 2005 comparative
consolidated balance sheet. Please refer 1o Note 6 for details.

For the year ended 31 December 20086, the long-term prepayment for lease of land expensed in the income
statement amounted to RMB171.0 million {2005: RMB28.4 millien}, which was recorded in "General,
administrative and other expenses”.

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006
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(d) For the year ended 31 December 2008, the amortisation of purchased software and others of other assets
amounted to approximately RMB417 million (2005: RMB437 million) (Note 24).

CRMATICON - CACLER

Provision for taxation represents:

The Group
. - o ) 2006 B 2005_
E’—rc—)_\;ision for income tax on the estimated taxable_ﬁ;ofits for lht; year o
‘HongKong - ' - 1817 1063
- Ou-tsi;:ie Hdng Ko-r;g— S - o -- 2,838,365 o 2_033_457
2,843,182 2,034,520
Deferred taxation (79,297) 135,891
2,763,885 2,170,411

{a) The Company did not have any assessable income sourced from Hong Kong for the years ended 31 December
2006 and 2005.

(b} China Unicom international Limited (“Unicom International”, a subsidiary of the Company) assessed its income tax
liability in Hong Kong using the tax rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%). The income tax liability of Unicom International
amounted to approximately RMB4.82 million for the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: RMB1.06 million).

(¢} China Unicom (Macau) Company Limited (“Unicom Macau”, a subsidiary of the Company) assessed its income
tax liability in Macau, using progressive tax rates from 3% to 12%. There is no Macau income tax liability of
Unicom Macau for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 as there were no assessable profits in both

years.

(d) For the year ended 31 December 2008, Unicom Huasheng Telecommunications Technotogy Company Limited
(*Unicom Huasheng”, a subsidiary of the Company) and its branches are subject to income tax at the statutory
enterprise income tax rate of 33% in Mainland China. The income tax liabilities of Unicom Huasheng and its
branches were assessed separately by relevant local tax authorities.
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(&) Various provinciat/municipal branches of China Unicom Corporation Limited {“CUCL", a subsidiary of the
Company} were granted preferential tax treatment by relevant tax authorities to assess their anterprise income tax
at the rates of 13% or 18% in mainland China for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005. The remaining
provincial branches were assessed at the standard tax rate of 33%.

Reconciliation between applicable statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate:

The Group
 Nee 208 2005
Mainland China statutory tax rate of 33% 33.0% 33.0%
Non-deductble epenses % 19%
Unreaiised loss on changes in fair value of derivative ' |
component of convertible bonds 12.2% -
Non-taxableicome ' -
—--C;or;nectiohfee R —-_—(1;/0;_ “ (1.2%;)
mterestincome  oe%) ©.1%)
linelasingincome 0.1%)
mpact of PRC preferentialtaxrates  @a%)  (22%)
lr;;fesrtmen_t;;(;edi_t-s féar domestic;‘eq;:ipm;an; - fﬂ a o __‘7‘—(0”.;;&“;_ {0.7%)
Effective tax rate 42.5% 30.6%
Tax effect of preferential tax rate is as follows:
- - a0 2008
Aggregate arno-u;'lt {(RMB in miili)c;ns_)_ T 150 o 155
Per share effect @MB) 0.012 0012

{fl For 2006 and 2005, tax credits represented investment tax credits relating to the additions of certain domestic
equipment that were deductible against current income tax.

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006
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Q. TAXATIOMN - GROUP continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset tax assets against tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as

follows:
The Group
2006 2005
Deferred tax assets
- Deferred tax asset to be recovered after 12 months S 787,991 1.D(-):tjfi_23 .
- Deferred tax asset to be—_re_cr;ered Wltf;I_n—‘l-Z- rnorrths - 7 887,636 TBf.—74D -
1,675,627 1,742,063
Deferred tax liabilities:
- Deferred tax Ilabth;es to t;e szetttetigﬂer 12 months 7 o 1,051,774) - (1.2?8.53t)
- Deferred tax Ilabllltles fo; s;t-IEd'\En_t-z. r-n‘orfttfs o V o (314,185) (12_8—2_9787)
{1,365,959) (1,406,829)
Net deferred tax assets after offsetting 309,668 335,234
Deferred tax liahilities that cannot be offset (5.879) {5.613)

There were no material unrecognised deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2006 and 2005.

The movement of the net deferred tax assets/liabilities is as follows:

The Group
2006 2005

Net deferred tax assets after offsetting :

- Begmnrng of year I 335,234 468,77747"

- Deferred tax oredlted/(charged_)_to the mcon; stetement - S 79,563 a (133,540)

- Deferred tax char;;edtoiequrtyw(Nﬁme D) - ) o (105,129) - — _

- End of year 309,668 335,234
The deferred tax Irabrlltles that can not be offset

- Beglnnmg of year o o - (5,613) WW?MU(3L.276‘2A)

- Deferred tax charged to t_t; income stater;ent - 7 (266) (2—'3:5—1-)

- End of year (5,879) (5.613)
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TAXATON - CGRACUR ot
Deferred taxation as of year-end represents the taxation effect of the {ollowing temporary differences:
The Group
N_o_te—__ i 2006__““ o —;Eg
Maintand China Enterprises -
Deferred tax assets:
interest on loans from CCF joint ventures (@ 62 96012
- I_-cas_smar‘lehg from terminations of-C(Sl; Arrenger;;nts (9)] S 20,636 o -“1 11 003
Pre;rlelc_)‘nlfer doubtful deb_ts—“ I S 492,920 \:-99.590_
Wnte down_o;;en—to;es_ to;et reallsabie va_ll;e_ S - o 32,858 i 43 7807
Accruals of retlnjen:lenjaener" ts - . 18,137 4 670
l_A_dgituonar depreciation deductlb;a_fer tax in future years - 6,315 o 12 3761”
Mon;ary housing benefits T a o 12,607 - 11?;8;‘
leferer;ces o;gx;e; for the ;eseuaT veLe;fip;gp;e—r;yfm - S
plant and equipment - 10, 045
Net amour;t;f deferreﬁ;er;r;emsah?on;fiepif;e;iAi - o S
non-refundable revenue 740,429 891 .467
- Accr_uals_of expenses e;f;et_eecijc_t;l-)le__fer tax pL;r_p_ose - ) 232,863 o 137 279
7 Others o - o o 7 73,399 - 2‘4;7_2-
1,675,627 1,742,063
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net amount of capitalisation and amortisation of drect -
incremental costs (740,429) (925,462)
_Eapl;al—l-sec: interest already_de:ieetee-f‘on; ;a: ;J_u_reose - (520,401) (4!51_3;7)_
Revaluation of tmn—r;;(r\_lote 6) - (105,129} 7 o
(1,365,959} (1.406,829)
309,668 335,234
Hong Kong Enterprises
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose 6879) (5613

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006




122| Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

9. TAXATION - GROUP (contnucay

(@) Prior to 2000, in the process of developing its cellular networks, the GSM Business has entered into cooperation
agreements with certain contractual joint ventures (the “CJVs") established in Mainland China. Each CJV was
established by one or more Chinese enterprises and one or more foreign parties. The aforementioned cooperation
arrangermnents are referred to as the China-China-Foreign Arrangement {the “CCF Arrangements"). Pursuant to the
CCF Arrangements, the CJVs extended funding to the GSM Business for the construction of telecommunications
systems and network equipment in Mainland China. Based on the terms of the cooperation agreements, the CCF
Arrangements had been accounted for as secured financing arrangements to the GSM Business, and interest had
been accrued by the GSM Businass based on the funds provided by the CJVs at the then prevailing market
borrowing rates. All CCF Arrangements had been terminated in 1999 and 2000, the related loss on the
termination of CCF Arrangements was charged to the income statement as incurred. Pursuant to the approval of
relevant tax authorities, all the interest costs and the foss on termination of these CCF Arrangements are to be
deducted against current taxable income over 7 years. The resulting deferred tax assets were recognised

accaordingly.

10. INVENTORIES - GROURP

The Group
20086 2005
Handsets 1,462,210 1,121,288
Tele;_)r;c;e‘c;afds S o 522,161 o '592,49.0
O;h_e:“ S T o 349,531_ '-'—"-3-94534
2,333,902 2,107,812

|

|

! The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of telecommunications products sold amounted to
| approximately EMB4,930 million (2005: RMB3,575 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the write-down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to RMB43
million (2005: RMB20 million}, which was mainly due to the decline of market values of certain handsets.
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ACCOUNTS R=CEIVASLE, Nz - CHACUS

The Group

7 a o - 2006 o 2005
Accounts ?ecenvable for GSM services o - o . 3,416,679 4,021 88?
A_cgunts rece;fa-l;e;for CDMA—;mces - S 2,264,188 N 2,648, 504
/_f\c—c—o-l.mts recelva_ble for Data an:j_lnternet sé};;;s o - 323,369 522 5—79
;ugc-:o;r;m recgl;a_blwca-for Long; l;rswt;n'ce senvices - S 458,402 o 444 010
Sub-total 6,462,638 7,636,980
Less: Provision for doubtful debts for GSM services (1,841,212} (1,821,057)
o Provision for doubtful det;ts 7for CDM#‘; s,;-rwces S “ (905,094} (954,1#8‘5}
o F’rowsuor: }(;r doubtful d&s for Data and Internet ser;fgés_ - (77,006} - (33,711}
o Provision for doubtful det;t;; for Long Dls_ta;n;::e serwc&_as_ 7 - (219,983) N (229,5%3&3;
3,419,343 4,548,429

The aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

The Group

h o o - - - L2006 N 2005
Within o;lé |;nonth - _ D 2,349,963 2.884.068
More than one-m_o—nth to three ﬁ:oﬁths o o o 7___95,221 - 1,062,895
More than three-_ n;onths to one}/_e;a\r o - - 1,709,95;1__- o 1 .63_6:529-
More than oneyear © 1ames00 2050488
6,462,638 7,636,980

The normal credit period granted by the Group is on average 30 days from the date of invoice.

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to individual customers’ receivables, as the Group has a
large number of customers.

Provision for doubtful debts is analysed as follows:

The Group
) o o O 2008 2005
Balanc;“be_glnnlng of y;r_ - - o 3,088,551 "1;,9(58,507
l;rowsmn for tl:ne;;aar o o - ) __WTITT:.';E;SA 7 1,498,510
Written-off during the year - - S o (1 ,78?,021) (2,343,6;56—)
Balance, end of year 3,043,295 3,088,551

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006
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12,

AR VONTE AND O 24 CUAS I ABE TR
The Group The Company
- h Noté o H 250? 7 7005 - 2066 o 2005
Prepad rental 364,622 322,243 153 0 -
Deposits and prepayments 732774 973698 5284 3357
A(;;fances to émployees - . 154,866 o 163,838- 11 - — 7
él;s;omer acc;t}}énvion costs of a
contractual CDMA subscribers 8(b) 458,095 527,577 - -
(5thers ) o o 277,662 - 355,111 5,542 47,009 _
1,988,019 2,342,467 10,990 50,366
The aging analysis of prepayments and other current assets is as follows:
The Group The Company
B N 06 2005 2008 2005
‘—J_Vi;hin one ye-a_ru 7 o 1,892,558 72,249,0977 9,174 B -49,419
Mon;e than E)r;e y-ear o o 95,461 . 93,370 1,816 o _QE'_
1,988,019 2,342,467 10,990 50,366
SECHA AN SANK 220N
The Group The Company
B S 2006 2005 2006 2008
l;;;;deposit:‘,;ﬂ;t;red ov;rithriee months 187,449 - -2_.65.‘457 187,449 - 86;62
H-estr_i(;;i-baﬁl:d—(;posit B 8,371 - - - B —
187,449

195,820 282,457

80,702

As at 31 December 2008, restricted bank deposit represented deposits that were subject to externally imposed

restriction relating to construction payable as requested by a contractor,



128

I3

CASH ANZ ChE sQUIVALZNTE

The Group The Company
2006 50; o 2006 2005
Cash at bank and in hand 11,180,476 5_;0;6 12,725 12,886
Bank deposits with original maturities of
three months or less 1,001,632 360,860 907,276 286,858

12,182,108 5,471,676 920,001 299,744

The effective interest rate on bank deposits at 31 December 2006 ranged from 3.20% to 5.49% (31 December 2005;
3.98% to 4.50%). The bank deposits have a weighted average maturity of 76 days.

S-AR - SNFETAL - SO PARY
The Company
2006 2005
HKD'000 HKD'000
Authorised:
30,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each 3,000,000 3,000,000
Ordinary shares,
Number of par value of
shares HKDOQ.1 each Share Share
'000 HKD’OpO - E:apgit‘a}lh ) A@m_igr_n_ Total
At 1 January 2005 12,663,492 1,256,349 1,332,487 52,546,294 53,878,781
Employee share option scheme
- Recognition of shares issued on
exercise of options (Note 29) 10,773 1,077 1,134 54,720 56,854
At 31 December 2005 12,674,265 1,267,426 1,333,621 52,601,014 53,334,635
Employee share optior scheme
- Recognition of shares issued on
exercise of options (Note 29) 106,724 10,672 10,819 621,962 632,781
At 31 December 2006 12,680,989 1,268,098 1,344,440 53,222,976 54,567,416

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 30 billion shares (2005: 30 hillion shares) with a par value of HKDO.1
per share (2005: HKDO.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

Increase of 106,724,000 ordinary shares in 2006 (2005: 10,773,200) represented the ordinary shares issued on
exarcise of share options under the Company’s share option scheme {Note 29(h)).

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006
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The Group The Company
Interest rates and final maturity 2006 2005 2006 2005
RMB Fixed interest rates ranging
denominated from 3.60% to 5.58%
bank loans (2005: 3.60% to 5.58%)
per annum with maturity
through 2010
(2005: maturity through
2010} {a)
- secured - 755,000 — —
- unsecurad 315,000 6,687,468 - -
315,000 7,442,468 - -
usD Floating interest rates of USD
denominated LIBCR plus interest margin
bank loans of 0.35% t0 0.44%
(2005: 0.28% to 0.44%)
per annum with maturity
through 2010
(2005: maturity through
2010} (b) 7,808,699 9,684,240 3,904,349 5,649,162
Sub-total 8,123,699 17,126,708 3,904,349 5,649,162
Less: Current portion {3,984,350) (5,145,190) — (1,614,048}
4,139,349 11,981,518 3,904,349 4,035,116
The repayment schedule of the long-term bank loans is as follows:
The Group The Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
Balances due:
- not later than one year 3,984,350 5,145,180 — 1,614,046
- later than one year and
not later than two years 2,377,609 9,639,408 2,342,610 —
— later than two years and
not later than five years 1,761,740 2,342,110 1,561,739 4,035,116
8,123,699 17,126,708 3,904,349 5,649,162
Less: Portion classified as current liabilities (3,984,350) (5,145,190) - (1,614,046)
4,139,349 3,904,349 4,035,116

11,981,518
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18, LONG-TERNM 3ANK LOANS (contnuog)

(8) As at 31 December 2006, no long-term bank loans (2005: RMB755 miilion) were secured by the future service fee
revenue to be generated by the cellular operations of the relevant branches who borrowed the long-term bank
loans.

(b) On 26 September 2003, the Company signed an agreement with 13 financial institutions for a long-term
syndicated toan of USD0.7 billion. This facility was split into 3 tranches (i) USDO.2 bitlion 3-year foan; iy USD0.3
biftion 5-year loan; and (i) USDO.2 bilion 7-year loan and carried an interest rate of 0.28%, 0.35% and 0.44%
over US dollar LIBOR per annum for each tranche, respectively. In October 2003, the Company and CUCL
entered into an agreement to re-lend such funds to CUCL with similar terms to finance the network construction
of CUCL. During 2006, the Company has fully repaid the USDO0.2 billion 3-year loan.

In addition, on 25 February 2004, CUCL signed an agreement with various financial institutions for a long-term
syndicated loan of USD0.5 billion to finance its working capital and network construction expenditure. This facility
is repayable in 3 years and carries an interest rate of 0.40% over US dollar LIBOR per annum. In February 2007,
CUCL has fully repaid the USDO0.5 killion loan.

{¢) The effective interest rate of long-term bank loans denominated in RMB at 31 December 2008 was 4.22% (31
December 2005: 5.25%), and the effective interest rates of long-term bank loans denominated in USD at 31
December 2006 ranged from 5.72% to 5.81% (31 December 2005: from 4.94% to 5.14%).

(d} The carrying amount of long-term bank loans approximated their fair value.

. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The carrying values of the derivative component and liability component of the convertible bonds as at 31 December
2006 are as follows:

The Group and the

Company
Liahility compenent 7,117,035
Derivative cormponent T sorena
Carrying value of convertible bonds 10,324,949
Number of conversion shares at the issuance date {shares) 899,745,075

No conversion of the convertible bonds has occurred up to 31 December 20086,
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T GONV A3 BONSS et~

On 5 July 2006, the Company issued a zero coupon convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of USD1
billion {the “Convertible Bonds"} to SK Telecom Co., Lid., (“SK Telecom™), an overseas telecommunications service
operator in Korea. The bondholder has the option to convert the Convertible Bonds into shares of the Company with a
par value of HKDO.10 each at a conversion price of HKD8.63 (an equivalent of approximately USD1.11) per share
subject to adjustment for, among other matters, consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares, capitalisation of
profits or reserves, rights issues and other events, which have diluting effects on the issued share capital of the
Company at any time from and including the first anniversary after the date of issuance up to the close of business in
Hong Kong on the day falling seven days prior ta 5 July 2009, the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds. Unless
previously redeemed, converied, or purchased and cancelled, the Convertible Bonds will be redeemed at 104.26% of
its principal amount on 5 July 2008,

At any time after & July 2007 or on the occurrence of a relevant event as defined in the Convertible Bonds agreement,
a bondholder may fresly assign or transfer any of the Convertible Bonds registered in its name to any third party
provided that no assignment or transfer may be made to a person who is (i} a fixed ling or mobile telecommunications
operator in the PRC (a competitor operator), or (i) directly or indirectly an affiliate of a competitor operator.

On & July 2008 (the Put Option Date}, each bondholder will have the right at such holder’s option, to require the
Company to redeem all or some of the Convertible Bonds held by such holder on the Put Option Date at 102.82% of
the principal amount. To exercise such right, the holder of the relevant Convertible Bonds must deliver its notice of
redemption together with the Certificate evidencing the Convertible Bonds to be redeemed not later than 40 days prior
to the Put Option Date.

As the functicnal currency of the Group is RMB, the conversion of the Convertible Bonds denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars will not resuft in settlement by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash in RMB, the functional currency of the
Group, for a fixed number of the Company’s shares. In accordance with the requirements of HKAS 39, Financial
Instruments - Recognition and Measurement, the bond contract must be separated into two components: a derivative
component consisting of the conversion option and a liability compenent consisting of the straight debt element of the
bonds. The conversion option is carried at fair value on the balance sheet with any changes in fair value being charged
or credited to the income statement in the period when the change occours.



128

17 CONVEAVIALE BONDS rontnuza

The fair value of the derivative component of the Convertible Bonds was calculated using the Binomial model with the
major inputs used in the model as at 5 July 2006 and 31 December 2006 as follows:

5 July 31 December

_ 2008 2006
Stock price o HKD6.95 HKD11.40
Exérci:se_ price o B I HKDB.GS- HKD8.63
\_/c;_latility o o N - o B - 3{% _ 3%
Dvidend yield S % 2%
l%i:*;ﬁl(-fréé -rr;lt-e__-v_ S T _-Zg?_:r;.ss% 3.51-3.55%

Expected life 2.25-3years  1.76-2.51 years

Option value HKDOQ.96 HKD3.56

Any changes in the major inputs into the model will result in changes in the fair vatue of the derivative component. The
change in the fair value of the conversion option from 5 July 20086 to 31 December 2006 resulted in a fair value loss of
RMB2.397 billion, which has been recorded as the “Unirealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative component of
Convertible Bonds” in the incorne statement for the year ended 31 Decernber 2006,

The initial carrying amount of the liability component is the residual amount after deducting the issuance cost of the
Convertible Bonds and the fair value of the derivative component as at 5 July 2008, and is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate
of 5,53% to the adjusted liability component. Should the aforesaid derivative component not be separated out and the
entire Convertible Bonds is considered as the liability component, the effective interest rate would have been 1.46%.
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18. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES -~ GRCUPR

Obligations under finance leases are analysed as follows:

The Group
2006 2005

Total minimum lease payments under finance leases:

__— not later .t_han one}ear o N o . h 104,(%637““ ) ;4;3.400 -

| —“— later t-han one yea; 7arn<7:17not ia;(;f than :w_o 'y—ears - o B o B,OSQEW ;g2.d58
| __ - later th% two yearrs‘alzulj ngtE—t;ar -than_ _ﬁ_ie gears;i ;_ N i :7 i,ga{ :‘ ) _-875 '-
| — later than five years 58 -
: 115,419 596,333
i Less: Future finance charges (5,623) (30,335)
i Present value of minimum obligations 109,796 565,998
| Representing cbligations under finance leases:

) - curreﬁt Iiabilities“ o o o B N B o 99,_5_6é o 7;276,631

_; non-current Iiabil-i.t-i—es o - o N o ___—1—0,230_ N 7 1A4L5,367

The present value of obligations under finance Jeases:

__— not Iate; than one ;eérl_ o B - o ) 99,566 450.631

—-—_ later than one yea: ainrdirrurm ;ér tﬁan t;c; ;fears - o B T 7,65“ :4—._541

m—ulater;h:em two ye;a;s and 7no; I:exktér_th%—gve -years o N B - 25; 6 - . 826 |

“lterthenfveyeas sa -

109,796 565,998

Less: Portion classified as current liabilities {99,566) (420,631)

10,230 145,367

Obligations under finance leases were mainty related to the leasing of wireless public phone equipment {Note 6).

For the year ended 31 December 2008, interest rates of obligations under finance leases ranged from 4% to 5%

{2005: 4% to 6%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of obligations under finance leases approximated their fair value.
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L 3AA T S AN ACSHUD LIAEESS
The Group The Company
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005

Payables to contractors and

equipment suppliers 16,184,898 11,156,462 — —
Accrued expenses 2,236,137 1,835,353 33,292 49,057
Payables to telecormmunications

product suppliers 1,875,356 1,372,853 - —
Customer deposits 1,857,849 1,456,601 - -
Maintenance expense payables 1,208,902 542,540 - —
Salary and welfare payables 601,270 464,372 - —
Amounts due to services providers/

content providers 797,586 718,180 - —
Provision for subscriber

bonus point expenses 4.1(d) 555,586 337.414 - -
Others (a) 972,490 644,853 34,779 13,022

26,290,074 18,526,628 68,071 62,079

(a) Others included miscellaneous accruals for housing fund and other government surcharges.

The aging analysis of payables and accrued liabilities is as follows:

The Group The Company
B o —W__— 20_05 B 2006ﬁ77” 2005
L;ss than six months 20,162,555 ?,ééO,SGB 68,071 62,079
Six manths t-o on; ;/;rm o B B 3,981,712 — ‘4:766.4&)0 O R
More than oﬁe ye;r___‘— _ 2,145,807 i _ 2.-499.862 o - —
26,290,074 18,526,628 68,071 62,079
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

20.

SH0A =Ry 3CND8 - CHA0UR

On 19 July 2005, CUCL completed an offering of short-term bonds, consisting of two tranches, in the PRC interbank
debenture market. The first tranche of the bonds was issued in an aggregate amount of BMB9.0 billion with a maturity
period of 365 days and was repaid in July 2006. The second tranche of the bonds was issued in an aggregate amount
of RMB1.0 biltion with a maturity period of 180 days and was repaid in January 2006.

In March 2006, CUCL completed an offering of short-term bonds of RMB1.0 billion with a maturity period of 365 days.
In July 2008, CUCL compileted another offering of short-term bonds in an aggregate amount of RMB6.0 billion,
consisting of three tranches of RMB2.0 billion each, with a maturity period of 180 days, 270 days and 385 days,
respectively. The weighted average effective interest rate of these short-term bonds as at 31 December 2006 was

3.19% (2005: 2.89%).

CBHCHTETERM BANK LCANS

Supplemental information with respect to short-term bank loans is as follows:

The Group
o Weighted av;araQ;# N Maximum_ ”—Av—erage ar;ou;lt Weighte;;verager
interest rate at amount outstanding interest rate
Balance at year end outstanding during the during the year
year end Per annum during the year year" Per annum™*
3_1 December 2006 o a
AMB denominted bank foans
- s_ecured - -
k:—urr‘lsecured - -
- - 5,302,661 2,661,331 4.34%
HKD denominated bank loans
_—un;écug___f - - - 1,721,697 860,849 1.55%
31 December 2005
VB denomineted bank loans - S -
—7secrurrne;j_-__- o ——A-1,OO{J,ODO N . B - _
imseowed  agozest - -
5,302,661 4.86% 10,046,495 6,767,046 4.86%
HKD denominated bank
loans (Note (a))
Cmseowed | atewr  a10% 1761748 1200342 2.00%

7,024,358
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. S‘ C : .JI lUl "Jnnd\l( _OANS fconlngo )
The Company
Weighted average Maximum  Average amount Weighted average
interest rate at amount outstanding interest rate
Balance at year end outstanding during the during the year
year end Per annum during the year year" Per annum**
31 December 2006
HKD denominated bank loans
- unsecured - - 1,721,697 860,849 1.55%
31 December 2005
HKD denominated bank loans (Note {a))
- unsecured 1,721,697 3.10% 1,761,748 1,208,342 2.00%

Notes:

(a) Asat 31 December 2005, HKD denominated shori-term bank foans of approximately HK$1,665 million {equivalent to
approximately RMB1,722 million) were borrowed by the Company to finance the working capital of the Group. The bank loans
wera repayable in 1 year and carried at interest rates from 0.22% to 0.25% over HIBOR per annum. The loan has been fully
repaid in 2006.

(b)  The carrying amounts of short-term loans approximated their fair value.

* The average amount outstanding is computed by dividing the total of outstanding principal balances as at 1 January and 31
December, as applicable, by 2.

**  The weighted average interest rate is computed by dividing the total of weighted average interest rates as at 1 January and 31
December, as applicable, by 2.
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i

22, INVESTMENTS [N AND LOANS/AVOUNT SUEZ W O/A3CN, S8U48 2ATIES ~ COMPANY

(a} Investments in subsidiaries

The Company
2006 2005
Unlisted equity investments, at cost 55,341,026 55,341,026
As at 31 December 20086, the details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:
Percentage
Place and date of of equity Particutar
incorporation and interests held of issued Principal activities and
Name nature of legal t_en_tiiy ﬁr—ect ~Indirect share capital place of operation
China Unicom Corporation The PRC, 100% — 47,425,763 Telecormmunications
Limited 21 April 2000, operation in the PRC
timited liability company
Unicom New World British Virgin Isiands, 100% - 11,000 shares, ~  Investment holding in BVI
(BVI) Limited 5 November 2003, HKD1 each
lirnited liability company
China Unicom Hong Kong, 100% - 100,000 shares,  Telecommunications
International Limited 24 May 2000, HKD1 each service in Hong Kong
limited liability company
China Unicom USA Co. USA, - 100% UsH10,000 Telecommunications
24 May 2002, service in USA
corporation
China Unicom (Macau) Macau, 99% 1% MOP Telecommunications
Company Limited 15 October 2004, 60,000,000 operation in Macau
limited fiability company
Unicom Huasheng The PRC, - 99.5% 500,000 Sales of telecommunication
Telecommunications 1 July 2005, products in the PRC
Technology Company limited liability company
Limited (i}

(0  On 1 July 2005, CUCL together with Unicom Xingye Science and Technology Trade Ce. (“Unicom Xingye™, a subsidiary of
Unicom Group) set up Unicom Huasheng. The paid-in capital of Unicorn Huasheng as of 31 December 2005 was RMBS0
mitlion, CUCL had contributed capital of RMB47 .5 million, whereas the mincrity shareholder Unicom Xingye contributed
the remaining capital of RMB2.5 million, thus CUCL effectively held 95% in the entire issued capital of Unicom Huasheng.
In August 2006, CLICL increased its investment in Unicom Huasheng by RMB450 million, and the paid-in capital of
Unicom Huashang was then increased to RMBS00 million. As at 31 December 2006, CUCL held 89.5% in the entire
issued capital of Unicom Huasheng whereas Unicom Xingye held the remaining 0.5%.
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22, INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS/AMOUNT DUE TO/-ROm SUBSIDIARIES ~ COMPANY

lcoat.nue’)

(b) Loans to subsidiaries

{c)

{) tn October 2003, the Company and CUCL signed an agreement for a long-term unsecured loan of USD0.7
biltion with terms similar to the long-term syndicated bank loan to finance the network construction of CUCL
(Note 16(b)). The loan was split into 3 tranches {i)) USD0.2 billion 3-year loan; (i) USDO.3 billion 5-year ioan
and (i) USDO.2 billion 7-year loan and carried an interest rate of 0.4%, 0.47% and 0.55% over US dollar
LIBOR per annum, respectively. During 2006, CUCL has fully repaid the USDO0.2 billion 3-year ioan.

(i) In September 2006, the Company and CUCL signed an agreement for a long-term unsecured loan of
USD995 million. The loan is interest bearing at 5.67% per annum and wholly repayable in 2009.

(i) In July 2008, the Company and Unicom Macau signed an agreement for a long-term loan facility of HKDG0
million. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable in 2008. As at 31 December 2008, Unicom Macau
has utilised HKD29.3 million {equivalent to approximately RMB29.5 million).

{iv) The carrying amounts of loans to subsidiaries approximated their fair value.

Amounts due to/from subsidiaries

The amounts due to/from subsidiaries, other than loans to subsidiaries as disclosed above, are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

23.

ARVENUE (TURNOVER) - CRCUP

Revenue primarily comprises usage fees, monthly fees, interconnection revenue, leased line rental income, value-
added services revenue and sales of telecommunications products earned by the Group. Tariffs for these services are
subject to regulations by various government authorities, including the State Development and Reform Commission,

the Ministry of Information Industry (*MIl”) and the provincial price regulatory authorities.

Revenue is presented net of business tax and government surcharges. Relevant business tax and government
surcharges amounted to RMB2,285 million for the year ended 31 December 2606 (2005: RMB 2,166 million).

The major components of revenue are as follows:

Note 2006 2005
GSM Business -
Usage fee T  @h 33,609,094 32,077,305
Monthly fee o 7.370,440 6,840,720
]n@onnectioﬁ?e;énue VVVVVV S ‘ . ((;) o 4,914,964 ?‘66_067_
Valued-added service rovenue - (@) 11,543,348 7.966.629
Other revenve S - 1,852,580 1,784,807
Total GSM service revenue 59,290,421 52,135,528
CDMA Busmess
_Us;_a@éé - o - @0 14,695,758 16,726,678
Monthly fee o T 5025422 4905538
-"lnterconnectlon revenue B @ 1,732,360 1 398 5‘};_
Valued-added service rovenue o N © 5314118 4115562
O_ﬂgr:evenue o . o B B 525,484 430.7603 )
Total CDMA service revenue 27,293,142 27,576,936
Data and Internet Busnness
UsaE_fTae T - (;) (;) ) 1,770,321 - 25&0_5%71 )
—IB;;;c_onnectln;ﬁ‘ r;Qér;ﬁg T, T T () 92,140 ) 102, 986 i
' Leased lines rental - o 7 @ 473,708 393,659
Otherreverve ) B 39,147 12,745
Total Data and Internet service revenue 2,375,316 3,049,967
Long Dlstance Business
) uS—agé fee o - @G 64,337 599,251
Interconnectlon revenae - o o (c)i__ 424,792 49;1‘,57?
) Eeased llnes rental o - (d)" o 574,728 489,9_65-
Ot?e;irevem;e T o o 4,565 o 776 .
Total Long Distance service revenue 1,068,422 1,524,573
Total service revenue 90,027,301 84,287,004
Sales of telecommunications products 4,267,192 2,761,827
Total revenue 94,294,493 87,048,831
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23, AZVINUE (TURNCVYER) - GRO0UR cont e 4

{a)

(b)

(c)

{d)

{e)

Usage fees comprise:

() charges for incoming and outgoing calls made by cellular subscribers including charges for locaf calls,
domestic direct dial ("“DDD") and international direct dial (“IDD") as well as roaming fees for calls made by
cellular subscribers outside their local service areas; and

{il charges for IP telephone calls, data and Internet services and fixed line long distance calls.

Montihly fees represent fixed amounts charged to cellular subscribers on a monthly basis for maintaining their
access to the related services.

Interconnection revenue represents amounts received from other operators, inctuding Unicom Group, for calls
from their networks to the Group’s networks. It also inchudes roaming-in fees received from other operators,
including Unicom Group, for calls made by their subscribers using the Group's cellular networks (Notes 33.1(a)
and 33.2(a)).

Rental income represents rentals received for leasing of transmission lines and IRU to Unicom Group, business
customers and other major telecommunications service operators in Maintand China. Other major
telecommunications service operators include China Telecormmunications Corporation and its subsidiaries, China
Mobile Communications Corporation and its subsidiaries and China Network Communication Group Corporation
and its subsidiaries. These entities are collectively referred to as “Domestic Carriers”,

Valued-added services revenue mainly represents revenue from the provision of services such as short message,
cool ringtone, CDMA1X wireless data services and secretarial services to subscribers.

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006
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24, =EXPENSES 3Y NATURE - GROUBP

The following expenses are analysed by nature:

Note 2006 2005
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6 22,005,461 19,931,601
Amortisation of other assets S e 417,350 436,680

Total depreciation and amortisation 22,422,812 20,368,181
Amortisation of direct incrementat costs for

activating cellutar subscribers 8(a) 1,817,220 1,582,282
Amortisation of customer acquisition costs of

contractual CDMA subscribers 8(b) 4,205,253 5,947,631
Provision for doubtful debts

— GSM Business - - 1124113 867,154
_cDMmABusiness o ss7.942 458161
_iﬁé ;n_d IF&&I%&BUSIHGSS - o 106,883 ) 139,327
- Long Distance Business o 52,827 33,868

Total provision for doubtful debts 11 1,741,765 1,498,510
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 10 42,886 20,392
Cost of inventories 10 4,929,988 3,675,316
Auditors’ remuneraticn 120,323 59,884
Operating lease charges

“Leasedlnes T 685003 822673
" _CDMA network capacites 429 8,078,772 7,924,644
- Others o S 1,476,406 1 ,; 57,518

Total cperating lease expenses 10,240,271 9,904,835
Other EXpenses;

- Rel:;llrrkaLnd Ar;;i;ﬂ—en-ance - o T 2,925,717 - 7*27 897 501
- Travellln;;j er;té&a&l—m;—n—t_anc_i n—'leeE S N 779,220 B 683 774
Powerandwatercharges - T 265290 2,219,480
- Off|ce ex;_:)e-n;(;s:'m B 1,120,756 o 6?:!63%02
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| 24. EXPENSES BY NATURE — GROUD

25.

[continund)

Note 2006 2005
Flnance costs:
~ Interest on bank loans repayable over 5 years o 9% 18033
 Interest on bank loans and bonds repayable within 5years 1,162,582 1,955,281
- interest eloment of finance lease N 28633 42697

—Interest expense on convertible bonds 17 193923 -
_—-L;‘—So.— P_\r;\ou;\t_s Capl_{;lé(:d— in constructlon-in-pr;)gr;;s: - (422,797) _ (653;59_-0)—
Total interest expense 962,497 1,333,371

- Exchange gain, net (372,691) (273,647)
Bakohages N 64,414 39,507
Total finance costs 654,220 1,099,321
ZMPLOYEE BENEFIT ZXPENSES - CROUP

Note 2006 2005
Employee benefit expenses:

- Selaries and wages - 5,158,789 4,268,004
-_——C;r;ntn—bu;c;\;_té;;ﬂ;ad_t_x_mtr|but|on pension sche;w—es HZ% o 474,831 o MZ;;&;Q_S_
7 :C’ontrngu‘tgr; -tc;L;;)_pI;;e—r:t;;_c-Ie_ﬂ_nt;d_;ontﬂbuuon pens—a’;n_ o -

schemes 26 54,037 58,222
- Moretary housing benefts 21 35,528 4113
e Contributions to other r_wou_sing fund - 77277"7 o 286,253 o 280,393
- Otherhousing benefts . 192,967 447315

- Shar;a—-_b;-sed compensation o 29 o 146,294 o 158—;17 '
Total 6,648,699 5,616,312
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25.1 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

25. EMIPLOYZE BENEFIT EXPENSES — CROUR continusd)

The remuneration of every Directors for the year ended 31 December 2006 is set out below:

Bonuses Contributions
Salaries and paid and Other  to pension
Name of Director Note Fees allowances payable benefits (a) schemes Total
Chang Xiaobing - 2,460 2,092 - 19 4,571
Shang Bing — 2,152 1,632 968 19 4,771
Tong Jilu—_—__ — 1,742 1,291 968 19 4,020
Li Jianguo {©) — 1,038 738 965 15 2,756
Yang Xiaowaei (c) — 1,038 738 895 15 2,686
Li Zhengmao (c) - 1,038 738 466 15 2,257
Li Gang © - 1,038 738 - 15 1,791
Zhang Junan (© — 1,038 738 - 15 1,791
Lu Jianguo (©) 247 — — 1,278 — 1,525
Wu Jinglian 420 — - — — 420
Shan Weijian 379 - — - - 379
Cheung Wing Lam, Linus 400 — — - — 400
Wong ;J-Vai Ming (b) 390 — — - — 3390
Li Qiuhong (d} — 346 235 - 3 584
Lo Wing Yan, William (@) — 608 — — 3 611
Ye Feng_p-i;c;; (e) - 348 - — 3 349
Liu Yu;1j—ie I(; 81 — — — — a1
Total 1,817 12,844 8,940 5,540 141 29,382
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25.1 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of every Directors for the year ended 31 December 2005 is set cut below:

Bonuses Contributions
Salaries and paid and Cther  to pension
Name of Director Note Fees allowances payable  benefits (a) schemes Total
EJEarE)&)b}\g o - __2.—525 o 1,669 o 19 4213
ShengBing - 2208 1288 - 18 3518
Tongd  ~ 1788 3088 - 19 285
lLQuhong (@) - e2 8B - & 1013
Zhole @ - 8w 40 -7 12
LoWing Yan, Wilam () - 2074 217 513 13 2877
Ya Feingpvir;;ﬂ o (e)——_ o 1,427(7)'ﬁ7 -_71_2__ _ o ;3 ‘-2;1"4_57
LuYje @ s - - T
CrigO.McCaw (@) 114 - = - =
Wu .Jingl];n S o -51A6A :___" o —_ —__— - ‘:— 7”516
ShanWeiin @& —  — - - 3.
CheungWinglLam,Unus @6 -  —  _ 3
Total 1,378 11,497 5,726 513 96 19,210
Note:

{a) Other benefits represent the difference between the amount which the directors obtain from a sale in the open market

at the time of exercise of the options and the amount of the consideration paid for the shares during the year.

{b) Mr. Wong Wai Ming was appointed as independent non-executive director on 19 January 2006.

{€) Ms. Li Jianguo, Mr. Yang Xiaowei, Mr. Li Zhengmao, Mr. Li Gang and Mr. Zhang Junan were appointed as execuiive

directors on 1 April 2006. Mr. Lu Jianguo was appointed as non-executive director on 1 April 2006.

{d) Mr. LiQiuhong was appointed as executive director on 18 July 2005 and resigned on 1 April 2006.

{e} Mr. Lo Wing Yan, William, and Mr. Ye Fengping resigned as executive directors on 1 April 2006. Mr. Liu Yunjie resigned

as non-executive director on 1 April 20086.

Mr. Zhao Le resigned as executive director on 19

July 2005.

(@ Mr. Craig O. McCaw retired as independent non-executive director on 12 May 2005.

On 15 February 20086, 2,840,000 share options {(2005: Nil) were granted to the then existing Directors and
3,000,000 share options {2005: Nil) were granted to management who were later appointed as Directors of the
Company. No directors waived the right to receive emoluments during the year. (2005: Nil)

During 2006 and 2005, the Company did not incur any payment to any director for loss of office or as inducement

to any director to join the Compary.
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25, EVBLOYES ENZFIT 2XFEINGES - CROLZ ot o o

25.2 Five highest paid individuals

Of the highest paid individuals in 20086, three (2005: five) are existing directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in Note 25.1. The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals, one is a past
director and one is an employee, falls within the band from RMB2.5 million to RMB3.0 million and RMB3.5 million
to RMB4.0 million, respectively. Their aggregate emoluments are set out below:

2006 2005

Salaries and allowances o ~ 2,076 -
Bonuses paid an;j payable" o i o - 1,420 _ o -—
Othér b-eneﬁts (r_\lc;te 25.1(a))— - ) - N - 3,011 -
Céntributioﬁs‘té ;ens_ion-égr;emes N o - S 2;4_—_~ o
o o - N o 6,531 -

25. RAETIREM =N BENEFITS - 8ACU?

Full time employees in Mainland China are covered by a state-sponsored defined contribution pension scheme under
which the employees are entitled to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of their basic salaries at their
retirement dates. The PRC government is responsible for the pension liability to these retired employees. The Group
was required to make defined contributions to the pension scheme at the rate of 19% of the employees’ basic salaries
for the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: 19%). Under this scheme, the Group has no obligation {or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.

In addition, effective from 11 August 1998, a supplementary defined contribution pension plan managed by an
independent insurance company was established. Under this plan, the Group makes a monthly defined contribution of
2% to 16% (2005: 2% to 16%;) of the monthly salary of the relevant employees. There were no vested benefits
attributable to past services upon adoption of the plan.

Retirement benefits charged to the income statement are as follows:

2006 2005

Contributions to supplementary defined contribution pension schemes 54,037 58,222

Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes 474,831 412,825
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27. ACUSING 3=ENZATE - GAR0UR

Under housing reform schemes in accordance with government regulations at the provinciat level in Mainland China,
the Group provided benefits to certain qualified employees to enable them to purchase living quarters at a discount.
For GSM Business, certain of these living quarters were provided by Unicom Group and the related benefits were not
charged to the Group. Housing benefits which were not charged to the Group amounted to approximately RM314.9
million for 2006 {2005: RMB14.9 million).

In addition, full time employees in Mainland China are entitled to participate in a state-sponsored housing fund. The
fund can be used for the construction of living quarters or may be withdrawn upon the retirement of the employees.
The Group is required to make annual contributions to the housing fund at a rate of 10% (2005: 109%) of the
employees’ basic salaries.

According to the central government policy on housing reform based on a State Council circular issued in 1998,
monetary housing subsidies in the form of speciat cash payments are to be made by certain Mainland China
enterprises to their employees in order to enable them to purchase living quarters. Under this general policy,
enterprises are allowed to establish their own housing reform schemes taking into consideration the actual financial
capability of the enterprises.

The Group finalised its monetary housing benefit scheme as a special employee incentive scheme for all qualified
employees in 2001. According to the scheme, the total amount of monetary housing benefit for each employee is
determined based on the working age of the employee and the property market price prevailing in the retevant
location. The total monetary housing benefit is divided into three annual payments in the proportion of 40%, 30% and
30% respectively. In order to be included in the incentive scheme, employees are required to sign a service contract
with a minimum service period. The employees will be entitled to the first 40% payment only when the following criteria
are met:

(i the provincial branch in which the employees are working has achieved the annual performance budget sat by
head office management; and

(il the employees continue to be under the employment of the Group at the time of the payment.

Similarly, the employees will only be entitled to the second and then the third annual payments when and only when
the above two conditions are also fulfilled in subsequent years.

For the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005, certain provinces achieved the annual performance budget and were
thus approved by management to distribute and pay out such monetary housing benefits. The provision for spec.al
monetary housing benefits for qualified employees of these provinces for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005
amounted to approximately RMB36 million and RMB41 million, respectively, based on the aforementioned distribution
plan. The remaining provinces were not entitled to the special monetary housing benefits in 2006 since they did not
achieve their annual performance budget in 2006 and accordingly, no provision for such benefits was made.

The expenses incurred by the Group in relation to the housing benefits described above are as follows:

2006 2005

Special monetary housing benefits - o 35,528 41 ,13?
Cc-Jnt-ribuﬁons to otht;.r l;;)usi-rmg iund 7 o L;gé,};:}“ 280,393
Other housing beineﬁts ” » - - :1_92-,—9_67_— £47 315
814,748 768,844
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{(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28. FA0FIS ATTRIBUTALELZ TC QUL Y HOLCERE

(a)

CUCL has registered as foreign investment enterprises in the PRC. In accordance with the Articles of Association
of CUCL, it is required to provide for certain statutory reserves, namely, generat reserve fund and staff bonus and
welfare fund, which are appropriated from profit after tax and mingrity interests but before dividend distribution.

CUCL is required to allocate at least 10% of its profit after tax and minority interests determined under PRC GAAP
to the general reserve fund untii the cumulative amounts reach 50% of the registered capital. The statutory
reserve can only be used, upon approval oblained from the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital.

CUCL appropriated approximately RMB584 million (2005: RMB463 million) to the general reserve fund for the
year ended 31 December 2006.

Appropriation to the staff bonus and welfare fund is at the discretion of the directors. The staff bonus and welfare
fund can only be used for special bonuses or the collective welfare of the employees and are not distributable as
cash dividends. Under HKFRS, the appropriations to the staff bonus and welfare fund will be charged to the
income statement as expenses incurred since any assets acquired through this fund belong to the employees.
For the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005, no appropriation to staff bonus and welfare fund has been
made.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, profit attributable to equity holders included a profit of approximately
RMB659 million (2005: profit of RMB3,130 million) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company. As at 31 December 2008, the amount of distributable reserves to equity holders of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB2,368 million (2005; RMB3,093 million).
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28, SHAAE CFVICON SClHENE

The Company adopted a share option scheme {the “Share Option Scheme”) and a fixed award pre-global offering

share options scheme (“Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme™ on 1 June 2000 for the granting of share options

to qualified employees, with terms amended on 13 May 2002 to comply with the requirements set out in the Chapter

17 {0 the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on SEHK.

All of the share options granted are governed by the amended terms of the Share Option Scheme and Pre-Global

Offering Share Option Scheme as mentioned below.

Moverents in the number of share options outstanding and their

related weighted average exercise prices are as

follows:
The Company
200_(; - o _‘—2_065 T
o Average exercise Number of Averglét;reixé;irs; . Nua;ber of i
price in HKD share options price in HKD share options
per share involved per share involved
Balance:)eginning of year_ - 6.51 257,602,000 T 6;5 274,063,400
G—;ant.ed T . 6.35 167,466,000 _ - -
Foﬁéited o - 6.92 (4,088,000) 7.1&'; - (5238200)
Exercised S . 4.95 (106,724,000) 4.60 (1_6,_7_7?3,-2‘00)-
Batance, end of year 6.95 314,256,000 8.51 257,602,000

Employee share options exercised for the year ended 31 December 2006 resulted in 106,724,000 shares being issued
(2005: 10,773,200 shares), with exercise proceeds of approximately RMB535 million (2005: RMB52 million).

As at 31 December 20086, out of the 314,256,000 outstanding share options (2005: 257,602,000), 115,683,6C0 share

options (2005: 162,881,160) were exercisable, and the weighted
HKD7.12).

average exercise price was HKD8.09 (2005:

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

28, SHARE OPVICN SCHIME centini.4)

As at 31 December 20086, information of outstanding share options is summarised as follows:

The period during
which an option may

The price per outstanding as at
share to be paid on

Number of

share options
outstanding as at
31 December

Number of
share options

31 December

Date of options grant be exercised exercise of options 2006 2005

Share options granted under the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme:

22 June 2000 (a) 22 June 2002 to HKD15.42 24,178,000 24,309,600
21 June 2010

Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme:

30 June 2001 (b) 30 June 2001 to HKD15.42 6,292,000 6,508,000
22 June 2010

10 July 2002 (c} 10 July 2003 to HKD&.18 11,540,400 25,012,800
9 Juty 2008

21 May 2003 (d) 21 May 2004 to HKD4.30 25,611,600 91,381,600
20 May 2009

30 May 2003 (d) 21 May 2004 to HKD4.66 - 212,000
20 May 2009

20 July 2004 {g) 20 July 2005 to HKD5.92 80,224,000 109,524,000
19 July 2010

21 December 2004 (f) 21 December 2005 to HKDB.20 654,000 654,000
20 December 2010

15 February 2006 (g} 15 February 2008 to HKD6.35 165,756,000 —
14 February 2012

314,256,000

257,602,000
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28, SHARE CPUVICN SCHIEME contnung)

(@

(b)

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors in June 2000, a total of the 27,116,600 share options
were granted on 22 June 2000 te the senior management, including directors, and certain other employees
{which represent, on their full exercise, 27,116,600 shares of the Company) under the fixed award Pre-Global
Offering Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 1 June 2000 in the following terms:

() the exercise price is equivalent to the share issue price of the Global Offering of HKD15.42 per share
(excluding the brokerage fee and SEHK transaction levy); and

(il  the share options are vested and exercisable after 2 years from the grant date and expire 10 vears from the
date of grant.

No further option can be granted under the Pre-Global Offering Option Scheme.

The Pre-Global Offering Option Scheme had been amended in conjunction with the amended terms of the Share
Option Scheme on 13 May 2002, Apart from the above two terms, the principal terms are the same as the
amended Share Option Scheme in all material aspects.

On 1 June 2000, the Company adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to which the directors of the
Company may, at their discretion, invite employees, including executive directors, of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, to take up share options to subscribe for shares up to a maximum aggregate number of shares
(including those that could be subscribed for under the Pre-Global Offering Share Option Scheme as described
above} egual to 10% of the total issued share capital of the Company. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the
nominal consideration payable by a participant for the grant of share options will be HKD1.00. The exercise price
payable by a participant upon the exercise of an option will be determined by the directors at their discreticn at
the date of grant, except that such price may not be set below a minimum price which is the higher of:

(@ the nominal value of a share; and

(i) 80% of the average of the closing prices of shares on the SEHK on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option on which there were dealings in the shares on the SEHK.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the directors at their discretion, except
that no option may be exercised later than 10 years from 22 June 2000. According 1o a resolution of the Board of
Directors in June 2001, the Company has granted 6,724,000 share options under the Share Option Scheme

which represent, on their full exercise, 6,724,000 shares to certain employees of the Group in the following terms:

{i) the price of a share payable by a participant upon the exercise of an option shall be HKD15.42 (excluding
the brokerage fee and SEHK transaction levy); and |

(i} the share options are vested on the date of grant and exercisable from the date of grant to 22 June 2010. |

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006
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(Al amounts in RMB thousands uniess otherwise stated)

28. SEARE OFTION 8Cr ZWiE eomtm

The terms of the Share Option Scheme were amended on 13 May 2002 to comply with the requirements set out

in the Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 September 2001 with the following major

amendments;

{ii share option may be granted to employees including executive directors of the Group or any of the non-

executive directors;

(i the option period commences on a day after the date on which an option is offered but not later than 10

years from the offer date; and
(i} minimum subscription price shalfl not be less than the higher of:

. the nominal value of the shares;

+ the closing price of the shares of the stock exchange as stated in the stock exchange's quotation

sheets on the offer date in respect of the share options; and

* the average closing price of the shares on the stock exchange's quotation sheets for the five trading

days immediately preceding the offer date.

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors and the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company dated 10 July 2002, a total of 36,028,000 share options were granted to eligible individuals including

directors, independent non-executive directors, and the non-executive directors of the Company under the

amended Share Option Scheme in the following terms:

(i} aggregate of 2,802,000 share options were granted to the executive directors, non-executive directors and

independent non-executive directors of the Company;
(il the exercise price per share option is HKD6.18; and

(i} the vesting dates and exercisable periods of the share options are as follows:

Vesting dates Exercisable periods Portions
10 July 2003 10 July 2003 to 9 July 2008 40%
10 July 2004 10 July 2004 to @ July 2008 30%

10 July 2005 10 July 2005 to 9 July 2008

30%
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28, G/

{d)

(&

Al CATION SCHEMIE (contnuoa;

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors and the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company dated 21 May 2003 and 30 May 2003, a total of 105,590,000 share options and 366,000 share options
were granted to eligible individuals (including directors, independent non-executive directors, non-executiva

directors, middle to senior management of the Group) respectively, under the amended Share Option Scheme in

the following terms:

(i)

(il
)

an aggregate of 2,772,000 share options were granted to the executive directors, non-executive directors

and independent non-executive directors of the Company;

the exercise prices per share option are HKD4.30 and HKD4.66, respectively; and

the vesting dates and exercisable periods of the share options are as follows:

Vesting dates Exercisable periods Portions
21 May 2004 21 May 2004 to 20 May 2009 o - 40%
21 May2005 21 May 2005 to 20 May 2009 T aow
éi May_2006 S “217@1)/ 20067tro 26 h;I;y_:;CJ_()UQW- - - 30%

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors and the independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company dated 20 July 2004, a total of 112,668,000 share options were granted to eligible individuals (including
directors, independent non-executive directors, non-executive directors, middle to senior management of the

Group, under the amended Share Option Scheme in the following terms:

0

@i
(iii}

an aggregate of 3,366,000 share options were granted to the executive directors, non-executive directors

and independent non-executive directors of the Company;

the exercise price per share option is HKD5.92; and

the vesting dates and exercisable periods of the share options are as follows:

Vesting dates Exercisable periods Portions
20 July 2005 20 July 2005 t(-)_19 July 2010 40%
éO :Jtlly.2006 o 26 JTJI;-Z-(;OS to 1‘; Jl:l|y_2~6;6 - o _3_0736
QE) .July; 266? - - -20 July 200} {o 19 JUQQEE B “__50%
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cantac=)

{i  Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors and the Independent Non-Executive Diractors of the
Company dated 21 December 2004, a total of 654,000 share options were granted to the executive directors of
the Company, under the amended Share Option Scheme in the following terms:

i
(ii

the exercise price per share option is HKD6.20; and

the vesting dates and exercisable periods of the share options are as follows:

Vesting dates Exercisable periods Porticns
21 December 2005 21 December 2005 to 20 December 2010 40%
21 December 2006 21 “De-a-cerr.wber 2006 to 20 Decémb;ar 20-1(5 - 309;;
21 Dééémber 2007 21 Décember 2007. to 20 Dece-mber 2016 7 (_30;6

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors and the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company dated 15 February 2006, a total of 167,466,000 share options were granted to eligible individuals
(including directors and middle to senior management of the Group) under the amended Share Option Scheme in

the following terms:

)

(i)
i
(iv)

this grant comprises basic and conditional portions. The criterion for the exercise of the conditional portion
of share options are based on the achievement of revenue and profit targets of the 2006 budget of the
Company and respective provincial branches. Under this scheme, out of the total of 167,446,000 share
options granted, 37,762,000 share options were granted with performance conditions;

an aggregate of 2,840,000 share options were granted to the then executive directors of the Company;
the exercise price per share option is HKD6.35; and

the vesting dates and exercisable periods of the share options are as follows:

Vesting dates Exercisable periods Portions

15 February 2008 15 February 2008 to 14 February 2012 50%

15 February 2009 15 February 2009 to 14 February 2012 50%
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pg. S.'In"\ﬁ ;' OPTION SC; :EME [contnued)

The Group recognised share-based employee compensation costs based on the estimated fair value of share cptions
at the grant date by using the Black-Scholes valuation mode!. Because the Black-Scholes valuation model requires the
input of subjective assumptions, including the volatifity of share price, change in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate. Accordingly, the fair value of share options granted under the above scheme in
2006 was HKD2.10 per option. The significant assumptions used was the closing price of HKD6.35 at the grant date,
exercise price of HKD6.35 per share, volatility of 39%, expected life of share options of 5 years, expected dividend
payout rate of 2% and annual risk-free interest rate of 4%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last 5 years.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, employee share-based compensation costs amortised over the vesting
periods of the share options amounted to approximately RMB146 million {2005: RMB108 million).

{hy Details of share options exercised during 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2006:

Weighted average
closing price

per share at
respective days
immediately before

the exercise Proceeds

Exercise price of options received Number of

Grant date HKD HKD HKD shares involved
10 July 2002 6.18 8.82 81,180,480 13,136,000
21 May 2003 4.30 8.35 282,742,200 65,754,000
30 May 2003 4,66 8.51 986,860 212,000
20 July 2004 5.92 8.80 163,522,240 27,622,000
528,431,780 106,724,000
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{All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31 December 2005:
Weighted average
closing price
per share at
respective days
imrmediately before

the exercise Proceeds

Exercise price of options received Number of

Grant date HKD HKD HKD . shares invoived
10 July 2002 6.18 7.69 5,821,560 942,000
21 May 2003 4.30 7.76 37,793,560 8,789,200
30 May 2003 4.66 7.680 716,870 154,000
20 July 2004 592 6.90 5,256,960 888,000
49,588,950 10,773,200

30. FARNINGS P=R3 SHAR:

Earnings per Share and ADS:

Basic earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 were computed by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the years.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2005 were computed by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the years, after
adjusting for the effects of the dilutive potential ordinary shares. All potential ordinary shares arose from (i} share
options granted under the amended Pre-Global Offering Share Option Schems; (fi) share options granted under the
amended Share Option Scheme and {iii} the Convertible Bonds. The potential ordinary shares which are not dilutive
mainty arose from share options granted under the amended Pre-Globa! Offering Share Option Scheme and the
Convertible Bonds and are therefore excluded from the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of

diluted earnings per share.

2006 2005
Profit Profit

attributable to Per share attributable to Per share

equity holders Shares amount  equity holders Shares amount

RMB’000 In thousands RMB RMB'000 In thousands RMB

Basic earnings 3,731,824 12,599,018 0.296 4,931,052 12,570,398 0.392
Effect of conversion

of share options - 50,288 - 37.078
Diluted earnings 3,731,824 12,649,306 0.295 4,931,052 12,607,476 0.3

Basic and diluted earnings per ADS have been computed by multiplying the earnings per share by 10, which is the

number of shares represented by each ADS.
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o CTATIRY S 3T QA 3 ‘
30, ZAANINGS 32 8408 {contou

To enable an investor to better understand the Group's results, below is a table reconciling earnings per share to
adjusted earnings per share, excluding the unrealised loss on changes in fair value of derivative component of
Convertible Bonds that is not considered to be an indicator of the Group's cperating performance in 20086.

2006 2005
Profit attributable to equity holders 3,731,824 4,931,052
Adjustments for:
Unrealised loss on changes in fair value of
derivative component of Convertible Bonds 2,396,592 —
Profit attributable to equity holders (excluding
unrealised loss on changes in fair value of
derivative component of Convertible Bonds) 6,128,416 4,931,052
Adjusted basic earnings per share {excluding
unrealised loss on changes in fair value of
derivative component of Convertible Bonds) (RMB) 0.486 2.392
Adjusted diluted earning per share (excluding
unrealised loss on changes in fair value of
derivative component of Convertible Bonds) (RMB) 0.484 3.391
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31. DIVIDENDS

At the annual general mesting held on 12 May 2006, the shareholders of the Company approved the payment of a final
dividend of RMBO0.11 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2005 totaling approximately RMB1.4 billion
which has been reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for 2006. As at 31 December 2006, such dividends
have been fully paid by the Comparny.

At a meeting held on 28 March 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company proposed the payment of a final dividend
of RMBO0.18 per ordinary share to the shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2006 totaling approximately
RMB2.3 billion. This proposed dividend has not been reflected as a dividend payable in the financial statements as at
31 December 2008, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits in the financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2007.

2006 2005

Proposed final dividend of RMBQ.18 (2005: RMBOC.11) per ordinary share 2,282,578 1,383,169
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32, AR VALSZ OF FINANCGIAL INSTAJWANTS -

Ca0UR

receivable, amounts due from related parties and Domestic Carriers. Financial liabilities of the Group mainly include

payables and accrued liabilities, bank loans, convertible bonds, short-term bonds, lease payables and amounts due to

|
‘ Financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits, accounts

related parties and Domestic Carriers.

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits denominated in foreign currencies, as summarised below,
have been translated to RMB at the applicable rates quoted by the People's Bank of China as at 31 December 20086.

The Group
B - N 20(';6_ - - o 72005 ______
S Originaj}m - RMB o Origir;él o RI/IB -
currency Exchange equivalent currency Exchange equivalent
‘000 rate RMB'000 ‘000 rate RMB’000
Cash and cash equivalents: ' -
- cA!eniormiﬁat(;d }n HK dloia;s 651,551 1.00 654,613 45,?9; o 1.04 7:17:636 |
ldgnéiwr_r;ina;ea_ir; L]S dol-lars 478,397 7.81 3,735,659 ) 83,025 - 8.07 -“E_S;O-,O—ﬁ
_ denominated in MOP - 0.98 - @ 1 e
- der:o:n—inated ;n EUﬁO_ - 1,700 10.27 17,457 8? N 9.90 i é61
Sub-total 4,407,729 718,600
Short-term bank deposits:
V: cIe_rl_();énatéd:n ;lK dbi[ars 13,000 1.00 13,060 — - 1.04 R _;
- r':!;an—o-rrw_ﬁn;ted ia_US dtV)l}air;;w 22,333 7.81 174,389 35,000 8.07 58‘2:15-7
Sub-total 187,449 282,457
4,595,178

Total
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{All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

32. FAIAVALUS OF FINANCIAL (NS AUM ENTE ~ CACUR jcontim)

The Company
- - 2006 - o 2(3;)_5- )
- CV)Vri;inal - RMB_—W O}igin;lgu_u o —-____Fm_
currency Exchange equivalent currency Exchange equivalent
'000 rate RMB’C00 ‘000 rate RMB'000
Cash and cas;;equivalents: T T i
——de_nc_)r-ninated in I;I*—(_dollars 624,847 1.00 627,765 B 36,695A S --1.0-4 ___3_8,_1(':);
) - denominatéd—in US doltars 37,424 7._81 292,236 324.412 - 8:07 o 261 ,51;1
Sub-total 920,001 299,744
Short-term bank deposits:
. c_ier;;ﬁ;inat;d'in- ;iikgdollars 13,000 1.00 13,060 I 1.04- .
———d;bl;inale;;i in‘ -IJS dollars 7 22,333 7.81 174,389 N 10.(_)—00 T 8.07-_ B __8-[;,—762
Sub-total 187,449 80,702

Total 1,107,450 380,446

The Group did not have and does not believe it will have any difficulty in exchanging its foreign currency cash into RMB
at the exchange rates quoted by the People's Bank of China. The carrying amounts of the Group's cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits, other current financial assets and liabilities approximated their fair values as at
31 December 2006 due to the nature or short maturity of those instruments.

The carrying amounts of receivables and payables which are alt subject to normal trade credit terms approximated

their fair values.

The derivative component of the convertible bonds is carried at fair value with any changes in fair value reflected
through profit or loss in the period when such changes occur. The liability component of convertible bands is carried at
amortised cost, which approximates their fair values {(Note 17},

The carrying amounts of long-term bank loans approximated their fair values based on prevailing market borrowing
rates available for comparable bank loans with similar terms and maturities.




187

33. AEILATED PARTY TEANSACTICONS - CGRCUR

Unicom Group is a state-owned enterprise directly controfled by the PRC government. The PRC government is the
Company’s uttimate controliing party. State-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries, in addition to Unicom Group,
directly or indirectly controfled by the PRC government are also considered to be related parties of the Group. Neither
Unicom Group nor the PRC government publishes financial statements available for public use.

The PRC government also controls a significant portion of the productive assets and entities in the PRC. The Group
provides telecommunications services as part of its retail transactions, thus, is likely to have extensive transactions with
the employees of other state-controlled entities, including their key management personnel and their close famiy
members. These transactions are carried out on commercial terms that are consistently applied to all customers.
Management considers other state-owned enterprises that have other material transactions with the Group include
other telecommunications service operators, equipment vendors, construction vendors, and state-owned banks in the
PRC. Management believes that meaningful information refative to related party transactions has been adequately
disclosed below.

The Group's telecommunications networks depend, in large part, on interconnection with the public switched
telephane network and on transmission lines leased from other Domestic Carriers.

33.1Unicom Group and its subsidiaries

The table set forth below summarises the names of significant related parties {excluding Domestic Carriers and
other major state-owned enterprises which are summarised in Note 33.2 and 33.3 respectively) and nature of
relationship with the Group as at 31 December 2006:

Name of related parties Nature of relaticnship with the Company
China United Telecommunications Corporation ("Unicom Group”) Ultimate holding company

J;i—cgl:n- NewSpace Co., Ltd. {*Unicom NewSpace”} A subsidiary of Unicom Group

Unicom Xingye Science and - A subsizigr-y of Unicom Group

Technology Trade Co., Ltd. {"Unicom Xingye")

Beijing Unicom Xingye Science and Technology A subsidiary of Unicom Group
Company Limited (“Beijing Xingye™)

Unicom Import and Expert Company Limited (" Unicom IVE Co") A subsidiary of Unicom Group

Unicom New Horizon Mobile Telecommunications
Corporation Limited (“New Horizon™) A subsidiary of Unicom Group

Unicom New Guoxin Telecommunications
Corporation Limited ("New Guoxin™} A subsidiary of Unicom Group

China Informaticn Technology Designing & Consulting
Institute (“CITDCI"){(Newly became a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Unicom Group in December 2006) A subsidiary of Unicom Group

UNISK {Beijing) Infermation Technology
Co., Lid. {(“UNISK" A joint venture company of Unicom Group

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006
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SE. RELAVIZT PRAVY TURANGACTIONE - R0 E e L

33.1Unicom Group and its subsidiaries (continued)

(@) Transactions with Unicom Group and its subsidiaries

The following is a summary of significant recurring transactions carried out by the Group with Uricom Group
and its subsidiaries. In the directors’ opinion, these transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of

business.
Note 20086 2005
Transactions with Unicom Group and its subsidiaries:
Interconnection and roaming revenues ) (i): aii) ) 212,178 207:52_6—
ln-lercennectien- and roaming charges - o (il),liii) 59,125 57,9_62_
Flental income for premises and laculrlree N o "li; S 16,257 18,662
Charge for operathr-based value adhed S
services by New Guoxin v 365,076 412,549
Charge lor custorher- serwcee by New Guoxlh 7 (vl) 7 675,373 565,003
lAgency fee uncerred for subscriber developmenl -
services by New Guoxm (vii) 58,982 15,312
CDMA network capacity lease rental 7 o - lvrr) o 8,078,772 7.924,65 -
Constructed capacxt; related cost of CDI\-A‘/; netwo-rl; - ——E;)— o 167,367 176,1 SE-
Sales of CDNiIAAhar‘ldrsets S ) o 84,190 2 921
Charges for cellular subecnber value- addeci services by . -
UNISK and Unicom NewSpace {xi) 45618 28,418
Rental charges for pre_rhlses ee—u_lprheht_ahd—f-amIltles i ) _(x;)_ o 27,91 21 059-
Charges for he internationa) gateway senvices () 17,143 19,797
b'h;r;ee for 1eae|ng of satellite transmission capa;:lt_ym | (_x;{ - o 11,794
Revenue for I_ea:\s_ln.g of trahsmresmn line ;apacny v 7 (X\r) B 17,682 25,841
Purchase of telephone cards - o h;vi) o 702,409 B 671,7?

Agency fee incurred for procuremer\t of
telecommunications eqmprnent (i) 13,148 15,791
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ad. Az lAVED

SATCY TAANSACTIONS ~ CA0LUT wentnw )

33.1Unicom Group and its subsidiaries continueq)

{a) Transactions with Unicom Group and its subsidiaries (continued)

0

(i)

)

{v)

v

{vi)

Interconnection revenues represent the amounts received or receivable from Unicom Group for calls
from its networks to the Group's networks. Roaming revenues represent revenue from calls made by
Unicom Group's subscribers using the Group's networks,

interconnection charges are for calls made from the Group's networks to Unicom Group's networks.
Roaming expenses represent expenses for calls made by the Group’s subscribers using Unicom
Group’s networks.

Interconnection settlement between Unicom Group's network and the Group's network is based on
standards established from time to time by the Mil. In the case of calls between cellular subscribers in
different provinces, settlement is based on either the standards established by the Ml or an internal
settlement arrangement applied by Unicom Group based on their respective internal costs of providing
this service. Also, charges for roaming services between the Group and Unicom Group are based on
the respective internal costs of providing these services.

Pursuant to the premises leasing agreement signed between the Group and New Guoxin in 2005 (the
2005 Guoxin Premises Leasing Agreement”), the Group agreed to provide premises to New Guoxin,
The rental amount is based con the higher of depreciation costs and market price for similar premises in
that locality.

Pursuant to the agreement signed between the Group and New Guoxin in 2005 (the “2005
Comprehensive Operator Services Agreement”), the Group shall retain 40% of the actually received
revenue generated from the value-added services provided by New Guoxin to the Group's subscribers
and allocate 60% of such revenue to New Guoxin. The settlement should be made among branches of
the Group and New Guoxin respectively.

Pursuant to the 2005 Comprehensive Operator Services Agreemant, New Guoxin provides business
inquiries, tariff inquiries, account maintenance, complaints handling, and customer interview and
subscriber retention services to the Group's customers. The service fee payable by the Group shall be
calculated on the basis of the customer service costs plus a profit margin, which shall not exceed 10%.
The customer service costs were determined by the actual cost per operator seat and the number of
effective operator seats.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - GACUP o rucd)

33.1Unicom Group and its subsidiaries (continued)

(8} Transactions with Unicom Group and its subsidiaries (continued)

Vil

(vii)

(i)

{x)

|
|
|
(xi)

Pursuant to the 2005 Comprehensive Operator Services Agreement, New Guoxin provides subscriber
development services to the Group through telephone or other channels by utilising its own network,
equipment and operators. The agency fee chargeable to the Group does not exceed the average of
agency fees chargeable by any independent third party agent in the same region.

Pursuant to the 2005 CDMA Lease Agreement entered among CUCL, Unicom Group and Unicom New
Horizon, Unicom New Horizon agreed to lease the capacity of COMA network to CUCL. Details please
refer to Note 4.2(¢).

Pursuant to the 2005 CDMA Lease Agreement, the constructed capacity related costs in connection
with the CDMA network capacity used by the Group, including the rentals for the exchange centers and
the base stations, water and electricity charges, heating charges and {uel charges for the relevant
equipment atc., as well as the maintenance costs of a non-capital nature, are charged to the Group as
part of the 2005 COMA Lease Agreement. The proportion of the constructed capacity related costs to
be borne by the Group shall be calculated on a monthly basis by reference to the actual number of
cumulative COMA subscribers of the Group at the end of the month prior to the occurrence of the costs
divided by 90%, as a percentage of the total capacity available on the CDOMA network.

Pursuant to the framework agreement for the procurement of COMA mobile handsets entered between
the Guizhou branch of Unicom Huasheng and the Guizhou branch of Unicom Group on 18 December
20086, the Guizhou branch of Unicom Huasheng agreed to sell CDMA mobile handsets to the Guizhou
branch of Unicom Group from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2008. The selling price of the CDMA
mebile handsets are determined based on the factors including without limitation on the cost of
handsets acquired by the Guizhou branch of Unicom Huasheng for sale and the cost in distributing
those handsets to recipients designated by the Guizhou branch of Unicom Group.

Pursuant to the Cellular Subscriber Value-Added Services Agreements (the "Agreements”) entered
among CUCL, UNISK and Unicom NewSpace respectively in March 2004, GUCL agreed to provide its
telecommunications channel and network subscriber resources to UNISK and Unicom NewSpace,
enable them to provide value-added services to subscribers through CUCL's cellular
telecommunications natwork and data platform. The Agreements also stipulate that the content service
fees paid by subscribers for using UNISK'’s or Unicom NewSpace's value-added services are shared
between CUCL and UNISK, or CUCL and Unicom NewSpace based on an agreed prapartion. The
content service fees are collected from subscribers by CUCL and the relevant portion is paid to UNISK
and Unicom NewSpace on a regular basis.
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33. AZLATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — GROUP (continued)

33.1Unicom Group and its subsidiaries continued)

(a)

Transactions with Unicom Group and its subsidiaries (centinuea

{xii)

D)

(xiv

—_—

(xv)

{xvi)

CUCL signed service agreements with Unicom Group to mutually lease premises, equipment and
facilities from each other. Rentals are based on the lower of depreciation costs and market rates.

Charges for international gateway services represent the amounts paid or payabte to Unicom Group for
international gateway services provided for the Group’s international long distance networks, The
charge for this service is based on the cost of operation and maintenance of the international gateway
facilities incurred by Unicom Group, including depreciation, together with a margin of 10% over cost.

Satellite transmission capacity leasing fees represented the amounts paid or payable to Unicom
NewSpace for the use of satellite transmission capacity. The charges were based on the MIl regulations
then in effect less the applicable discount up to 10% as agreed with Unicom NewSpace. The leasing
agreement was terminated at the end of year 2005.

Unicom Group leases transmission line capacity from the Group in accordance with the relevant
provision of the sarvices agreement. Revenue for leasing of transrnission line capacity is based on tariffs
stipulated by Ml from time to time less a discount of up to 10%.

The Group signed a service agreement with Unicom Group to purchase telephone cards from Unicom
Group (to be imported by Unicom Xingye) at cost plus a margin to be agreed from time to time, but not
to exceed 20%, and subject to appropriate volume discounts.

{xvil) The Group signed a service agreement with Unicom I/E Co., in which Unicom I/E Co. agreed to provide

equipment procurement services to the Group. Unicom KVE Co. charges the Group 0.55% (for contract
up to an amount of USD30 million {nclusive)) and 0.35% {for contract with an amount of more than
USD30 millien) of the value of imported equipment, and 0.25% (for contract up to an amount of
RMB200 million inctusive)) and 0.15% {for contract with an amount of more than RMB200 mifion) of the
value of domestic equipment for such services.
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33. RELAT:ED BARTY TRANSACT.IONS - GROU? continucd)

33.1Unicom Group and its subsidiaries (continued)

{(a}) Transactions with Unicom Group and its subsidiaries (continued)

(xvii) In 2006, State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
{"SASAC™) transferred 100% equity interast in CITDC! to Unicom Group, CITDCI became a wholy-
owned subsidiary of Unicom Group effective from 28 December 2006 upon obtaining refevant approvals
from the government authorities. Accordingly, CUCL entered into a new agreement, “2006
Comprehensive Services Agreement” with Unicom Group and CITDCI on 26 October 2008, in which
CITDCI agreed to provide engineering design and technical services to the Group based on the pricing
terms agreed among GUCL, Unicom Group and CITDCI. The service fee standards for the engineering
design and technical services are determined based on standards promulgated by the relevant
government authorities. In addition, such prices shall not be higher than those adopted by an
independent third party providing services in the same industry.

{xix) Unicom Group is the registerad proprietor of the “Unicom” trademark in English and the trademark
bearing the “Unicom” logo, which are registered at the PRC State Trademark Bureau. Pursuant to an
exclusive PRC trademark licence agreement entered into between Unicom Group and CUCL, CUCL
and its affiliates are granted the right to use these trademarks on a royalty free basis for an initial period
of 5 years, renewable at CUCL's option.
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33 AZLATED PARTY TAANSACTIONS - GRCUP (continucay

33.1Unicom Group and its subsidiaries (continued)

(o)

(c)

Amounts due from and to related parties/Unicom Group

Amounts due from and to related parties or Unicom Group and its subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free,
repayable on demand/on contract terms and arise in the ordinary course of business in respect of
transactions with Unicom Group or its subsidiaries as described in (a) above.

Amount due to/ (from) Unicom Group

The Group

- 2006 2005
Due to/{from) Unicom Group, beginning of year 38,094 (61, 401)
nterconnection and roaming revenves @12178)  (207.526)
nterconnection and roaming charges 59125 57902
Revenus for leasing of transrmission ine capacity. premises and faciites 178820 (25841)
Rer;tal—caz;r;g—e;f-or_;é;nlses é_qu;;;;n"t a;wd- ;acmAtlc;; - - 27,931 7 -21-,C-)59
éh;@_esgr tr; |n;g};amtrc:n-al—g;£v;;s_er:flées_ o 17,143 o 1 9_;9_7
Leasing of saefft transmission capacky - 11,794
Netreceipt during the year 132648 222310
Due 1o Unicom Group, end of year 45,081 38,094

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006




184| Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

33, AELATED SARTY TRANSACTIONS — GACUR (comnund)

33.1Unicom Group and its subsidiaries icontinued)

(d)

Renewal of continuing connected transactions in 2006 year-end

The significant related party transactions disclosed in (a) above between the Group and Unicom Group and
its subsidiaries had expired by 31 December 2006. On 26 October 2006, CUCL entered into the new
agreements, “2006 Comprehensive Services Agreement” and “2006 COMA Lease Agreement”, with Unicom
Group and Unicom New MHorizon to continue to carry out the related party transactions. The new agreements
have been approved by the minerity shareholders of the Company on 1 December 2008, and become
effective from 1 January 2007. Major changes of the key terms between the new agreements and the
previous agreements are set out as follows:

e 2006 COMA Lease Agreement

Pursuant to 2006 CDMA Lease Agreement, the COMA lease has an initial term of one year. The lease
fee has been determined based on the same pricing mechanism as under the 2005 COMA Lease
Agreement, but with a conditional increase in the lease fee of 1% from 30% to 31% if the audited
CDMA profit before taxation of CUCL for the relevant year is not less than the audited CDMA profit
before taxation of CUCL. for the year 2006 as set out in the relevant annual audited financial statements.
The key terms of 2006 CDMA Lease Agreement are disclosed in Note 4.2{c).

s 2006 Comprehensive Services Agreement

Pursuant to 2006 Comprehensive Services Agreement, the customer service fees payable shall be
calculated on the same basis as under previous agreements, except Guangdong has been added as
one of the economically developed metropolises in determining the cost per operator seat.

Details of the new agreements have already been set forth in the shareholders circular “Continuing
Connectad Transactions” of the Company issued on 10 November 2006.
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33, HELATZS PARTY TEANSACTIONS -- CER0U2 cortinued

33.2Domestic Carriers

(@

Transactions with Domestic Carriers

The following is a summary of significant transactions with Domestic Carriers in the ordinary course of

business:
The Group
Note ) 2006 2005
Interconnection revenue i} 5,460,211 3,964,977
Interconnection charges T 9118314 7,886,395
L-eased fir;a-revenue S o (i) o 54,912 _"_"ag&':_
Ee;a\sed ting charge;— T (i#) L 328,701 - 548.48_177

()  The interconnection revenue and charges mainly represent the amounts due from or to Domestic

Carriers for telephone calls made between the Group’s networks and the public switched telephone

network of Domestic Carriers. The interconnection settlements are calculated in accordance with

interconnection agreements reached between the branches of the Group and Domestic Carriers on a

provincial basis. The terms of these agreements are set in accordance with the standard settlenent

arrangement stipulated by the MII.

{iy Leased line charges are paid or payable to Domestic Carriers by the Group for the provision of

transmissicn lines. At the same time, the Group leases transmission lines to Domestic Carriers in return

for leased line rental income. The charges are calculated at a fixed charge per line, depending on the

number of lines being used by the Group and Domestic Carriers.
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33, RELAT D PARTY TAANSACTICNE - CHOUPR tertueg)

33.2Domestic Carriers (continued)

(b} Amounts due from and to Domestic Carriers

The Group
2008 2005
Amaounts due from Domestic Carriers
7 — l;!e;:;!ivables for interconnectio; ;e;eﬁﬁé angl_ease}ﬂné -r;;e;L:e— o 158,894 139.0;3;
- Less: Pro;iéi—(;;-for dout-c;t%lll_ci_egté R {20,373} ) _(6;1— 4_)-
138,521 138,485
Amounts due to Domestic Carriers
.——_ I;;yables for interconnection ét;arg;é é;dkia;;e:ii-r;é;—cgges 850,975 MB;ZTQC]OE;

All amounts due from and to Domestic Carriers were unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable within

one year,
33.30ther major state-owned enterprises

{a) Transactions with other major state-owned enterprises

The following is a summary of significant trangactions with other major state-owned enterprises in the

ordinary course of business:

The Group

2006 2005
Furchase of COMA handsets 1,144,181 1,795,009
E);ﬁstruction and installat_ic_);f;a_e - - 218,904 ) ___-2—9(':),1-7;0“
I;urc;ase_of equipment o - 1,654,891 3,588:17557
Lnefeasing revenve 166559 153,837
Finance income/costs, include: - '

- Imerest—income - B - 226,065 - 96,196_
—-_ I_rgege_xpense T ) 832,681 1,587,260
&)rt-term t;;mk loan receved - 2,070,000 11,946,716
L;n'g—term—t;ank loan received - 1,315,000 5;2—7:6_
éh_or_t-;e.n;l;ank Ioan_repaid S 7,372,661 _14,363,131

Long-term bank loan repaid 8,442,468 25,869,531
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33, AELATED BAATY TAANSACTIONS - CRCU2 cont nug)
33.30ther major state-owned enterprises (continued)

(b) Amounts due from and to other major state-owned enterprises

The batances with other major state-owned enterprises in varicus ling items of the consolidated balance

sheet are listed as follows:

Current assets

Short-term bank deposit

Cash and cash equivalents

MNon-current liabilities

Long-term bank loans

Current liabilities

Payabtes and accrued liabilities

Short-term bank loans

The Group

2006 2005
Prepayment and other current assets 288,930 150,681
21,432 282,457
11,994,563 5,191,067
235,000 7,946,418
661,403 341,446
- 6,431,208

80,000

Current portion of long-term bank loans

5,145,190
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated}

34. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITIVENTS

34.1Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2006 and 2005, the Group had capital commitments, mainty in relation to the construction of
telecommunications networks, as follows:

The Group
2006 2005
Land_a;;_
buildings Equipment Total Total
Authorised and contracted for 499,280 2,199,345 2,698,625 3,879,666
At;thorised but not cén-tracted for o é_:;,993 879,2;'; o 943.5586 512‘.73):2587

Total 563,273 3,078,632 3,641,905 4,208,924

As at 31 December 2006, approximately RMB203 million (2005: RMB218 million} of capital commitment
outstanding was denominated in US dollars, equivalent to USD26 million (2005: USD27 miltion).

34.20perating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2006 and 2005, the Group had total future aggregate minimum operating lease payments
under operating leases as follows:

The Group
2006 2005

CDMA

Land and network
buildings Equipment capacity (a) Total Total

Leases expiring:
- not later than one year 935,718 129,951 7,270,885 8,336,564 7,873,407
- later than one year and

not later than five years 1,889,947 77,808 - 1,967,755 1,990,679
- later than five years 1,082,987 24,804 - 1,107,791 1,168,106

Total 3,908,652 232,563 7,270,895 11,412,110 11,032,192
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34, CONTINGENTIEE AND CONMMITVIENTS (cont nung

34.20perating iease commitments coninuad)

(@ In relation to the above CDMA network capacity commitment, it is estimated based on 90% of the total
amount of lease fee paid by the Group to Unicom New Horizon in 2006 pursuant to 2006 CDMA Lease
Agreement {See Note 4.2(c} for details).

As at 31 December 2006 and 2005, the Company had total future aggregate minimum operating lease payments
under operating leases as follows:

The Company
- 2006 2005
Office premise lease expiring:
- not later than one year - o 10,971 - _2.8—53
_—_ l_a;er_aérr one year and not later theiriﬁv?a ;(éérs 7 o - 15,542 o -—ﬁ—
Total 26,513 2,853

34.3Commitment to purchase CDMA handsets

As of 31 December 20086, the Group committed to purchase COMA handsets from third party vendors amounting
to approximately RMB1,237 million (2005: RMB1,232 million).
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35, SVENTE AFTER BALANC = 80y

35.1Non-adjusting post balance sheet event

Pursuant to the PRC enterprise income tax law passed by the Tenth National People’s Congress on 16 March
2007, the new enterprise income tax rates for domestic and foreign enterprises are unified at 25% and will be
effective from 1 January 2008. The impact of this change in enterprise income tax rates on the Group’s
consclidated financial statements wil depend on detailed implementation pronouncements that are to be issued
subsequently. The Group is currently assessing the impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position of this change in enterprise income tax rates.

35.2 Proposed final dividend

After the balance sheet date, the Board of Directors proposed a final dividend. For details, see Note 31.

38. COMPAAN V= FIGLRS

For comparative purposes, the carrying value of land use rights underlying the buildings acquired from third parties
was reclassified from “Property, plant and equipment” to “Other assets” on the 2005 comparative consolidated
balance sheet. Please refer to Note 6 for details.

37. ARPACVAL CF FINANCIAL STATLW ZNTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2007.



Financial Summary

179

For the five-year ended 31 December 2006

(Al amounts in BMB millions, except per share data and per ADS information)

Selected financial summary, including selected consolidated income statement data and consolidated balance sheet data

for relevant years presented below, were prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

3]

-

Selected Income Statement Data

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Re;renue (Turnover) o
- GSMBusiness 59,200 52135 47800 41153 27,8%0
' CDMA Business 27,203 27577 24377 16666 8220
Data and Internet Business 2376 3050 3663 3437 2,793
. VLE);g Dlstan-c:AéLngr;egéi ) 1,068 . 71,52; S 1 84_8_ - -2—27:3-» N 2,766
“Paging Business - TS qam 2,161
Total service revenue 90,027 84,287 77,397 64,932 38,832
Sales of telecommunications
products 4,267 2,762 1,690 2,221 1,411
Total revenue 94,294 87,049 79,087 67,153 40,243
Leased lines and
network capacities {8,764) (8,748) {7, 398) (4 320) (n 583)
Interconnection charges (0,59)  @8372) (7. 517) 6921) (3230
Depreciation and amartisation (22422 (20368) (1901 011) o (e359) (1-,256)
Employee benefit expenses (6,649)  (5616)  (4,615) (4598 (3.335)
Seling and marketng (19252)  (20558)  (19523)  (15264) (5989)
General, administrative and CooT T
other expenses {13,415) {11 742) (10,500} (9, 139) (5,632)
Cost of telecommunications T e
products sold (4,930) (3,575) (2.563) (2,939) (-,890)
Loss on sale of discontinued T -
operating {New Guoxin) - - - (663) -
Eﬂerest lnan—;———“_ - 259 - QAGA - 103 17é_ - —476
Finance costs (654) (1099)  (1,696) (1.948)  (1.474)
6t—ht;r gains — net— o 21 o MSL‘-SL - 163 -18 - ({6)
8,892 7,102 8,470 6,197 6,311
Unrealised loss on changes
in fair value of derivative
component of convertible bonds {2,396) — - — -
Profit before income tax 6,496 7,102 6,470 6,197 €,311
Income tax expenses (2,764) (2,171) (1,977) (1,929} (1,662)
Profit for the year 3,732 4,931 4,493 4,268 £.,649
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Financial Summary

For the five-year ended 31 December 2006
{(All amounts in RMB millions, except per share data and per ADS information)

g A LR & -
Vil ee —, Wi (nonlinuot)

Selected Income Statement Data (continusd)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Attributable to: T T
Equity holders of the Company 3,732 4,931 4,493 428 4,634
Minority interest o - - - o (16) 15
3,732 4,931 4,493 4,268 4,649
Basic earnings per share (RMB) 0.296 0.392 0.358 0.3 0.369
Diluted earnings per share {RMB) 0.295 0.391 0.357 0.341 0.369
Basic earnings per ADS (RMB) 2.962 3.923 3,577 3.408 3,691
Dituted earnings per ADS (RMB) 2,950 3.911 3.568 3.407 3.691
Selected Balance Sheet Data
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Property, plant and equipment 111,382 112,373 118492 117,863 107,216
Currentassets 20,426 15,276 17,248 21370 30,912
Accounts receivable, Herti - Mé,ifgﬂ o “4,_5:18_ ) 5.230- - o —54?2 4,327
Cash and cash equiva!er{ts - _;:?152_m o _574%2- B 4,655 - “__9,2_20 14,433
Total assets o 146438 142,630 149038 152,870 152,095
Current liabiities 50,303 50,862 46,124 43,907 44,641
Payable and accrued liabiities 26,200 18,527 16786 17,008 19,812
Shot-termloans 3984 12,170 20014 18173 14,607
Long-term loans  a138 11982 26137 36213 37,686
Convertible bonds - 71 O,Ségm o — k - o - . —
Total iabilities 7 67026 66,343 76596 83818 85,523
Total equity - 7a412 76287 72442 69,052 66,572




Glossary

This glossary contains certain definitions and other terms as they are used in the Annual Report. These definitions may, or

may not, correspond to standard industry definitions.

“ASP”

“ATM"

‘COMA"

“CDMA 1X"

“CDMA 2000"

“FR”

“GPRS”

“GEM”

“op”

“pr

Application Service Provider, which refers to a company which provides various

Internet application services

Asynchronous Transfer Mode, a broadband packet switching and multiplexing
technolegy, which ¢an be used in core networks, and used as an access

technology as well

Code Division Multiple Access, which uses different pseudo-random code
sequence to mix and separate speech and data signals in wireless
communication, is a wireless digital multiple address access technology that

suits higher information amount

A mobile communication technology that can provide medium-speed packet

data service

One of main standards for 3G cellular technology, including 1X and 3X
standards. It is 15-95-based multi-carrier CDMA technology, a mobile

communication system that supports circuit switching and packet switching

Frame Relay, which is a fast open protocol, can provide network access and
conduct data transmission over the network. This protocol is applicable to

customers with a large amount of data traffic

General Packet Radio Service, which is a GSM-based packet data service

TDMA-based 2G Global System for Mobile Communications, which operates at
bands of 900MHz and 1800MHz

Internet Content Provider, which refers to a company that provides the content to

be browsed over the Internet

Internet Protocol, open protoco! for Internet and LAN/WAN use
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“IP Phone”

“ISP”

«LAN"

“Mbps”

“MHz"

“PSTN"

“QoS”

“TD-SCDMA”

“WPN"

"WAN"

“WAP"

“W-COMA”

n2Gu

“3G"

Voice service with certain QoS transported over IP network

Internet Service Provider, refers to operator who provides Internet access

Local Area Network. Refers to a network composed by linking PCs and
electronic office equipment. Subscribers can communicate with each other and
share resources and get access to remote computers or other networks

1 million bits per second

Million Herlz, a frequency unit, equal to 1 million cycles per second

Public Switched Telephone Network

Quality of Service

Time Division-Synchronous Code Division Multiple Access. This standard
especially applies to wireless Internet access

A service provided by public network operator by utilizing public network
resources and its specific functions, namely, providing customers with a network

with private network characteristics and function

Wide Area Network, referring to a computer network that covers a wide

geographical area {e.g., a whole city)

Wireless Application Protocol

Wideband CDMA, one of main standards for 3G Local network: refers to a

telephone network with same long-distance area code

Digital mobile communication system that mainly adopts TDMA GSM and narrow

band CDMA systems and is widely commercialized

Mokbile communication system that is further evolved on the basis of 2G and

mainly adopts W-CDMA and can simultaneously provide voice and data services




“Circuit Switching”

“Call-drop Rate”

“Packet Switching”

“Interconnection”

“Base Station”

s

“Base Station Controller”

“"Connection Rate"

“Router”

“Roaming”

A technique to provide any one communication subscribers a private physical
channel (or circuit) which is composed by completing channel connection in

space {wiring connection} or time {timeslot switch) by nodes of the channel

One of standards reflecting telephone communication quality

Divides customer-transferred data into packets of a certain length, with each
packet prefixed with a mark. Address mark indicates which place this packst is
sent to. Then the packets are retransmitted to their destination by the packet
switch according to the address mark of each packet, and returned to original
data packets

Refers to setting up effective communication connection between telecom
networks to enable a telecom service operator's customers to communication
with another telecom service operator’s customers or to use another telecom

service operator's various telecom services

Transmitting/receiving point of a cellular communication system

Centralized control system of transmitting/receiving point of a cellular

communication system

one of standards reflecting the operating quality of a communication network,

usually the percentage of successful calls in the total calls

Special device for network interconnection use. It operates at the network layer
of the open systems’ interconnection reference model. Its basic function is to
seek a route for the IP message through it, then transfer it to the host at the
designated destination. And the router must complete conversion of varicus

types of protocols in connecting two different types of networks

A service provided by telecom operators, which enables subscribers to continue
to use this service when leaving their home service area and entering other

service areas

China Unicom Limited Annual Report 2006




Glossary

“Spectrum”

“Dual-mode, dual-standby handset

“Gateway”

“Network Capacity”

“Intelligent Network”

Usable frequency range

The handset that can offer both CDMA and GSM services simultaneously in
areas that are covered by both CDMA and GSM networks, and there is no need
to switch between CDMA and GSM networks.

A device connecting two network sections that use different protocols, which
mainly used to transfate and convert data that use different transmission

protocols in two network sections

Total communication capacity of network

A system that provides services with computers and database at the core, This
network system can be used to provide customers with all kinds of fast,

convenient, economic and flexible new services
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